Public Document Pack

CITY
LONDON

Finance Committee

Date: TUESDAY, 29 APRIL 2025
Time: 12.45 pm
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS - 2ND FLOOR WEST WING, GUILDHALL

MEMBERSHIP OF THIS COMMITTEE WILL BE CONFIRMED AT THE ANNUAL
MEETING OF THE COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL ON 25 APRIL 2025.

Enquiries:  Ben Dunleavy ben.dunleavy@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Accessing the virtual public meeting
Members of the public can observe all virtual public meetings of the City of London
Corporation by following the below link:
https://www.youtube.com/@ CityofLondonCorporation/streams

A recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the end of
the public meeting for up to one civic year. Please note: Online meeting recordings do not
constitute the formal minutes of the meeting; minutes are written and are available on the
City of London Corporation’s website. Recordings may be edited, at the discretion of the
proper officer, to remove any inappropriate material.

Whilst we endeavour to livestream all of our public meetings, this is not always possible
due to technical difficulties. In these instances, if possible, a recording will be uploaded
following the end of the meeting.

lan Thomas CBE
Town Clerk and Chief Executive



https://www.youtube.com/@CityofLondonCorporation/streams

AGENDA
Part 1 - Public Agenda
APOLOGIES

MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

ORDER OF THE COURT - TO FOLLOW

To receive the Order of the Court of Common Council dated 25 April 2025.
For Information

ELECTION OF CHAIR

To elect a Chair in accordance with Standing Order 28.

For Decision

ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIR

To elect a Deputy Chair in accordance with Standing Order 29.

For Decision

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

To agree the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held on 18
February 2025.

For Decision
(Pages 7 - 20)

ACTION TRACKER

To receive the Committee’s Action Tracker.

For Information
(Pages 21 - 22)

FINANCE COMMITTEE'S FORWARD PLAN

Report of the Chamberlain.

For Information
(Pages 23 - 24)



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

DRAFT PUBLIC MINUTES OF THE PROJECTS AND PROCUREMENT SUB-
COMMITTEE

To receive the draft public minutes and non-public summary of the Projects and
Procurement Sub-Committee held on 4 February 2025.

For Information
(Pages 25 - 30)

APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES
Report of the Town Clerk.

For Decision
(Pages 31 - 40)

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL REGULATIONS

Report of the Chamberlain.

For Decision
(Pages 41 - 106)

QUARTERLY PROGRAMME SAPPHIRE (ERP) UPDATE REPORT - Q4 2024/25

Report of the Chamberlain.

For Information
(Pages 107 - 120)

CHAMBERLAIN'S BUSINESS PLAN QUARTER 4 2024/25 UPDATE

Report of the Chamberlain.

For Information
(Pages 121 - 134)

CHAMBERLAIN'S DEPARTMENTAL RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE

Report of the Chamberlain.

For Information
(Pages 135 - 156)

DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY AND URGENCY
PROCEDURES

Report of the Town Clerk.

For Information
(Pages 157 - 158)

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

MOTION - under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be
excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part | of the Schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act or relate to functions of the Court of Common Council which
are not subject to the provisions of Part VA and Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972.

For Decision
Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda

NON-PUBLIC MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 18 February 2025.

For Decision
(Pages 159 - 164)

DRAFT NON-PUBLIC MINUTES OF THE PROJECTS AND PROCUREMENT SUB-
COMMITTEE

To receive the draft non-public minutes of the Projects and Procurement Sub-
Committee held on 4 February 2025.

(Pages 165 - 168)

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE EFFICIENCY AND PERFORMANCE WORKING PARTY

To receive the draft minutes from the meeting of the Efficiency and Performance
Working Party held on 3 March 2025.

For Information
(Pages 169 - 172)

EFFICIENCY AND PERFORMANCE WORKING PARTY'S FORWARD PLAN

To receive the Efficiency and Performance Working Party's Forward Plan.

For Information
(Pages 173 - 174)

MAJOR PROJECT DASHBOARD - PERIOD 11, 2024/25

Report of the Town Clerk.
For Information
(Pages 175 - 190)



24.

25.

26.

NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
COMMITTEE

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND
WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

Part 3 - Confidential Agenda

MARKETS SITES REGENERATION PROGRAMME
Joint Report of the Comptroller and City Solicitor, and the City Surveyor.

For Decision



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

FINANCE COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 18 February 2025

Minutes of the meeting of the Finance Committee held at Guildhall, EC2 on Tuesday,
18 February 2025 at 12.45 pm

Present

Members:

Deputy Henry Colthurst (Chairman) Catherine McGuinness

Deputy Randall Anderson (Deputy Deputy Brian Mooney BEM

Chairman) Hugh Selka

Brendan Barns Deputy Oliver Sells KC

Nicholas Bensted-Smith Paul Singh

Deputy Timothy Butcher James St John Davis

Alderman Sir Peter Estlin Deputy James Thomson CBE

Steve Goodman OBE James Tumbridge

Alderwoman Martha Grekos Mark Wheatley

Michael Hudson Philip Woodhouse

Alderwoman Elizabeth Anne King, BEM JP  Deputy Christopher Hayward (Ex-Officio

Alderman Tim Levene Member)

Deputy Paul Martinelli Deputy Keith Bottomley (Ex-Officio
Member)

Officers:

lan Thomas, CBE - Town Clerk and Chief Executive

Caroline Al-Beyerty - Chamberlain

Michael Cogher - Comptroller and City Solicitor

Paul Wilkinson - City Surveyor

Radwan Ahmed - Chamberlain's Department

Sam Collins - Chamberlain's Department

Kate Limna - Chamberlain's Department

Daniel Peattie - Chamberlain's Department

Sonia Virdee - Chamberlain's Department

Genine Whitehorne - Chamberlain's Department

Jack Joslin - City Bridge Foundation

Julia Pridham - City Bridge Foundation

Robert Murphy - City Surveyor's Department

Liz Millington - Innovation & Growth

Ben Dunleavy - Town Clerk's Department

1. APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Deputy Rehana Ameer and Deputy
Sir Michael Snyder.

Shahnan Bakth, Florence Keelson-Anfu, Deputy Andrien Meyers and Benjamin
Murphy observed the meeting virtually.

Page 7



MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

Deputy Brian Mooney declared a pecuniary interest in respect of item 7 due to
his ownership of two residential units in the City.

It was noted that the declarations of interest for all Members with property in the
City were registered on the public website.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
RESOLVED, that — the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting
held on 14 January 2025 be approved as an accurate record.

ACTION TRACKER
Members received the Committee’s Action Tracker.

FINANCE COMMITTEE'S FORWARD PLAN
Members received the Committee’s Forward Plan.

DRAFT PUBLIC MINUTES OF THE PROJECTS AND PROCUREMENT SUB-
COMMITTEE

Members received the draft public minutes and non-public summary of the
Procurement Sub-Committee meeting on 9 December 2025.

The Deputy Chairman advised that the Sub-Committee had discussed the
Review of Strategic Procurement and Current Management, which aimed to
streamline procurement governance. Members also noted that the new
Procurement Policy would be presented for approval before the 2025 summer
recess.

RESOLVED, that — the public minutes and non-public summary of the Projects
and Procurement Sub-Committee meeting held on 14 January 2025 be noted.

CITY FUND BUDGET REPORT AND MEDIUM-TERM FINANCIAL
STRATEGY

Members considered a report of the Chamberlain concerning the City Fund
2025/26 Budget and the Medium-Term Financial Plan.

The Chamberlain and Chairman introduced the report, and the Committee
proceeded to consider each section of the recommendations in turn.

A Member asked why the first section didn’t include any savings proposals. In
reply, the Town Clerk and Chief Executive said that he would be chairing ‘star
chambers’ in the next financial year to consider savings, which would be
presented in future years, and there would be other opportunities for senior
Members to participate in the process.

A Member, referring to the proposed uplifts to the London Museum grant at
recommendation 1.5, asked what the outcome would be if this uplift was not
matched by the Greater London Authority (GLA). They also asked for further
information on the discussions with the Arts Council in relation to the London
Symphony Orchestra (LSO) grant uplift, included in the same recommendation.

Page 8



In reply, the Chamberlain confirmed that the London Museum was subject to
match funding, so that the City Corporation would match its funding to that
amount agreed by the GLA. The LSO funding would also be match funding;
officers were asking for approval of up to 3% so that they could enter
negotiations. A Member suggested that the wording on the London Museum
uplift should be changed so that Members agreed ‘up to 3%’, in alignment with
the LSO funding. The Committee supported this change.

The Committee also supported a Member’s proposal that recommendation 1.6
should be amended to reflect the Chamberlain’s clarification that ‘regular
review’ meant annually.

At the Committee’s consideration of section 2, a Member suggested that the
City Corporation should have a strategic review of its homelessness service,
though it was noted that such matter was an issue for the Community and
Children’s Services Committee. The Town Clerk and Chief Executive said that
the City Corporation would be able to achieve more with earlier investment.

At section 3, a Member asked why, at recommendations 3.6 — 3.8, there was
no premium if a property was empty for under 12 months. In reply, officers said
that the charge was restricted by national legislation. The Member thought
there were instances in which it could be applied after six months; officers
undertook to explore the point and reply in writing.

Deputy Brian Mooney proposed an amendment with the effect of removing
recommendation 3.9, which proposed to ‘introduce the Second Home Premium
of 100% in 2025/26’, as he felt that the measure was anti-business. He said
that many second-homes in the Square Mile were used for work purposes, and
the introduction of the Premium risked losing sight of the City Corporation’s
aspiration to support and promote a 24/7 business city. Catherine McGuinness
seconded the motion.

The Chairman, opening the amendment up to discussion, informed the
Committee that he did not support it.

At the request of Members, the Chamberlain provided further information on the
potential impact of the recommendation. The Premium was expected to raise
between £1.9m — £3m, but a more exact figure would not be available until
further work had been undertaken on what residents classed as their first and
second homes. Around 22 other London Boroughs were implementing the
Premium, and officers advised that the funds raised could help to fund the
homelessness pressures.

During discussion, several Members spoke in support of Deputy Mooney’s
amendment, agreeing that the City of London’s position as a central business
district distinguished it from other local authorities and warning that the
introduction of the Premium would send a negative message. It was noted that
the City Corporation could choose to be inconsistent in stating its distinctness
from the rest of London.

Other Members spoke in support of the original recommendation, noting that
the Court had originally approved the introduction of the Premium in March
2024 as part of the 2024/25 Budget. Members highlighted that there were
potentially negative consequences for any transitional relief following the
government’s business rate reset if the Premium was not introduced, and that

Page 9



the City Corporation needed to demonstrate that it was doing all that it could to
raise income to support effective services.

A Member asked how the homelessness pressures would be funded if the
amendment was approved. The Chamberlain said that nothing would need to
be done immediately, but such deduction would reduce the current forecast
surplus requiring £2m extra to be found over the medium-term.

The Chairman agreed with those Members who said that the City Corporation
needed to exhaust all potential lines of income and prove to the Government in
the negotiations over potential transitional relief that it had done all it could. He
considered it also a philosophical argument in which Members had to ask
themselves if they were prepared to prioritize those who had a second home
over those who didn’t have homes at all.

Proceeding to a vote, the amendment was defeated. Michael Hudson,
Catherine McGuinness, Hugh Selka, Deputy Oliver Sells and James Tumbridge
voted in favour of the amendment, along with Deputy Mooney. Deputy
Christopher Hayward abstained from the vote.

At section 4, the Chairman noted that the Business Rate Premium had always
been hypothecated towards supporting the City of London Police and Security,
and there had been no pushback on the proposal to increase it to 4p at the
ratepayer’s consultation meetings.

At section 5, a Member raised their concern on the cost pressure of c£60m,
mentioned at paragraph 29 of Appendix A of the report, rising from the new
arrangements for the police facilities. When this project had first been debated,
it was proposed that the Salisbury Square Development would house the new
City of London Police arrangements with the exception of the Eastern Base.
The project had developed during the detailed design phases, requiring
additional space for facilities that could not be accommodated in Salisbury
Square e.g. the JCCR being located in GYE and a requirement for a tactical
firearms range, all of which required funding.

They worried that the risk in the report that ‘future costs could still increase’ was
considerable one; costs could rise significantly above those originally forecast if
the Finance Committee did not treat the issue with caution. They did not think
the City Corporation taxpayers could continue to afford everything that the
Police thought they needed, even if it was justified as operationally necessary.

In reply, the Chamberlain highlighted that the increase in the size of the
commercial office development at Salisbury Square required accommodating
certain areas of the Police elsewhere. The number of police officers had also
increased, at the Home Office’s direction. The amount at risk had been linked
to the request to include an optimism bias of £30m (paragraph 30 of Appendix
A), which would replenish the optimism bias and cover the costed risks around
the rest of the deliverables. They had considered the amount of work done,
which was now at a fixed price, and what remained to do in terms of the fit-out.
The optimism bias was the estimate as to the worst-case scenario.

The City Surveyor asked Members to consider the Salisbury Square
Development in the wider context of the Future Police Estate programme. The

Page 10



development was reaching the end of its journey in terms of procuring
outstanding fit out works. There had been had increase in the 20% unfixed
costs. The City Surveyor also provided an update on costs of the other projects
within the wider development advising that officers were due to fix the price on
the Eastern Base and had a good understanding of the costs of refurbishing
Guildhall Yard East. He noted his concerns on finding joint venture partners for
the tactical firearms facility and a solution for the mounted unit. A huge amount
of work had been done to reach agreement with the City of London Police on
the requirements, and all designs at Salisbury Square had been frozen.

A Member, also the Deputy Chair of the City of London Police Authority Board,
said that it was important to recognise that there was originally going to be a
much larger Police footprint at Salisbury Square, but the commercial element of
the development had been the main driver in the requirement to locate
operational assets elsewhere. The vast majority of cost pressures came from
building cost inflation, rather than the change in requirements. He warned that,
while the City Corporation could cut back on what the City of London Police did,
such action risked cutting police officer numbers, which he did not think
Members would want and was linked to the funding formula.

A Member, also the Chairman of the Policy and Resources Committee, said
they were sympathetic and supportive of ensuring that all the operational
requirements of City of London Police were met. They acknowledged that the
increase in the 20% unfixed costs had caused problems as they had come in
higher than anticipated. They asked if the cost of the additional operational
requirements were over and above those provided for in the original contract
and, if so, how much would be required to meet this. In reply, the City Surveyor
said that elements such as the increase in police numbers, changes in design
guidance from Home Office and security considerations meant that the brief for
the project had developed since the initial design. The Town Clerk and Chief
Executive confirmed that the requested figures would be shared with Members.

Members approved the remaining sections of the recommendations without
comment.

The Chamberlain noted that there had been no response from Chief Officers on
the equalities impact of the budget.

RESOLVED, that — Members endorse the below recommendations to the Court
of Common Council:

1.0 To note and approve the overall budget envelopes for City Fund.

1.1 Additional funding is required to be approved for new on-going cost
pressures and have been included as budget uplifts:

1.1.1 Net 2% inflation uplift to local risk budgets.

1.1.2 £1.3m p.a. for City Fund Adult Social Care and Children
Services.

1.1.3 £232k p.a. City Fund for Health & Safety officers (Environment
and Barbican Centre)

1.1.4 £165k p.a. for increased internal control (Internal audit) split
across funds.

Page 11



1.2 Following the Government's announcement to increase employers’
national insurance from 13.8% to 15%, it is recommended that
additional funding be allocated to City Fund (the final Local
Government Settlement confirmed £873k of grant).

1.3 Ongoing pressures identified through the budget-setting process and
supported by Members are addressed through savings made
elsewhere, remaining within the overall budget envelope. These
pressures are outlined in paragraph 17.

1.4 Other one-off pressures and opportunities for transformation in
2025/26 outlined in paragraphs 18 to be funded from forecast carry
forward underspends from 2024/25 Members are asked to comment
whether they are supportive of these.

1.5 Uplift the grant to the Museum of London by up to 3% (£170Kk)
pending confirmation that the GLA are matching the uplift; and a
provision to uplift the grant to the London Symphony Orchestra by up
to 3% (£61Kk), subject to funding discussions with the Arts Council.
Any such additional funding will be funded from savings found.

1.6 As in previous years, it is recommended the earmarked security
reserve retains £1m as a minimum and is reviewed annually.

1.7 Approve the overall financial framework and the revised Medium-Term
Financial Strategy (paragraphs 9 to 83).

1.8 Approve the City Fund Net Budget Requirement of £241.8m
(Appendix A, paragraph 7).

2.0 Medium Term Corporate Plan Alignment and Financial Sustainability —
Members are asked to note and approve the following recommendations:

2.1 Revenue:

2.1.1 Additional resource requests and inflationary pressures: Going
forward, assumptions include 2% uplift from 2025/26 onwards.

2.1.2 Homelessness £2m p.a. pressure added from 2026/27
2.2 For Cyclical Works Programme (CWP):

2.2.1 £7.5m p.a. built in from 2028/29 onwards to support ongoing
works and avoid a backlog.

2.2.2 Funding for City Fund has been identified and allocated from
reserves for 2028/29 only. Futures years funding will
necessitate disposal of assets.

Key decisions:

The key decisions are in setting the levels of Council Tax and National Non-
Domestic rates:

3.0 Council Tax and Housing and Council Tax Benefits

3.1 An increase of 2% social care precept, raising c£194k p.a. in response to
the ongoing pressures in adult social care totalling £0.2m.

Page 12



3.2 An increase of 2.99% on core Council Tax raising c£298k p.a. to address
pressures in children's social care, the gap in pressures from the national
insurance increase and other pressures outlined under section 1 i) above.

3.3 To note if both increases are approved, the 4.99% increase will result in the
Band D rate increasing from £1,051.62 to £1,102.82 (before GLA precept).

3.4 To retain a fully funded means tested council tax reduction scheme for
those on low incomes who are least able to pay and providing continued
support to vulnerable members of society.

3.5 Continuing the Local Discretionary discount for Care Leavers between the
ages of 18 to 25 for 2025/26.

3.6 The current 100% discount awarded to unoccupied and unfurnished and
uninhabitable dwellings is continued at zero (0%) for 2025/26.

3.7 Continuing the premium levied on long-term empty property of 100%, 200%
and 300% on properties that have been empty for 2, 5 and 10 years
respectively in 2025/26.

3.8 Continue the long-term empty property premium of 100% for properties that
have been empty for longer than 12 months in 2025/26.

3.9 Introduce the Second Home Premium of 100% in 2025/26.

3.10 Determine that pensions received by veterans under the War Pension
Scheme or War Compensation scheme are fully disregarded in the
calculation of Housing and Council Tax Benefit.

3.11 It is recommended that, having regard to the government guidance
issued, the Chamberlain be given the discretion, delegated to the
Assistant Director, Financial Shared Services, to reduce or waive the long-
term empty premium charge in exceptional circumstances.

3.12 Approve that the cost of highways, street cleansing, waste collection and
disposal, drains and sewers, and road safety functions for 2025/26 be
treated as special expenses to be borne by the City’s residents outside
the Temples (Appendix B).

4.0 Business Rates and Business Rate Premium

4.1 To approve an increase the Standard City Business Rate Premium from
0.018p to 0.022p. Setting the overall standard business rate multiplier as
0.577p

4.2 To approve an increase the Small Business City Premium from 0.016p to
0.020p, setting the overall small business multiplier as 0.519p

4.3 To note for every 0.1p increase in the £ - this raises c£2.1m, therefore an
increase in Business Rates Premium by 0.4p in the £ (as per above) -
raises £8.4m p.a.

4.4 Award a Discretionary Discount under S47 Local Government Finance Act
for qualifying Nursery Schools of up to 100%.

Page 13



4.5 Note that, in addition, the GLA is levying a Business Rate Supplement in
2025/26 of 2.0p in the £ on properties with a rateable value of £75,000
and above

4.6 Delegate to the Chamberlain the award of discretionary rate reliefs under
Section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988

5.0 HRA Rent

5.1 Approve an increase on rents for social tenants within the Housing
Revenue Account by 2.7% for 2025/26, as proposed to the Children’s &
Community Services Committee on 16" January 2025 in order to balance
the HRA across the MTFP.

6.0 Capital Expenditure
6.1 Approve the Capital Strategy (Appendix F).

6.2 Approve the Capital budgets for City Fund and the allocation of central
funding from the appropriate reserves to meet the cost of 2025/26 —
release of funding being subject to approval at the relevant gateway and
specific agreement of the Resource Allocation Sub Committee at gateway
4(a) (paragraphs 55 to 64)

6.3 Approve the continuation of the allocation of central funding in 2025/26 to
provide internal loan facilities for the HRA, currently estimated at £11.0m
respectively.

6.4 Approve the Prudential Code indicators (Appendix D).

6.5 Delegate authority to the Chamberlain to determine the final financing of
capital and supplementary revenue project expenditure.

7.0 Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment
Strategy 2025/26 (Appendix E)

7.1 Approve the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual
Investment Strategy for 2025/26, including the treasury indicators —
Appendix E.

7.2 Approve the authorised limit for external debt (which is the maximum the
City Fund may have outstanding by way of external borrowing) at
£348.0m for 2025/26; and the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) for
2025/26 at £1.4m (MRP policy is included within Appendix E — Treasury
Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy
Statement 2024/25 - Appendix 2).

8.0 Chamberlain’s Assessment

8.1 Take account of the Chamberlain’s assessment of the robustness of
estimates and the adequacy of reserves and contingencies (paragraphs
68-72 and Appendices A, C and H respectively).

CITY'S ESTATE BUDGET REPORT AND MEDIUM-TERM FINANCIAL
STRATEGY

Page 14



Members considered a report of the Chamberlain concerning the City’s Estate
2025/26 Budget and the Medium-Term Financial Plan.

RESOLVED, that — Members endorse the below recommendations to the Court
of Common Council:

1.0 To note and approve the overall budget envelope for City’s Estate
2025/26 revenue budgets.

1.1 Additional funding is required for new on-going cost pressures and
have been included as budget uplifts (paragraphs 9 — 10):

1.1.1 Net 2% inflation uplift to local risk budgets.
1.1.2 £165k for increased internal control (split between funds)
1.1.3 £1.93m for increase in employees National Insurance

1.2 Other one-off pressures and opportunities for transformation in
2025/26 are outlined in paragraph 12 to be funded from forecast carry
forward underspends from 2024/25.

1.3 Additional revenue bids (paragraph 11) have been accommodated by
savings identified during the 2025/26 budget setting process.

1.4 Consideration given to uplift the Mayoralty and Shrievalty allowances
by £22k subject to agreement at the Joint Deputation meeting in April
2025.

2.0 Medium Term Corporate Plan Alignment and Financial Sustainability

2.1 To address inflationary pressures going forward assumptions include
2% uplift from 2026/27 onwards.

2.2 The impact of decisions from the Court of Common Council regarding
the conclusion of the markets co-location programme has been
updated over the 5 year financial plan.

2.3 For Cyclical Works Programme (CWP) (paragraph 19):

2.3.1 £7.5m p.a. built in from 2028/29 onwards to support ongoing
works and avoid a further backlog.

2.3.2 Note additional funding requires an additional draw on assets
(modelled).

3.0 Approve the overall financial framework and the revised 5-year Financial
Strategy (paragraphs 4-32).

4.0 Approve the Capital and Supplementary Revenue Project Budgets, over
the five-year period for City’s Estate amounting to £385.1m (paragraphs 20-
22).

5.0 Approve the allocation of central funding of up to £175.7m for City’s Estate
to meet the cost of 2025/26 approved capital schemes. Release of such
funding being subject to approval at the relevant gateway and specific
agreement of the Resource Allocation Sub-Committee at Gateway 4(a).
Note the agreed capital envelope for new bids of £2m in 2025/26
(paragraph 29-30).

Page 15



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

6.0 Authorise the Chamberlain to determine the final financing of capital and
supplementary revenue project expenditure.

REVIEW OF RECHARGES - UPDATED POSITION
Members considered a report of the Chamberlain concerning the recharging
process.

A Member, supporting the proposals, informed the Committee that the Barbican
Residential Committee had noted that there was no explanation of the detailed
nature of the £1.3m of recharges to the Barbican Estate service charge.
Officers agreed to reply with further information.

RESOLVED, that — Members approve the limiting of recharges to the HRA to
£1.003m for FY2024/25 only, with the additional £240k to be met from current
year General Fund budgets within City Fund.

INVESTMENT GOVERNANCE
Members received a report of the Town Clerk concerning investment
governance.

RESOLVED, that — Members endorse the recommended change in the
thresholds in Standing Orders as set out in Appendix 2 to the report.

BUDGET MONITORING QUARTER 3 2024/25
Members received a report of the Chamberlain concerning budget monitoring.

RESOLVED, that — the report be received and its contents noted.

CHAMBERLAIN'S DEPARTMENTAL BUSINESS PLAN 2024/2025 Q3
UPDATE
Members received a report of the Chamberlain

CHAMBERLAIN'S DEPARTMENTAL BUSINESS PLAN 2025/26
Members considered a report of the Chamberlain concerning the departmental
business plan for 2025/26.

RESOLVED, that — Members approve the departmental Business Plan, noting
the factors taken into consideration in its compilation.

CENTRAL CONTINGENCIES
The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain concerning Contingency
Funds.

At the request of a Member, officers provided an update on the International
Disaster Fund Contingency following the decisions made by the Committee in
September to grant £50,000 each to the Disaster Emergency Committee (DEC)
and REACT. DEC had used its funding to support its Middle East Humanitarian
Appeal. Officers remained in regular contact with both organisations and
planned to bring an update to the Committee in the new financial year.

RESOLVED, that — the report be received and its contents noted.

Page 16



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

CHAMBERLAIN’S DEPARTMENTAL RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE
Members received a report of the Chamberlain

RESOLVED, that — the report be received and its contents noted.

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
COMMITTEE
There were no questions.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
There were no urgent items.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL
INVESTMENT STRATEGY (RELATING TO TREASURY MANAGEMENT)
2025/26

Members received a report of the Chamberlain concerning the Treasury
Management Strategy.

RESOLVED, that — the report be received and its contents noted.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED - That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part |
of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Item No. Paragraphs in Schedule 12A
16-24, 26, 27 3
25 land3

NON-PUBLIC MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 14 January 2025 were approved
as a correct record.

NON-PUBLIC ACTION TRACKER
Members received the Committee’s action tracker.

EFFICIENCY AND PERFORMANCE WORKING PARTY'S FORWARD PLAN
Members received the Efficiency and Performance Working Party’s Forward
Plan.

CITY FUND AND CITY’S ESTATE CASHFLOW POSITION AND CAPITAL
REALISATION

Members considered a report of the Chamberlain concerning the City
Corporation’s cashflow position.

CITY FUND - ANNUAL STRATEGY REPORT

Members received a report of the City Surveyor concerning the City Fund
investment property strategy.

Page 17



25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

CITY’S ESTATE — ANNUAL STRATEGY REPORT 2025
Members received a report of the City Surveyor concerning the City’s Estate
investment property strategy.

COMPLETION OF THE CORPORATE CHARITIES REVIEW

Members considered a joint report of the Chamberlain, Deputy Town Clerk and
Acting Managing Director of City Bridge Foundation concerning the Corporate
Charities Review.

DELEGATION REQUESTS
Members considered a report of the City Surveyor concerning requests for
delegated authority.

DRAFT NON-PUBLIC MINUTES OF THE PROJECTS AND PROCUREMENT
SUB-COMMITTEE

The non-public minutes of the Projects and Procurement Sub-Committee
meeting held on 9 December 2025 were noted.

CONNECT TO WORK - SERVICE PROVIDER PROCUREMENT STAGE 1
STRATEGY REPORT

Members considered a report of the Executive Director, Innovation and Growth,
concerning the Connect to Work scheme.

FUTURE NETWORK PROGRAMME - PROCUREMENT OPTIONS
APPRAISAL

Members considered a report of the Chamberlain concerning the Future
Network Programme.

MAJOR PROJECTS DASHBOARD
Members received a report of the Chamberlain concerning major projects.

NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF
THE COMMITTEE

Members considered one question in the non-public session relating to the
work of the Committee.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

The Committee considered one item of urgent business relating to a contract
award.

The meeting ended at 2.28 pm

Chairman

Page 18



Contact Officer: Ben Dunleavy ben.dunleavy@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



FINANCE COMMITTEE — Action Tracker — April 2025

Items from meeting held 18 February 2025

ITEM

Action

Officer and target date

5. REVIEW OF RECHARGES

Provide further information on the recharges being applied to the
Barbican leaseholder service charges

Chamberlains — following
meeting

T¢ obed

*Closed items will be removed from the tracker

/. Wa}| epuaby



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



FINANCE COMMITTEE - WORK PROGRAMME 2024-25

April - 25

June -25

July-25

Sept -25

Nov-25

Dec-25

Budget Setting Process & Medium-
Term Financial Planning

Update on Budget setting 25/26

Effective Financial Management
Arrangements for The City
Corporation

MPO Dashboard Reporting (CHB)
Update of Finance Regulations -

deep dive

Efficiency and Performance forward
plan

MPO Dashboard Reporting (CHB)
Efficiency and Performance forward
plan

Project Procedures

Write off report or Business Rates
and Council tax

MPO Dashboard Reporting (CHB)
Revenue Outturn report 24/25
Provisional Outturn report 24/25

Efficiency and Performance forward
plan

Natural Environment Charities
Review - Grant Model update

MPO Dashboard Reporting (CHB)
Budget Monitoring Q1

Provision for Bad and Doubtful
Debts

City Re update

Efficiency and Performance forward
plan

MPO Dashboard Reporting (CHB)
Budget monitoring Q2

Capital Projects — Forecasting

MPO Dashboard Reporting (CHB)

Efficiency and Performance forward
plan

City Fund and Pension Fund
statement of accounts

City’s cash financial statements

Financial City’s Cash trust funds and sundry
Statements trust funds annual reports and
U financial statements
Q)
C(% Risk Management Update Report Risk Management Update Report Risk Management Update Report Risk Management Update Report Risk Management Update Report Risk Management Update Report
N Chamberlains Business Plan End of Central Contingencies Chamberlain’s Business plan Q1 Central Contingencies (quarterly Chamberlain’s Business plan Q2
w Year update (Quarterly report) report report) report

Finance Committee as a Service
Committee

ERP Programme Update (Quarterly)

ERP Programme Update (Quarterly)

ERP Programme Update (Quarterly)

Other Departments reports

Appointments (Town Clerks)

Barbican Renewal six-month update
(Barbican Centre)

Annual Terms of Reference Review
(Town Clerks)

OV

Updated as at: 17 April 2025

g Wia)| epus



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Agenda lte

PROJECTS AND PROCUREMENT SUB-COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 4 February 2025

Minutes of the meeting of the Projects and Procurement Sub-Committee held at
Committee Rooms, 2nd Floor, West Wing, Guildhall on Tuesday, 4 February 2025 at

Present

Members:

Deputy Randall Anderson (Chair)
Mary Durcan

Alderman Timothy Hailes
Alderwoman Elizabeth Anne King
Eamonn Mullally

Observer:
Philip Woodhouse

Officers:

Genine Whitehorne
Nadhim Ahmed
James Carter
Michael Curtis
Wayne Fitzgerald
Lara Opebiyi

Daniel Peattie
Yasin Razaaq
Loredana Sandu
Sarah Baker

Ola Obadara

Dean Elsworth
Philippe Greaves
Michael Gwyther-Jones
Lochlan MacDonald
James Aggio-Brewe
Gillian Howard
John Cater

1. APOLOGIES

1.45 pm

Chamberlain’s Department
Chamberlain’s Department
Chamberlain’s Department
Chamberlain’s Department
Chamberlain’s Department
Chamberlain’s Department
Chamberlain’s Department
Chamberlain’s Department
Chamberlain’s Department

City Surveyor’s Department

City Surveyor’s Department
Community & Children’s Services
Community & Children’s Services
Community & Children’s Services
Community & Children’s Services
Environment Department
Environment Department
Committee Clerk

m 9

In advance of the meeting, a formal apology for absence was received from

Deputy Rehana Ameer.

2. MEMBERS'

RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA
There were no declarations under the Code of Conduct.

Page 25

DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT

IN



MINUTES

RESOLVED - that the draft public minutes and non-public summary of the last
meeting of the Sub-Committee, held on Monday 9 December 2024, be approved
as an accurate record.

Separately, the Chair confirmed that the Reports on today’s agenda which had also
been submitted to the Streets & Walkways Sub-Committee at their meeting earlier
in the day, had all been approved.

COMMERCIAL, CHANGE & PORTFOLIO DELIVERY RISK REGISTER
UPDATE

The Sub-Committee received a Report of the Chamberlain concerning an
update on the risk management activities within the Commercial, Change &
Portfolio Delivery (CCPD) Division.

RESOLVED - that the Sub-Committee noted the Report.

FLEET STREET AREA PROGRAMME - UPDATE REPORT
The Sub-Committee received a Report of the Executive Director, Environment
concerning the delivery of the Fleet Street Area Programme.

In response to a query, officers confirmed that the Lord Mayor’s Show logistics
have been taken into account in the work being undertaken for the Programme.

RESOLVED - that the Sub-Committee noted the Report.

*GW2 - COMBINED SECTION 278 PROJECT INITIATION REPORT

The Sub-Committee received a Report of the Executive Director, Environment
concerning Section 278 agreements relating to projects at 5-10 Great Tower
Street, 75 London Wall, and 10-16 Bevis Marks.

RESOLVED - that the Sub-Committee noted the Report.

*GW2 - FLEET STREET AREA COURTS AND LANES IMPROVEMENTS
(FLEET STREET AREA PROGRAMME)

The Sub-Committee received a Report of the Executive Director, Environment
concerning the Fleet Street Area Programme.

In response to a query, officers confirmed that the Lord Mayor’'s Show logistics
have been taken into account in the work being undertaken for the Programme.

RESOLVED - that the Sub-Committee noted the Report.

*ISSUE REPORT - PUBLIC SWITCHED TELEPHONE NETWORK (PSTN)
REPLACEMENT

The Sub-Committee received a Report of the Chamberlain concerning the
replacement for the Public Switched Telephone Network (PSTN).

RESOLVED - that the Sub-Committee noted the Report.

Page 26



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

*GW3 - SALISBURY SQUARE DEVELOPMENT HIGHWAY AND PUBLIC
REALM WORKS

The Sub-Committee received a Report of the Executive Director, Environment
concerning the highway and public realm works related to the Salisbury Square
Development.

RESOLVED - that the Sub-Committee noted the Report.

*GW3/4 - CRIPPLEGATE HOUSE, 1 GOLDEN LANE S278 PUBLIC REALM
AND HIGHWAY WORKS

The Sub-Committee received a Report of the Executive Director, Environment
concerning the highway and public realm works related to the Cripplegate
House, 1 Golden Lane project.

RESOLVED - that the Sub-Committee noted the Report.

*GW3/4 - MOOR LANE ENVIRONMENTAL ENHANCEMENTS
The Sub-Committee received a Report of the Executive Director, Environment
concerning public realm enhancements at Moor Lane.

RESOLVED - that the Sub-Committee noted the Report.

*GW4 — THE LONDON MUSEUM S278

The Sub-Committee received a Report of the Executive Director, Environment
concerning highway and public realm works related to the new London
Museum development.

RESOLVED - that the Sub-Committee noted the Report.

*GW5 - MOORGATE CROSSRAIL STATION LINKS - ROPEMAKER
STREET JUNCTION IMPROVEMENTS

The Sub-Committee received a Report of the Executive Director, Environment
concerning the Moorgate Crossrail Station Links Project.

RESOLVED - that the Sub-Committee noted the Report.

*GWS5 - PEDESTRIAN PRIORITY STREETS PROGRAMME - PHASE 1 -
CHEAPSIDE

The Sub-Committee received a Report of the Executive Director, Environment
concerning the Pedestrian Priority Streets Programme Phase 1 related to
Cheapside.

In response to a query, officers confirmed that the Lord Mayor’'s Show logistics
have been taken into account in the work being undertaken for the Programme.

RESOLVED - that the Sub-Committee noted the Report.

Page 27



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

*GWS5 - ST. PAUL’S GYRATORY TRANSFORMATION PROJECT — PHASE 1
(NEW HIGHWAY LAYOUT)

The Sub-Committee received a Report of the Executive Director, Environment
concerning Phase 1 of the St. Paul's Gyratory Transformation Project.

RESOLVED - that the Sub-Committee noted the Report.

*GW6 - MIDDLESEX STREET AREA ENHANCEMENT PHASE 2:
PETTICOAT LANE MARKET IMPROVEMENTS AND PUBLIC REALM

The Sub-Committee received a Report of the Executive Director, Environment
concerning Phase 2 of the Middlesex Street Area Enhancement Plan related to
improvements at Petticoat Lane Market and the northern and central sections
of Middlesex Street.

RESOLVED - that the Sub-Committee noted the Report.

*GW6 - ONE CROWN PLACE - SECTION 278 HIGHWAY WORKS

The Sub-Committee received a Report of the Executive Director, Environment
concerning Section 278 highway works related to the One Crown Place
development.

RESOLVED - that the Sub-Committee noted the Report.

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB
COMMITTEE
There were no public questions.

ANY URGENT BUSINESS
There was no other urgent public business.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

RESOLVED - That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part |
of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

RESOLVED - that the draft non-public minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-
Committee, held on Monday 9 December 2024, be approved as an accurate
record.

CONNECT TO WORK - SERVICE PROVIDER PROCUREMENT STAGE 1
STRATEGY REPORT

The Sub-Committee considered a Report of the Executive Director, Innovation
& Growth concerning the procurement strategy in relation to the Connect to
Work (formerly known as Universal Support) employment programme.

Page 28



23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

FUTURE NETWORK PROGRAMME - PROCUREMENT OPTIONS
APPRAISAL

The Sub-Committee considered a Report of the Chamberlain concerning the
City Corporation’s Future Network Programme.

COMPLIANT COMMITTEE WAIVER FOR A COMBINED IN-PATIENT
DETOXIFICATION (IPD) AND STABILISATION SERVICE FOR LONDON

The Sub-Committee considered a Report of the Director for Community &
Children’s Services concerning a waiver for the provision of a combined
hospital based In-Patient Detoxification (IPD) and stabilisation unit.

FUTURE NETWORK PROGRAMME - ISSUES REPORT
The Sub-Committee considered a Report of the Chamberlain concerning the
City Corporation’s Future Network Programme.

PORTFOLIO DASHBOARD COVER REPORT - FEBRUARY 2025

The Sub-Committee received a Report of the Chamberlain providing a
comprehensive overview of the current status of various projects within the City
Corporation.

*GW1-4 - GREAT ARTHUR HOUSE - ROOF AND CANOPY
REFURBISHMENT.
The Sub-Committee received a Report of the Director of Community &
Children's Services concerning the roof and canopy refurbishment project at
Great Arthur House.

*GW4 - BARBICAN PODIUM WATERPROOFING, DRAINAGE AND
LANDSCAPING WORKS (BEN JONSON, BRETON & CROMWELL
HIGHWALK) PHASE 2 — 1ST PRIORITY ZONE

The Sub-Committee received a Report of the Director of Community &
Children's Services concerning the refurbishment of the public realm, including
replacement of the waterproof membrane, remedial works to drainage
infrastructure, and landscaping works to the Barbican Podium.

*GW4 - L5-CLSG - SUMMER WORKS 2024-2027

The Sub-Committee received a Report of the City Surveyor concerning the
three-year package of cyclical maintenance and improvements revenue
(summer) works to provide refurbishment and upgrade of the City of London
School for Girls (CLSG).

*GW5 - BARBICAN RENEWAL - PHASE 1 INFRASTRUCTURE - TASK
ORDER 2

The Sub-Committee received a Report of the City Surveyor concerning the
phase 1 infrastructure works of the Barbican Renewal Programme.

*GWS5 - CLSG CATERING AND DINING UPGRADE

The Sub-Committee received a Report of the City Surveyor and the
Headmistress of the City of London School for Girls concerning an urgent
refurbishment and upgrade of the City of London School for Girls (CLSG) catering
and dining facilities.

Page 29



32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

*GWS5 - INSTALLATION OF SPRINKLERS IN SOCIAL HOUSING HIGH RISE
BLOCKS

The Sub-Committee received a Report of the Director of Community &
Children's Services concerning the installation of retrofit automatic water fire
suppression systems (sprinklers) and fire alarms to the City Corporation’s
residential tower blocks.

*GW5 - REFURBISHMENT OR REPLACEMENT OF THE FORESHORE
RIVER DEFENCES FRONTING RIVERBANK HOUSE, UPPER THAMES
STREET, LONDON EC4

The Sub-Committee received a Joint Report of the City Surveyor and the
Executive Director, Environment concerning the refurbishment or replacement
of the Foreshore River Defences fronting Riverbank House.

*GWS5 - MIDDLESEX STREET COMMUNAL HEATING REPLACEMENT

The Sub-Committee received a Report of the Director of Community &
Children's Services concerning the replacement of the communal heating and
hot water system in the Middlesex Street Estate.

*GW6 - WALBROOK WHARF DEPOT - REPLACEMENT OF MECHANICAL
AND ELECTRICAL SERVICES

The Sub-Committee received a Report of the City Surveyor concerning the
replacement of mechanical and engineering services at Walbrook Wharf.

NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB
COMMITTEE
There were no non-public questions.

NON-PUBLIC ANY URGENT BUSINESS
There was no other urgent non-public business.

The meeting ended at 2.05 pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: John Cater
John.Cater@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 30



Agenda Item 10

City of London Corporation Committee Report

Committee(s) Dated:
Finance Committee 29 April 2025
Subject: Public Report
Appointments to Committees For Decision

This proposal:
e provides business enabling functions

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or capital | No

spending?
If so, how much? N/A
What is the source of Funding? N/A

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the | N/A
Chamberlain’s Department?
Report of: The Town Clerk

Report author: Ben Dunleavy,
Governance and Member
Services Manager

Summary

The purpose of this report is to appoint the Finance Committee’s Sub-Committee and
Working Party for the 2025/26 civic year, approve their Compositions and Terms of
Reference, and appoint representatives to several other City Corporation positions.

The arrangements for appointing Sub-Committee Chairs and Deputy Chairs has been
changed as part of the Standing Orders changes approved by the Court in March 2025,
with a subsequent impact on the appointment of the Chair and Deputy Chair of the
Projects and Procurement Sub-Committee.

A revised terms of reference and composition for the Efficiency & Performance
Working Party is also proposed.

The Committee is also asked to make appointments to other Grand Committees and
Sub-Committees, and to note the positions of the Chairman and Deputy Chairman on
several other Committees as set out in the report.

Recommendations
Members are asked to:

a) Agree the composition and Terms of Reference of the Projects and Procurement
Sub-Committee, as set out in Appendix 1;

b) Appoint two Members of the Finance Committee to the Projects and Procurement
Sub-Committee;

c) Elect a Chair for the Projects and Procurement Sub-Committee and note that the
Deputy Chair of the Sub-Committee will be elected by the Sub-Committee at its
first meeting;

d) Note the appointment of the members of four other Committees to the Projects and
Procurement Sub-Committee; a representative each from the Community and
Children’s Services Committee, the Digital Services Committee, the Police
Authority Board and the Port Health and Environmental Services Committee;

Page 31



e) Agree the revised composition and Terms of Reference of the Efficiency and
Performance Working Party, as set out in Appendix 2;

f) Appoint four Members of the Committee to the Efficiency and Performance
Working Party;

g) agree the appointments of representatives to the following Committees and Sub-
Committees:

i. Corporate Services Committee - one vacancy*
ii. Investment Committee — two vacancies

iii. Streets and Walkways Sub (Planning & Transportation) Committee - one
vacancy;

h) agree the appointments of representatives for informal consultation with the
Court of Aldermen and the Policy and Resources Committee on Mayoralty and
Shrievalty Allowances (this is conventionally the Chairman and the Deputy
Chairman of the Finance Committee);

i) Note that the Chairman and/or Deputy Chairman are appointed to, or serve as
ex-officio Members on, the following Committees, and have nomination rights:

i. Audit and Risk Management Committee

ii. Digital Services Committee

iii. Investment Committee

iv. Capital Buildings Board

v. Civic Affairs Sub Committee

vi. Communications & Corporate Affairs Sub (Policy & Resources) Committee
vii. Resource, Risk & Estates (Police) Committee
viii. House Committee of the Guildhall Club;

J) Note that the Chairman and/or Deputy Chairman are appointed to, or serve as
ex-officio Members on, the following Committees, without nomination rights:

i. Policy & Resources Committee (ex-officio)
ii. Resource Allocation Sub (Policy and Resources) Committee

iii. Fraud and Cyber Crime Reporting and Analysis Service Procurement
Committee;

k) Note that the Chairman will be a Member of the Mayoral Visits Advisory
Committee;

[) agree that the Committee should meet no less than eight times a year.

1 The representative also sits on the Joint Consultative Committee and the Senior Remuneration Sub-
Committee.

Page 32



Main Report

Background

1.

This report asks Members to consider arrangements for its Projects and

Procurement Sub-Committee and Efficiency and Performance Working Party. It
also details the representatives that the Committee is requested to appoint onto
other City Corporation Committees or in other positions, or where the Chairman
and Deputy Chairman sit on other Committees and can appoint representatives.

Projects and Procurement Sub-Committee

2.

4.

In April 2024, the Finance Committee approved changes to the composition of the
Sub-Committee, taking effect in May 2024, to reduce its size and include
representation from those committees responsible for the largest procuring
departments: the Community and Children’s Services Committee, the Digital
Services Committee, the Police Authority Board and the Port Health and
Environmental Services Committee. It was also agreed that the Sub-Committee
should include representation from the Committee or the wider Court to bring
project experience to the Sub-Committee. Members noted that that the largest
procuring departments were likely to fluctuate over time, and that this annual
report could provide an opportunity to change which Committees were
represented. The current Committees are felt to remain appropriate.

. In March 2025, the Court of Common Council approved revisions to the Standing

Orders including a change in the appointment mechanisms for Sub-Committee
Chairs and Deputy Chairs. The role of Chair of a Sub-Committee is to be elected
from and by the membership of the appointing Committee, which in the case of the
Projects and Procurement Sub-Committee is the Finance Committee. The role of
Deputy Chair of a Sub-Committee is to be determined from and by the
membership of Sub-Committee itself, though this Member does not need to be a
Member of the Appointing Committee. Further information on the new appointment
processes can be found in Addendum 2a to the Standing Orders.

Members are asked to approve the Sub-Committee’s terms of reference for the
2025/26 civic year, as set out in Appendix 1, and appoint Members accordingly.

Efficiency & Performance Working Party

7.

The Efficiency & Performance Working Party was formed from the Efficiency &
Performance Sub-Committee in 2022 to continue that bodies work in scrutinising
plans for efficiency and performance across all the City Corporation’s departments
and the City of London Police.

. In Spring 2025, officers from the Chamberlain’s and Town Clerk’s Department

have undertaken a desktop based review of the Working Party’s terms of
reference, with a view to clarifying the Working Party’s responsibilities and
elements of its composition.

. Members are asked to approve the Working Party’s terms of reference for the

2025/26 civic year, and appoint Members accordingly.

Page 33



Representatives on other Committees
Corporate Services Committee

9. The Committee is responsible for personnel and establishment matters throughout
the City of London, including negotiations with the recognised trade unions. In
addition, it is the service committee for Town Clerk's Department and Comptroller
and City Solicitor's Department. The Finance Committee appoints one
representative, who also serves on the Joint Consultative Committee and the
Senior Remuneration Sub-Committee. Steve Goodman served as the Finance
Committee’s representative for the 2024/25 civic year.

Investment Committee

10. The Investment Committee is responsible for the strategic oversight and
monitoring of the performance of the City Corporation’s investments. The Finance
Committee can appoint two representatives onto the Committee. As noted at
paragraph 16, the Chairman or Deputy Chairman of the Finance Committee also
serve in ex-officio positions (or can appoint a nominee from the Committee’s
membership). Shahnan Bakth and Deputy Madush Gupta served as the Finance
Committee’s representatives for the 2024/25 civic year.

Streets and Walkways Sub (Planning & Transportation) Committee

11. The Streets and Walkways Sub (Planning & Transportation) Committee
responsible for agreeing schemes affecting the function and appearance of the
City’s highways and walkways. The Finance Committee appoints one
representative, and Brendan Barns served in this position for the 2024/25 civic
year.

Representatives for Consultation with the Court of Aldermen and Representatives of
the Policy & Resources Committee on Mayoralty and Shrievalty Allowances

12. This deputation is responsible for considering the allowance for expenses for the
offices of the Lord Mayor and the Sheriffs for the coming year. The Finance
Committee conventionally appoints the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman as
representatives, and this was the case in the 2024/24 civic year.

Chairman’s membership on other Committees

13. The Chairman of the Finance Committee, and in some cases also the Deputy
Chairman, serves on several other Committees. The Chairman is entitled to
nominate other Members to serve in their place on the following:

Audit and Risk Management Committee

14. The Audit and Risk Management Committee oversees the City of London
Corporation’s systems of internal control and makes recommendations to the
Finance Committee relating to the approval of the Annual Statements of
Accounts. The Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Finance Committee serve
as ex-officio Members on this Committee, and its composition was amended in
April 2024 to allow them to appoint representatives. The Chairman appointed
James St. John Davis to serve as his representative in 2024/25.

Page 34



Digital Services Committee

15. The Digital Services Committee is responsible for reviewing the objectives and
needs for the provision of digital services at the City of London Corporation. The
Chairman did not appoint a representative in 2024/45, while the Deputy
Chairman took up his place.

Investment Committee

16. The Chairman or Deputy Chairman has an ex-officio position on the Investment
Committee, and can nominate a representative from the membership of the
Finance Committee in their place. The Chairman took up his position in 2024/45.

Capital Buildings Board (Policy & Resources Committee)

17. The Capital Buildings Board is responsible for the management and oversight of
major capital building projects (i.e. those projects with an estimated budget of
£100 million or more), together with other such projects which have been referred
to it. The Chairman took up his place on the Board in 2024/25.

Civic Affairs Sub (Policy and Resources) Committee

18. This sub-committee is responsible for hospitality, ceremonials, outside bodies,
benefices, Member privileges and Member financial assistance. The Chairman
took up his position in 2024/45.

Communications Sub Committee (Policy and Resources) Committee

19. The Communications Sub Committee (Policy and Resources) Committee is
responsible for reporting on all matters relating to the City Corporation’s public
relations, public affairs and communication activities. Alderwoman Elizabeth King
served as the Chairman’s nominee in 2024/45.

Resource, Risk and Estates Committee

20. This sub-committee of the Police Authority Board is responsible for overseeing
the City of London Police’s financial and human resources, including scrutiny of
its corporate risks. The Deputy Chairman served on this Committee in 2023/24.
House Committee of the Guildhall Club

21. The House Committee of the Guildhall Club is not a Committee of the Court of
Common Council, but serves as the managing body for the Guildhall Club.
Deputy Randall Anderson served as the Chairman’s nominee in 2024/45.

Other Committees

22. The Chairman and Deputy Chairman also serve on the following Committees
without the ability to nominate substitutes:

i. Policy and Resources Committee and one of its sub-committees

a. Resource Allocation Sub (Policy and Resources) Committee (the
Chairman of the Finance Committee is the Deputy Chairman of this sub-
committee)

Page 35



ii. Fraud and Cyber Crime Reporting and Analysis Service Procurement
Committee

iii. Mayoral Visits Advisory Committee (Chairman only)

Frequency of meetings

22. The Committee is also required to review the frequency of its meetings on an
annual basis. The Committee approved in May 2024 that it should meet no less
than eight times a year, and it is proposed that this arrangement continues.

Conclusion

23. Members are asked to consider the various appointments made by the Finance
Committee.

Appendices
Appendix 1 — Terms of Reference of the Projects and Procurement Sub-Committee.
Appendix 2 — Terms of Reference of the Efficiency and Performance Working Party

Ben Dunleavy

Governance and Member Services Manager
Town Clerk’s Department
ben.dunleavy@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 36


mailto:ben.dunleavy@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Projects and Procurement Sub-Committee

Composition

The Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Finance Committee (or their nominees)

Two further Members to be appointed by the Finance Committee from either its
membership or the wider Court on the basis of skill sets

A representative from the Community and Children’s Services Committee

A representative from the Digital Services Committee

A representative from the Police Authority Board

A representative from the Port Health and Environmental Services Committee

Terms of Reference

To be responsible for:-

Projects

a)

b)

d)

Overseeing the total portfolio of projects overseen by the Chief Executive’s
Portfolio Management Board and receiving regular high level dashboard reports
on their progress, identifying notable risks and proposed mitigations;

Making proposals to the Resource Allocation Sub-Committee/the Policy and
Resources Committee for projects to be included in the capital/supplementary
revenue programme;

Determining how political oversight of relevant Tier 1 and Tier 2 projects can best
be achieved where several committees are stakeholders on the proposed project
and when projects in excess of £100 million require Policy & Resources
Committee oversight;

Reviewing the City Corporation’s project management processes, development
of project management skills and expertise and the systematic embedding of
commercial approaches that share investment and risk.

Procurement

e)

f)

9)

h)

To scrutinise and be responsible for value for money on all City of London
Corporation and City of London Police procurement contracts above thresholds
stipulated within the City of London Corporation’s Procurement Code (total
contract value) at key stages, including initial tender strategy to final contract
award sign off.

To consider and recommend all procurement contracts above thresholds
stipulated within the City of London Corporation’s Procurement Code to the
Finance Committee.

To invite representative(s) from the relevant Spend Committee to attend
meetings ensuring decisions are made corporately.

To provide officers with advice focussed specifically on value for money, and
consider lessons learned when major contracts are coming to an end (i.e. before
the (re)tender process begins).

To review and consider approvals of £4m waivers for the Chamberlain’s
department contracts.

Page 37



)

To work with the Finance Committee to review and to monitor performance
against the Chamberlain’s Departmental Business Plan and related corporate
initiatives in order to promote value for money and ensure compliance with the
UK Public Contract Regulations and the Corporation’s Procurement Code.

Page 38



Appendix 2

Efficiency and Performance Working Party

Composition

The Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Finance Committee

Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Projects and Procurement Sub Committee

Up to Ffour Members appointed by the Finance Committee

Terms of Reference

: " . :
The Working Party will make recommendations to the Finance Committee on
matters relating to:-

Assessing whether the resourcing of policies represent value for money in the
achievement of those policies and and based on the Corporate Plan priorities, as

referred to it by referring-anyrecommendations-to the Finance Committee or the

Chamberlain.

Monitoring performance, including any predicted overspends, against
Departmental Business Plans and referring matters to the relevant Finance
Committee{s) where the Working Party considers improvement in performance is
required.

Providing a steer to the Finance Committee fer on the Efficiency w\Workstreams
and then subsequently monitoring delivery progress and outcomes.

hiai ik ol L rel : o1
seedring Scrutinising whether sustainable savings already built inte into the

medium-term or 5 five-year financial plans for departments at higher risk of
budget overspend and relevant strategic themes have been secured.

Continue in their role in the Joint Resource Allocation Sub Committee and
Efficiency & Performance Working Greup Party, with all Scommittee chairmans
in the Corporation’s budget setting meeting held in-Jdanuary annually each year.

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



Agenda Item 11

City of London Corporation Committee Report

Committee: Dated:
Finance Committee 29t April 2025
Subject: Public report:
Review of Financial Regulations For Decision
This proposal: Providing Excellent
e delivers Corporate Plan 2024-29 outcomes Services,
e provides statutory duties Flourishing Public Spaces
Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or No

capital spending?

If so, how much? N/A
What is the source of Funding? N/A
Has this Funding Source been agreed with the N/A
Chamberlain’s Department?
Report of: The Chamberlain
Report author: John James, Chamberlain’s
Department
Summary

The City’s Financial Regulations set out procedures for officers to follow when
managing the City’s financial affairs. The regulations are maintained by Finance
Committee and were last reviewed in May 2024. This report is the subject of a recent
annual review undertaken by the Chamberlain’s department, together with staff from
other relevant departments, which makes recommendations for a number of changes
to update the regulations and deal with gaps and inconsistencies. Notable changes
are identified in Appendix A of this report.

Most of the reporting and approval thresholds are dealt with in other documents, rather
than the Financial Regulations, which deals more with process. These documents
include the Standing Orders, the Scheme of Delegations, the Project Procedure and
the Procurement Code. An increase in the level of such thresholds is considered as
these documents are reviewed.

At the present time a review is currently being undertaken on the Project Procedure
and some final work on the Procurement Code, both of which will not be finished until
later in the year. In addition, work is still to be completed on the precise accounting
model for the Natural Environment Charites. A delegation is therefore requested to
reflect any changes in process that may need to be made in the Financial Regulations,
that are agreed later in the year, as a result of these reviews.

The updated draft regulations for consideration are attached at Appendix B. For clarity
proposed changes have been tracked. This tracking will be removed, and the
document reformatted before publication.

Page 41



Recommendations

Members are asked to:

1.

Critically examine and if satisfied agree the revised Financial Regulations set out
in Appendix B;

Approve the continued delegation to the Chamberlain to manage Central
Contingencies, held under Finance Committee, as set out in para 2.2 of the
Financial Regulations, noting this delegation excludes Finance Committee’s own
contingency which will continue to be managed by this committee; and

Agree a delegation to the Chamberlain to amend the regulations in respect of any
further changes that may need to be made as a result of the review of Project
Procedure, the Procurement Code, accounting for Natural Environment charities
and to tidy up numbering and formatting of the Financial Regulations document.

Main Report

Background

1.

The City’s Financial Regulations are governed by Standing Order 48 of Court of
Common Council which states that:

i. The Financial Regulations form part of the City Corporation’s overall system
of financial management, accountability and control and shall be complied with
by all City of London Corporation staff.

ii. The Financial Regulations are maintained by the Finance Committee.

These regulations were last reviewed in May 2024 and a working party established
by the Chamberlain’s Department has recently undertaken a review. The working
party consisted of Chamberlain’s staff, covering a number of financial disciplines
together with staff from the City’s Commercial Team, City Bridge Foundation
charity and the Corporate Strategy team.

Financial regulations lay down the procedures that officers should apply when
managing the City’s financial affairs. It is therefore, important that the financial
regulations are clear and kept up to date.

The review had two key aims:

To identify gaps and inconsistencies in the current regulations, to streamline the
regulations where appropriate, especially in relation to our charities, and to
improve consistency, efficiency and clarity.

To check the interrelationship with City regulations and procedures such as
Standing Orders; Procurement Code; and the Project Procedures, to ensure there
is consistency.

It should be noted that the Financial Regulations deal mainly with process rather
than reporting and approval thresholds. These are dealt with in other documents
such as Standing Orders, the Scheme of Delegations, the Project Procedures and
the Procurement Code. The need to raise the level of these thresholds is
considered as these documents are reviewed.

When undertaking this review, in addition to the members of the working party,
advice was sought from a number of teams including Internal Audit, City

Page 42



Revenues, Payroll, VAT, Accounts Payable, Insurance, Comptroller & City
Solicitor and Digital Services. Their comments have been incorporated into the
revised regulations.

Current Position

7.

The draft regulations are set out at Appendix B. For ease of understanding
proposed changes have been tracked. As the regulations were last reviewed in
May 2024, there are not too many proposed changes. Many of the changes are
presentational. Changes of substance, which are worthy of note, are also set
out in Appendix A

Delegation to Chamberlain

8.

There has been a long-standing delegation to the Chamberlain set out in para
2.2 of the Financial Regulations concerning the management of central
contingencies held under Finance Committee. Examples of these include
provisions for inflation, pay award and transformation. It is sometime since this
delegation was reaffirmed and Members are asked to confirm the continuance
of the delegation. This request excludes Finance Committee’s own contingency
which will continue to be managed directly by your committee.

Also, at the time of preparation of this report, a review of project governance
and of the procurement regulations is being undertaken, but these have yet to
be completed. There is also an ongoing review on the accounting arrangements
for the Natural Environment charities as they transition from a deficit funded to
a grant model. It is requested that the Chamberlain is given delegated authority,
once this review is finalised, to reflect any consequent required changes in the
updated regulations.

Annual Review

10.

In order to keep changes to a reasonable number, and to ensure the document
remains up to date, it was previously agreed that the review would be
undertaken on an annual basis. It is therefore intended that the regulations will
be reviewed again in 2026 with any proposed changes brought to your
committee in the Spring of that year.

Appendices

Appendix A — Significant Proposed Changes to the Regulations
Appendix B — Draft Financial Regulations (with proposed changes tracked)

John James Harinder Thandi

Head of Finance Finance Business Partner
Chamberlains Department Chamberlains Department

E: john.james@cityoflondon.gov.uk E: harinder.thandi@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 43


mailto:john.james@cityoflondon.gov.uk
mailto:harinder.thandi@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



APPENDIX A

Significant Proposed Changes to the Requlations

Changes of substance worthy of note include

Section I: General. Changes to para 1.1, which reinforce the need for officer
boards, with decision making powers, to consult the Chamberlain on all
reports with financial implications prior to making a decision.

Section 2: Resource Allocation, Revenue Estimates and Capital Budgets.
Para 2.8 added to give guidance on proper narration of journals; para 2.10
(iv) and (v) adds requirement for chief officers to report significant variances
that can’t be met from existing overall budgets, to the Chamberlain and ELB,
as they arise and with potential mitigations; para 2.11 (iii) emphasises the
need for chief officers to consult when recharging costs to other chief
officers; para 2.15 confirms savings made corporately will be held
corporately to meet overall budget pressures; para 2.16 (iv) and (v)
amended to reflect the agreed position for the treatment of year end
balances for Natural Environment charities depending on whether they are
grant funded or still deficit funded. Para 2.19 has been amended to make it
clear for City Bridge Foundation and other charities that any designated fund
established must be subject to agreement of either the Chamberlain or the
City Bridge Foundation Board depending on which charity.

Section 3: Accounting. New paragraph 3.5 included to provide a duty for
Chief Officers to provide details to the Chamberlain to allow correct
accounting entries to be made in the City’s accounts to comply with the
adopted IFRS 16 standard. A new para 3.6 has been included to cover lease
buy decisions.

Section 5: Risk Management. Reworded para 5.6 to reflect the
Corporation’s Risk Management Strategy 2024-29.

Section 8: Procurement. Amendment to para 8.5 to reinforce the need to
raise purchase orders (PO) in accordance with the City’s ‘No PO No Pay’

policy.

Section 9: Payment of Accounts. Amendment to para 9.6 to give more
guidance on inclusion in or amendment to the authorised signature list.

Section 10: Imprest Accounts (Petty Cash). Para 10.9 amended to ensure
proper reconciliation is undertaken when the staff member responsible
changes.

Section 12: Custody and Security of Assets. Para 12.9 amended to clarify

what would happen to funds from the disposal of assets originally funded
from ring-fenced funds

Page 45



Section 15: Income and Banking Arrangements. Para 15.3 amended to
ensure City Bridge Foundation Finance Director is notified of any potential
additional income for CBF; para 15.19 amended to clarify that for our
charities the duty to recover costs is a responsibility of the trustees and can
be set aside by the trustees if it is in the best interests of furthering the
charities objectives; paras 15.22-15.25 have been amended to set out the
position for our charities on accepting voluntary income or property in
accordance with Charity Commission guidance.

Section 17: Grant Making. The old para 17.3 has been deleted as it just
duplicated what was in the Charity SORP. Para 17.4 (which now becomes
17.3) has been amended to given further guidance on recognising grants
and a new para 17.4 has been included on maintenance and reconciliation
of grants made on the Salesforce Grant Management system.

Section 23: Document Retention. This has been checked by the Comptroller
that all legislation quoted is still relevant/extant.

Page 46



APPENDIX B

City of London
Corporation

FINANCIAL REGULATIONS

Approved by the

Finance Committee

Page 47



Contents

SECTION |. INTRODUGCTION ....cootrecrnassursssansssnsssnnissanssneismisamssssssssssssssrsessasensasssanrasssssansssssssssasssnssnsasasssns 3
SECTION II. RECENT VERSION HISTORY .....ccocesutensusrimemmsmennisnisesessosssessensasmsensensesssnssasenssssasssssnsansens 3
SECTION 1. GENERAL ..........occnmicminiimnmniicsimn s inesis e s s esnsss s s st esassmsssssassas s snsans ssmssnsssasnnnns 4
SECTION 2. RESOURCE ALLOCATION, REVENUE ESTIMATES AND CAPITAL BUDGETS................. 7
SECTION 3. ACCOUNTING.......ccccorverieniernesresserssrnssnensassnssssssssssessisassasssansnnessassstssassssssss assssnssnssasnases 1545
SECTION 4. INTERNAL AUDIT ....coivtirerernnesnemsammsnesnmessisassssisssssesssssisnnissinssnssssssssssssssnssassasnssasssassassens 1747
SECTION §. RISK MANAGEMENT.........cccceetiermesnremmniniraiisssisssnencssssenemsensmrstsessnssnissnsssssssnssnssansans 1949
SECTION 6. TREASURY MANAGEMENT ......ccccreieiremmiiiesisinisinisssnosinisnessnssasssssssasssnsssnssssssansensossenes 212%
SECTION 7. INVESTMENTS, BORROWING AND TRUST FUNDS.......cccnmimrrnnnrnnsninnnsnnsnscnann. 2323
SECTION 8. PROCUREMENT ......oicicsninmssnessnessemsnsmesissesstssssssnisanssesssassassansassassassnsonsesssssassonssnsssnanes 2424
SECTION 9. PAYMENT OF ACCOUNTS .....covmeierrcimssirastssinsnissisannisississsisessansssnssssssasseasssnessasans 2626
SECTION 10. IMPREST ACCOUNTS (PETTY CASHY).......ccnvunennriininnrnnisnsnsnnssasmsnsmensssees 2929
SECTION 11. TRAVELLING AND SUBSISTENCE CLAIMS.......ccocoimeninnninnisnssnnssnsnnsnseseens 318+
SECTION 12. CUSTODY AND SECURITY OF ASSETS......ccccccominnniemmenmenninssscssnssnssnassniaisassansesens 3338
SECTION 13. INSURANCE ....c..cvcnisrnermmssmmemessmcseisnmenisinesinessssnsnassinsasassassassssessansnsorssssassansensossssns 3535
SECTION 14. SECURITY AND DATA PROTECTION .......cccoiininennnmnnininnessssnsinsisiseiassesnes 3636
SECTION 15. INCOME & BANKING ARRANGEMENTS .......ccciniiinimimniennsnsmensienmsmsmmmmmems 3836
SECTION 16. PARTNERSHIPS ........ccotiirmiciiiiniime s anisissisessaesmssssssss s sssssssssssaes 414t
SECTION 17. GRANT-MAKING .....ccceremrinmirsersninressssssstssssasinesisaninisasstissssnsesssssnssasssnsransasssssassnsssnes 4242
SECTION 18. SALARIES, WAGES AND PENSIONS........ccocccmiiarniannnmnmsmnisenesesscssnsnsn 4545
SECTION 19. INVENTORIES .......ccorniiremrimenscnsmmssisninsisiissisamsmnsssesn e essassassssassssssasenes 4646
SECTION 20. STOCKS AND STORES. ........ccoociciimmmiiiiininisssseisessnsssmssssesssssssassss s 4848
SECTION 21. MOTOR VEHICLES......ccooriicerirssessisionsninsisansnmssiasssnsssssssssessenssassssssssssansaneas 4949
SECTION 22. ENTERTAINMENT & HOSPITALITY ...cciviiiiirininnniieennemssinmisemnenresesesssenensensas £056
SECTION 23. DOCUMENT RETENTION....c.cciininimiiiimimiienninaessnsmeserasessasensesssnsssssesssnsansanes 515¢
SECTION 24. VERIFICATION OF CONTRACTORS AND CONSULTANTS FINAL ACCOUNTS ....... 5856

2

Page 48



SECTION I. INTRODUCTION

Standing Order of Court of Common Council of the City of London Corporation (the City)
states that:

1. The Financial Regulations form part of the City’s overall system of financial management,
accountability and control and shall be complied with by all City of London Corporation
staff.

2. The Financial Regulations are maintained by the Finance Committee.

This version of the Financial Regulations was approved by the Finance Committee on

These Financial Regulations have been adopted for the City Corporation in the discharge of all
of its functions and Funds’, including as Trustee of City Bridge Foundation?. Where appropriate
the City Bridge Foundation Board may be consulted on any future changes to ensure that new
arrangements adopted by the City as a Trustee of the City Bridge Foundation are in the best
interests of the charity.

All staff have a general responsibility for taking reasonable action to provide for the security of the
assets under their control, and for ensuring that the management and use of these resources is
legal, is properly authorised, provides value for money and achieves best value. Failure to follow
Financial Regulations may result in action under disciplinary procedures.

SECTION II. RECENT VERSION HISTORY

These Regulations

intended to be a high-level
document that provides a framework to support the City Corporation’s statutory and other legal
responsibilities for managing its finances, encompassing all Funds for which it is responsible.

It also allows the City Corporation to further strengthen and improve its approach to finance
management enhancing its ability to deliver its corporate aims and objectives successfully.

These regulations should be regulary updated to reflect changes within other policy areas and
reference to these Financial Regulations should be made when reporting or updating other policy

covered by these regulations.

1 Unless the context provides otherwise, "Funds” in these Regulations refers collectively to City Fund (including the
Police Fund, the Housing Revenue Fund, Pension Fund), City’s Estate, City Bridge Foundation, any other charitable
trusts for which the Clty Corporation is charity Trustee and s required to account for separately, or otherwise any
charitable trust or legal entity where the City Corporation has been given authority to manage that entity’s funds within
the City Corporation’s financial systems and management controls to the extent that authority provides; and “Fund”
shall refer to any one of those Funds.

2 City Bridge Foundation is the working name of Bridge House Estates (which also previously used the working name
of ‘City Bridge Trust’ for grant making activities) Bridge House Estates is the legal name of the charity.

Page 49



‘Date Comments
'October 2005 | Updated Financial Regulations.

September 20089 | Updated Financial Regulations and split Regulations into Part 1 & Part

2

January 2018 U.pdated Financial Regulations and Financial Regulations Part 2

developed into the Finance Manual.

April 2021 | Updated Financial Regulations with Part 1 and part 2 Regulations

consolidated into one document.

June 2023 Updated Financial Regulations to incorporate amendments to reflect the

establishment of the City Bridge Foundation Board, and otherwise for the
good administration of charitable funds.

SECTION 1. GENERAL

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Any report to the Court of Common Council, its committees or its partners which has financial
implications should be prepared in consultation with the Chamberlain who shall incorporate
in the report such comments as considered necessary. Reports relating to financial matters
shall be provided to the Chamberlain in sufficient time for consultation no less than 28 days
before the date of the first meeting due to consider the report. The Chamberlain reserves
the right to delay the submission of any report with financial implications which has not been
submitted in time for adequate consideration. For substantial or complex reports,
departments are expected to engage with in at an early stage of
report preparation to ensure there is time to consider complex financial issues.

q pply 0

Qaory

These Financial Regulations use Local Authority compliance as the benchmark for all funds
under the City Corporation's control, except where otherwise expressly provided for in these
Regulations and always subject to specific regulatory requirements relating to charitable
Funds.

For all charities for which the City Corporation is Trustee, including as charity Trustee of City
Bridge Foundation (Reg. Charity No. 1035628), regard must be had to each charity's
governing document and relevant guidance issued by the Charity Commission, in complying
with reporting and regulatory requirements and in the financial management of each charity.

These Financial Regulations should be read in conjunction with any other instructions
relating to financial management, accountability and control, particularly:

¢ Standing Orders of the Court of Common Council
The Officer Scheme of Delegation

Corporate Project Procedures

Procurement Code and Rules

Employee Handbook

Data Protection Policies and Procedures

Page 50



1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

The Financial Services Director as Head of Profession for Finance in the City shall ensure
these Regulations are kept up to date, and report to the Finance Committee recommending
any changes considered necessary. The Finance Director for City Bridge Foundation and
charities will recommend any changes needed

¥ 1S,

The Financial Services Director shall be consulted in any cases involving the interpretation
of the Financial Regulations and their decision, as to their meaning and application shall be
final, providing such decision does not have the effect of altering the meaning of a Standing
Order or other regulation or contract approved by a Committee or the Court of Common
Council.

Notwithstanding the relaxation of certain Financial Regulations relating to the Barbican
Centre Managing Director’s local risk budget and the execution of the Police Authority’s
Policing Plan, the Chamberiain reserves the right to demand from the Managing Director
and the Commissioner of Police such additional information as is required to fulfil their
statutory obligations and their overall financial monitoring responsibilities.

All sums referred to in these Regulations are exclusive of Value Added Tax (VAT) unless
specifically stated.

All Information Technology (IT) expenditure and development work must conform to the
Digital and IT Strategy and to standards and other guidance issued by the
City's Director of Digital Information and Technology as Head of Profession for IT in the City
Corporation.

1.10 The City Corporation’s Director of Digital Information and Technology as Head of Profession

1.11

for IT shall define the corporate IT standards to be followed by Chief Officers and is to be
consulted on related matters such as IT staffing and their remuneration. The corporate IT
strategy is to encompass these standards and any other E-business or E-government
strategy agreed by the City Corporation's Director of Digital Information and Technology.
Each Chief Officer shall ensure that a written departmental IT strategy is produced which
conforms to the corporate IT strategy, (and to the corporate E-business and E-government
strategies) and that this is submitted annually for the approval of the City Corporation’s
Director of Digital Information and Technology in the form requested. Expenditure on IT
equipment, software and services which does not conform to the approved departmental
strategy shall be the subject of a prior written proposal for the approval of the City
Corporation’s Director of Digital Information and Technology. For the avoidance of doubt,
decisions which affect IT resourcing of City Bridge Foundation, shall be required to be taken
in the best interests of the charity, including to consider the benefits to the charity of using
the City's IT systems and resources, and operating within its overarching IT strategies and
policies.

Chief Officers are responsible for ensuring that all staff in their departments are aware of the
existence and content of the Financial Regulations and that they comply with them.

1.12 All City Corporation staff have a responsibility to maintain the integrity and security of

information which is under their control by virtue of their employment (including confidential
5

Page 51



and personal information, held in any format). All staff shall comply with the requirements of
the Data Protection Act, UK GDPR and the City Corporation’s policies and procedures in
relation to data protection which can be found on the Information Management Strategy.

Page 52



SECTION 2. RESOURCE ALLOCATION, REVENUE ESTIMATES AND CAPITAL
BUDGETS

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

Standing Order 48 sets out the City’s corporate governance arrangements for budget setting
including resource allocation, revenue estimates and capital budgets. The Chamberiain is
responsible for notifying Chief Officers on the timetable and processes for the preparation
of the forthcoming year’s resource allocation, revenue estimates, and capital budgets. Chief
Officers shall supply such information to the Chamberlain as may be required so as to
comply with the timetable and processes stipulated and prepare detailed revenue and
capital estimates of income and expendlture in accordance with the budget policy authorised
under Standing Order 48 and in consultation with the Chamberlain who shall critically
scrutinise the estimates before submigsion, for City Fund and City’s Estate to the relevant
Service Committees, and for City Bridge Foundation to the City Bridge Foundation Board,

for decision.

City Fund and City's Estate, overall budgets are set by the Court of Common Council upon
the recommendation of the Finance Committee in March for the
successive financial year. City Fund and City's Estate Service Committee budgets are
prepared within the resources allocated by the Policy and Resources Committee and, with
the exception of the Policy and Resources and Finance Committee, such budgets do not
include any contingencies. However the budgets directly overseen by the Finance
Committee also include central contingencies, with delegations to the Chamberlain, to meet
unforeseen and/or exceptional items that may be identified across the City Corporation’s
range of activities. Requests for allocations from the contingencies should demonstrate why
the costs cannot, or should not, be met from existing provisions. For central contingencies,
approval is required by the Financial Services Director in consultation with the Chamberlain

For City Bridge Foundation, the charity's overall annual budget is set annually by the Court
of Common Council for the City as charity Trustee, upon the recommendation of the City
Bridge Foundation Board. As noted at Regulation 2.1 above, detailed revenue budgets and
capital budgets for the charity are in accordance with Standing Order 48 set by the City
Bridge Foundation Board, led by the Managing Director of City Bridge Foundation in
consultation with Chief Officers whose departmental resources are made available to the
charity, with those costs and expenses of the Trustee being re-charged to the charity. Within
the budget set by the Court, the City Bridge Foundation Board is responsible for allocating
resources as required in the charity’s best interests (including contingencies) and monitoring
income and expenditure (both revenue and capital) against the charity's budget and
reserves policy (also set by the Court). As with City Fund and City's Estate, request for
allocations from the City Bridge Foundation central continency allocation should
demonstrate to that Board why the costs cannot, or should not, be met from existing
provisions.

Revenue Budget Management — Objectives

Budget management ensures that resources allocated by members are used for their
intended purposes and that these resources are properly accounted for. Budgetary control

is a continuous process enabling the City Corporation to review and adjust its budget targets,
7

Page 53



2.5

2.6

2.7

if required throughout the financial year. Committee budgets are set for both local and central
risk within the City Corporations overall budget for each Fund. Local risk expenditure and
income is deemed to be directly controllable by Chief Officers. Examples of local risk items
includes most employee costs, regularly scheduled maintenance checks, utility costs,
cleaning and stationery. Central risk are items of spend or income that can be affected by
external factors such that Chief Officers are not held directly accountable for budgetary
performance._ However for both central and local risk they are expected to try to manage
activities within budget and where there are expenditure pressures to maximise income,
where possible, to try and fund these. Recharge risk budgets relate in the main to support
services and functions that are recharged on an appropriate apportionment basis to front
line services to enable the total cost of service to be calculated. Central and recharge risk
items include levies and precepts, investment income (including property), capital charges,
central support costs, insurance, rating revaluation changes, grants/support earmarked for
specific organisations/themes and centrally controlled and recharged IT expenditure.
Recharges to charities and other ring fenced funds may only reflect the reasonable costs
and expenses incurred by the City in administering that function in accordance with relevant
applicable accounting framework. Budgets set for City Bridge Foundation are not separated
between central and local risk.

By identifying and explaining variances against budgetary targets, the City Corporation can
identify changes in trends and resource requirements at the earliest opportunity. It is the
responsibllity of each budget manager, Chief Officer and Committee to manage the budgets
under their responsibility and report any expected variances as early as possible, along with
potential mitigations.

Revenue Budget Management — Key Controls

Budget holders will be responsible for income and expenditure on cost centre budgets for
which they have been assigned responsibility on Oracle and that this responsibility should
be aligned as closely as possible to the decision making that commits the expenditure.

Budget holders are responsible for all income and expenditure on their cost centres including
the recording and approval via appropriate workflows on Oracle.

Where journals are prepared by finance business partners, or others, either to make coding

corrections or for vear end adjustments, staff should that thev are adeguately narrated so
the purpose of the adjustment is clear or where appropriate they are supparted by a detailed

working paper.

2.82.9 Business Plan objectives and key results are monitored in conjunction with the budget and

necessary action taken to align service outputs with the budget.

Revenue Budget Management

2:92.10 The Chamberlain is responsible for establishing an appropriate framework of

budgetary management and control through business partnering that enables the following:

i. Budget management by Committee being exercised within the annual resource

envelopes allocated to it unless the Court determines otherwise. For City Bridge
8

Page 54



vi.

vii.

Foundation, the City Bridge Foundation Board has the freedom to operate in
accordance with the overall budget and policy framework for the charity set by the
Court, including any reserves policy or allocation of funds for application against the
charity’s ancillary object.

Each Chief Officer having available timely and accurate information on income and
expenditure for each cost centre to enable managers to fulfil their responsibilities.

All officers responsible for committing expenditure and generating income complying
with corporate financial guidance.

Significant variances from approved budgets being reviewed promptly and if necessary
action taken by Chief Officers. Where a significant variance cannot be contained within
a Chief Officer's existing overal! local or central risk budget they shall report the issue
to the Chamberlian/Financial Services Director at the earliest opportunity together with

proposed mitigations.

Regular forecasts on income and expenditure compared to the approved budget for
City Fund and City's Estate being prepared and reported to Executive Leadership
Board (ELB) and Finance Committee on a quarterly basis, for City Bridge Foundation
to the City Bridge Foundation Board, and for any charitable Fund to the Committee
having delegated responsibility for that charity’s administration and management.
Significant budget pressures, including emerging financial risks, should be reported to
ELB between guarterly reports on an exception basis.

Ensuring spending remains within agreed resource envelopes by regular monitoring of
the budget. Working alongside the Chamberlain’s business partners to provide regular
monitoring information to committee with appropriate explanations and corrective
actions required as necessary.

To ensure that the business plan is regularly monitored in conjunction with the budget
to ensure the delivery of service objectives and any corrective action taken.

2102.11 Chief Officers for services are responsible for:

Ensuring prior approval of any new initiative not included in the business plan or budget
that could have one-off or ongoing financial consequences.

Ensuring compliance with the scheme of virement (see paragraph 2.2048).
Consulting with relevant Director or Chief Officer where it appears a budget proposal

will impact on another Directors/Chief Officers service or level of activity. This includes
situations where costs are recharged between Chief Officers local risk budgets.

21212 For all Funds, other than the City Bridge Foundation, where a Chief Officer is unable
to contain expenditure within their existing local risk resources due to essential growth (for
example to meet a new legislative requirement) or a one-off additional cost, a business case
for a budget increase should initially be discussed with the Chamberlain to agree the

9
Page 55



potential funding strategy in line with para 2.2 above. The business case will only go forward
once the Chamberlain has agreed the funding strateqy.

2422.13 For City Bridge Foundation where a relevant designated fund is held, potential
overspendings will be reported to the City Bridge Foundation Board and managed against
that designated fund. Any other budget changes would follow the process in paragraph
2.313 with the report going to the City Bridge Foundation Board.

2.14 No officer should commit the Corporation to expenditure more than any approved estimate
without either first seeking the appropriate approval or making an appropriate virement as
described in paragraph 2.2018 below, in accordance with SO 48(108).

2332.15 Where savings are made corporately on goods or services. whose costs are
recharged to Chief Officers budgets, the Chamberlain, where appropriate will make an
adiustment to local risk budgets so that the savina can be taken centrally and used to offset
other budgetary pressures.

Treatment of Year End Balances

2-142.16 Any deficit on the total of a Chief Officer’s local risk budgets is required to be carried
forward and recovered from within the department’s budget allocation for the following year
unless specifically waived directly by the Finance Committee, other than matters relating to
City Bridge Foundation which will be determined by the City Bridge Foundation Board in
accordance with any overall budget set by the Court in each year. Subject to the prior
approval of the Chamberiain in consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the
Resource Allocation Sub (Policy and Resources) Committee (RASC) or the City Bridge
Foundation Board for City Bridge Foundation and the requirements at sub-paragraphs i.-
ixviii below, surpluses on a department’s local risk budgets may also be carried forward
provided that these do not include any fortuitous savings outside the control of the Chief
Officer, and, any cumulative underspending which is to be carried forward is limited to 10%
of the Chief Officer’s local risk budget, up to a general maximum of £500,000 or £1,000,000
in the case of the City Surveyor. Applications for carry-forwards will be assessed by the
following criteria:

i.  Carry forward requests can be up to 10% or £500k (whichever is the lesser) of the final
agreed local risk budget excluding budgets brought forward from the previous year.
However, the City Surveyor may carry forward up to £1m and the Chamberlain and
Director of Digital Information and Technology may each carry forward a maximum of
£500k.

ii. In respect of the above the City Schools, Police, the Barbican Centre (local risk
budget), Natural EnvironmentGper—Spaces Charities (fundraising budgets), City
Bridge Foundation, the Guildhall School of Music & Drama, the Cemetery, and the
Housing Revenue Account, are excluded as separate carry forward arrangements
apply. In the case of the Barbican Centre Managing Director’s financial target,
surpluses of up to 15% of the local risk budget may be carmried forward and the
Managing Director of the Barbican Centre may incur a deficit of up to £500,000 at any
one time, to be repayable in the following financial year. This deficit should be by

10
Page 56



exception and should not be on a continual basis from one financial year to the next.
The reasonableness of this arrangement will be reviewed annually.

ii. _In respect of the Police Authority’s Policing Plan budget, unspent balances, excluding

variations in capital financing costs, shall be carried forward, subject to periodic review
as to the level of balances.

iv. In respect of Natural Environment charities that are deficit funded by the City
Corporation, fundraising income earned from donations and legacies to the charities
shall be ring-fenced and where necessary, carried forward as part of the charity's
unrestricted free reserves, or restricted income funds if legally required under the terms
of the donation. However, where the charity is in deficit at the end of the financial vear,
any unrestricted funds would need to be applied to offset the deficit first and foremost
(subject to any legal restrictions attaching to those funds, or decisions taken by the
Trustee in accordance with charity law reguirements to remove them). after which point
the remaining surplus from the income received can be carried forward as part of the
charity’s unrestricted free reserves. or restricted income funds (as above).

v. Inrespect of Natural Environment where a charity has moved to arant funding from the
City Corporation, any local risk surplus may be retained in the Charity’s funds for future
use. However, where the charily is in deficit on the grant at the end of the financial year

the advice of the Chamberlain sought on the most appropriate accounting treatment.

ievi.  Fortuitous savings clearly outside the control of Chief Officers should not be eligible for
carry forward; instead it should be demonstrated that underspends are the result of
planned/managed strategies and support the City’s overall Corporate priorities.

wvvil.  Carry forward requests should be approved to fund a specific purpose and must
comply with the carry forward rules, i.e. relating to planned spend during the financial
year the carry forward is being requested from, however delayed due to unforeseen
circumstances not within the control of the department.

vivili.  Each individual agreed carry forward is ring-fenced to the purpose specified.

vitix.  Unspent balances should generally only be carried forward and applied in the Fund in

which they were generated.

2162.17 Other than for City Bridge Foundation any requests for carry-forward from Central
Risk budgets are required to be requested at first point from the Financial Services Director.

If approved, all such requests would then be provided to the Chamberlain in consultation
11

Page 57



with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Resource Allocation Sub {Policy and
Resources) Committee (RASC) for their consideration and potential approval. For City
Bridge Foundation approval of carmy-forward requests from departmental central risk
budgets funded from City Bridge Foundation shall be sought from the City Bridge Foundation
Board following consultation with the Chamberlain or his/her authorised delegate.

Reserves

2162.18 Other than for City Bridge Foundation, which will seek approval from the City Bridge
Foundation Board., noNe earmarked reserve, designated fund or other balance sheet
provision shall be created without first consulting with the Assistant Director of Strategic
Finance who will advise on whether the proposal can be supported and the further approvals
that are required.

2-472.19 Other than for City Bridge Foundation, any drawdown of earmarked reserves at the
end of the financial year will aiso be subject to the approval of the Financial Services
DlrectorIChambeNaln as part of the year end process For Clty Brldge FoundatlonFund

the—Gﬂy—Bndge—Fund—BeeFd and other chantles fund accountlnq does not aIIow for
‘earmarked reserves’' but any designated funds which are established should be subject to
agreement of the Chamberiain or. for City Bridge Foundation. their authorised delegate and
the CBF Board.

Scheme of Virement

2482.20  The scheme of virement is as follows:
i. Virement is the transfer of budget from one budget line, as a result of savings or
additional income, to another budget line to facilitate spending on that budget line. No
Virement will be permitied between funds in the year, nor is virement normally allowed
in respect of Central Risk budget lines.

ii. Subjectto paragraph (iii) below, Chief Officers, or nominated officers previously notified
to the Chamberiain, are authorised to approve virements within funds for Local Risk
budget estimates. These virements are generally only allowed up to a total of £500,000
in one financial year, but In the case of the City Surveyor this financial limit is
£1,000,000 in one financial year. This being subject to the savings utilised not arising
from any specific amount approved from the Finance Committee contingencies, or any
sums specifically approved by the Policy and Resources Committee for Policy
initiatives. Chief Officers shall also advise if the proposed virement is for a single
financial year or is ongoing. Chief Officers shall advise the appropriate Committee and
Finance Committee of any significant virements and gain prior approval if they raise
significant policy issues or will result in total virements of any Chief Officer exceeding
£500,000 (or £1,000,000 in the case of the City Surveyor).

ii. The Barbican Centre and City Bridge Foundation Managing Directors may, as relevant
to the budgets for which they are responsible, authorise all virements between those
costs and incomes which comprise the annual local risk budget, and the Commissioner
of Police may authorise virements between all heads within the Policing Plan Budget,

with the exception of financing and support costs, which fall under the SR recharge
12

Page 58



and subject to prior consultation with the Financial Services Director or the CBF
Finance Director where a virement is proposed from a non-staffing to a staffing budget.

Manaaing Capital and Suppiementary Revenue Project Budgets

2492.21 Capital and Supplementary Revenue Project budgets (“project budgets”) are
generally approved and managed in accordance with the Corporate Project Procedure via
the gateway process and associated guidance. City Bridge Foundation projects are
managed in accordance with the Corporate Project Procedure subject to the City Bridge
Foundation Board being the responsible Committee for all decisions except where reserved
to the Court of Common Council. Further, the City Corporation’s Major Projects (under City
Fund and City’s Estate) are not required to follow the gateways and are under the direct
control and management of the Capital Buildings or Policy and Resources Committees.

| 2:202.22 Capital projects are major one-off expenditures (>£50k_capitalisation threshold)
relating to the acquisition, creation or enhancement of an asset that yields benefits to the
authority and the service it provides for a period of more than one year. For example, cyclical
replacements of major components (e.g. windows, roofs, M&E infrastructure) are capital but
cyclical repairs are not. The “Supplementary Revenue Projects” (SRP) classification was
created to cover project expenditure controlied in the same way as capital projects that does
not meet the accounting definition of capital expenditure, e.g. preliminary project costs at
feasibility and option appraisal stages and one-off major repairs (>£50k). Classification of
expenditures between capital and SRP is an accounting decision which lies with the
Chamberlain.

2242.23 Project budgets approved via the gateways must be supported by a confirmed
source of funding before they can progress. For City Fund and City's Estate central funding
of projects is allocated via the annual capital bid process, with the approval sought from the
Resource Allocation Sub and Policy and Resources Committees and subject to any
reservations of the Court. For City Bridge Foundation, all approvals shall be sought from the
City Bridge Foundation Board including approval for capital projects which are cross cutting

| across all three funds (City Fund, City's Estate, ity g ) within
the framework set by, and subject to any reservations to, the Court.

2222.24 Project budgets are not generally specific to a financial year unless the source of
funding is restricted by time (e.g. external grant funding). Maintaining an annual profile is
however an essential requirement of each Project Manager.

2-232.25 Project expenditure is recorded within the City’s Project Accounting module in a
timely manner (as a minimum on a quarterly basis or in line with the Chamberlain’'s forecast
timetable)} and must not be charged to local or central risk codes, with the exception of staff
time which is recharged from revenue to project budgets on a regular basis as above.

2:242.26 Capiltal expenditure and capital income is subject to approval in accordance with
the Corporate Project Procedure and must be accounted separately. Particular legal and
accounting rules may apply to charitable funds. Expenditure in excess of £50k which meets
the definition of Capital/ Supplementary Revenue projects as set out in the Corporate Project
Procedure must be accounted separately from local or central risk revenue expenditure.

13
Page 59



Virement of Capital and Supplementary Revenue Project Budaets

2.27 _ Virements within approved project budgets are permitted, provided the overall
approved project sum is not exceeded and the scope remains unaffected. Movement
between budget heads (e.g. from fees to works) requires approval of Chief Officer and Head
of Finance other than for City Bridge Foundation. For City Bridge Foundation the approval
shall be sought from the Finance Director of City Bridge Foundation and the Managing
Director of V a :

2-262.28 Increases to an approved project sum must be agreed in accordance with the
Project Procedure. Project Budgets cannot be vired between projects. unless approval is
sought from Resource Allocation Sub and Policy and Resources Committees.

14
Page 60



SECTION 3. ACCOUNTING

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.6

All accounting procedures and financial records shall be determined by the Chamberlain,
and any changes require the prior approval of the Chamberiain.

Separation of Duties

So far as possible, In the allocation of accounting duties, the following principles shall be
observed:

i. The duties of providing information regarding sums due to or from the City and of
calculating, checking and recording these sums, shall be separated as completely as
possible from the duty of collecting or disbursing them.

i. Officers charged with the duty of examining and checking the accounts of cash
transactions shall not themselves be engaged in any of these transactions.

ii. Each of the Funds, with legal obligations requiring their separate administration, shall
have a separate balance sheet, and all charitable funds shall be accounted for
separately and processes followed which demonstrate that the charity’s funds are being
administered correctly and, in that charity’s best interests.

Assets

The City Corporation owns and is otherwise responsible (whether or not as charity trustee)
for a wide range of assets. For assets to appear on the balance sheet as qualifying items
(or groups of items such as Cars) must be valued at £50,000 or more. Low monetary value
assets may hold other important value and security must also be ensured on these items
such as laptops and mobile phones. Section 12 of these regulations gives further details.

Financial Statements

Each Chief Officer shall make returns of outstanding expenditure and income in the form
and by the date specified by the Chamberlain in the programme for the closure of the annual
accounts as are referred to in 3.76.

Each Chief Officer shall provide details of any new leases (including nit consideration or
peppercorn leases) entered into during the course of each financial year, in good time for
the Chamberlain to prepare for the closure of the annual accounts. To comply with the newly
adopted IFRS 16 standards this must include: detalils of leased assets. lease start and end
dates, total lease value and annual fixed costs, payment frequency and terms, lease rate
(%) where applicable. Where the total value of the lease or asset exceeds £10,000 the full
signed lease document must also be provided.

Chief Officers are reminded that before entering to leases. particularly for plant vehicles and

equipment, consideration should be given to whether outriaht purchase rather than leasing
the item would offer better value for money. In this respect the relevant Head of Finance
should be consulted before proceeding.

15
Page 61



3-63.7 Procedures for the audit and publication of Financial Statements to the Court shall be as
follows:

iv.

The financial year shall run from 1%t April to 31%t March.
The Auditors of:
a) City's Estate, City Bridge Foundation and Sundry Trust (charitable) Funds Financial
Statements are elected by Common Hall on Midsummer Day.
b) City Fund and Pension Fund Financial Statements shall be appointed by the Court
of Common Council.
The Auditors shall report to the Court of Common Council or Common Hall as
appropriate, in writing upon completion of their audits.
The Chamberlain shall submit the Financial Statements, duly certified, for City Bridge
Foundation to the City Bridge Foundation Board and for all other Funds to the Finance
Committee in accordance with statutory requirements, but within reasonable timescales
as soon as husiness permits.
The audited and published City Fund and Pension Fund Financial Statements should
be presented to the-Finance CommitteeCourt-of Commen-Counsil in accordance with
the statutory deadline. All other Charitable Trusts of which the City Corporation is
Trustee should present their Financial Statements to the Court of Common Council or
Finance Committee when available, where the Charity Commission requires these to
be produced. City Bridge Foundation and City's Estate present their Financial
Statements to the_Finance Committee for City’s Estate and City Bridge Foundation
Board and Court of Common Council for City Bridge Foundation. This is in accordance
with the deadlines set by City Bridge Foundation Board for City Bridge Foundation and
by Audit and Risk Management Committee for City’s Estate or subject always to
statutory and other requirements which may apply. All three Financial Statements for
City Fund, City's Estate and City Bridge Foundation are published on the City
Corporation’'s website-as-well-as-the-Sundry-Truste. The City Bridge Foundation Annual
Report and Financial Statements are further published on the City Bridge Foundation
website. Charities where appropriate also need to file a copy of their audited accounts

with the Charity Commission by the Commission’s required date.

|.T Systems

3.63.8 The Chief Officer concerned shall ensure that all financial information held on IT systems
is properly maintained and capable of easy reconciliation to the central financial accounting
system. IT systems should be brought together into combined systems where possible in
accordance with the common systems principles outlined in the Diaital, Data and Technology

Strategy and supporting policies and guidancelnformation-Management Strategy.

3-73.9 Any IT system that is used to hold and/or organise personal data must be notified to the
City's Director of Digital Information Technology and the Information Compliance Team.

3-83.10

Detalls of the City Corporation’s Finance Information System can be found on the

Oracle pages of the intranet.

16
Page 62



SECTION 4. INTERNAL AUDIT

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

In accordance with The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the City Corporation must
undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management,
control and governance processes, in accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS). Responsibility for ensuring this is delegated by the Court of Common
Council to the Audit and Risk Management Committee. The Chamberlain as Section 151
Officer is responsible under statute for the proper administration of the financial affairs of the
City Corporation including compliance with the statutory requirements for Internal Audit.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee shall receive regular reports on completed work
of Intemal Audit, assurances provided and progress on the implementation of
recommendations. The Audit and Risk Management Committee will also review the
effectiveness of the Internal Audit service and the Head of Audit and Risk Management will
ensure that a good working relationship with Members is established and maintained.

While the Head of Internal Audit reports operationally to the Chamberlain, to maintain
organisational independence, an unrestricted reporting line exists to the Town Clerk and
Chief Executive and the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

Internal Audit's remit extends to all operations of the City of London Corporation and, as
required by the PSIAS, the Intemal Audit function has unrestricted access to all City records
and information, both manual and computerised, cash, stores and other City property or
assets it considers necessary to fulfit its responsibilities. Audit may enter property of the
organisation and has unrestricted access to all locations and officers where necessary on
demand and without prior notice. Right of access to other bodies funded by the City should
be set out in the conditions of funding. Internal Audit will require and recsive such information
and explanations as are necessary concerning any matters under examination. within a
timely manner/as set out by the internal audit team.

Officers are required to provide all information requested by Intemnal Audit and Chief Officers
shall consider and respond promptly to recommendations made by Internal Audit and ensure
that any agreed actions are implemented in a timely and efficient manner.

Further detalls on the Internal Audit function are provided in the Internal Audit Charter. This
can be viewed on the Internal Audit page under Business Support on the Intranet.

Preventing Fraud and Corruption

The Chamberlain is responsible for developing and maintaining the Corporate Anti-Fraud &
Corruption Strategy, and ensuring that effective internal controls are in place to minimise the
risk of fraud, corruption or other financial irregularity.

All Members and officers must ensure that they comply with the City's Corporate Anti-Fraud
Corruption Strategy, and Anti-Money Laundering guidelines D

8 Y

17
Page 63



4.9 Any Member, Officer or contractor of the City, who suspects fraud, corruption or other
financial irregularity, must ensure that this is reported promptly to the Head of internal Audit
in order to ensure that evidence is secured and the matter is considered for further
investigation.

4.10 Where any individual feels unable to report concems of fraud, corruption or other financial
irregularity directly to the Head of Internal Audit or their line manager, they should report
those concerns via the City Corporation’s anonymous whistleblowing channels. Those
reporting genuine concerns either directly or via the anonymous channel will not be at risk
of suffering any form of retribution as a resuit of the disclosure.

4.11 Management should not attempt to interview staff suspected of perpetrating a fraud,
corruption or other financial irregularity, unless expressly asked to do so by the Head of
Intemnal Audit, as this may prejudice any disciplinary or police investigation and/or
subsequent legal proceedings.

4.12 The Head of Internal Audit will maintain a register of all reported incidents of fraud, corruption
or other financial irregularity. These will be reported periodically to the Audit & Risk
Management Committee.

4.13 Any employee who suspects money laundering activity must report this promptly to the Head
of Internal Audit, who is designated as the City Corporation’s Money Laundering Reporting
Officer (MLRO).

18
Page 64



SECTION 5. RISK MANAGEMENT

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (as amended) require that the City ensures that
its financial management is adequate and effective and that there is a sound system of
financial control that facilitates the effective exercise of the City Corporation’s relevant
functions and that includes risk management arrangements.

Under the Local Govemment Act 1989, the City Corporation (as a local authority and police
authority) is under a general Duty of Best Value “to secure continuous improvement in the
way in which its functions are exercised, make arrangements to secure continuous
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination
of economy, efficiency and effectiveness”. The application of risk management supports this
statutory duty.

The CIPFA “Delivering good governance in Local Government Framework 2016 Edition”
identifies risk management as one of seven core principles in the overall effective
governance of a local authority.

The Charity Commission sets out the expectations for charities and risk management, within
its guidance. Those charities for which the City Corporation is Trustee are required to have
regard to this guidance.

The City Corporation must consider this guidance in the development of its approach to risk
management for each of the charities for which it is Trustee. in addition, unless in conflict
with charity law and regulatory requirements or considered not to be in a charity's best
interests, the City Corporation’s Corporate Risk Management Strategy and governance
processes must be followed.

The City Corporation is committed to establishing an effective risk management framework
and culture to enable management at all levels to deliver their objectives in the light of those
risks. This commitment is set out in the City Corporation’s Risk Management Strateqy 2024-
2029, and the refreshed Risk Management Policy that underpins this. The Risk Management
Policy outlines the risk management framework and expectations across all City Cormporation
departments and Institutions and was endorsed by the Audit and Risk Management
Committee and the City Bridge Foundation and Police Authority Boards in Autumn
2024 Policy—Statementtegethorwith-therisk managem; formal-process—i i

Chief Strategy Officer:

a) The Chief Strategy Officer is the lead Chief Officer for Risk Management within the City
Corporation and responsible for developingpreparing, maintaining and promoting the
Risk Management_strateqy, policy and supporting documentssirategy, securing
approval of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and maintaining the corporate
risk register.

19
Page 65



b)

The Chief Strategy Officer chairs the Chief Officer Risk Management Group, a sub-
committee of the Executive Leadership Board which supports in its overall
responsibility for isk management and outlines requirements and/or

guidance to Chief Officers to maintain or improve the City Corporation’s risk
management framework. Risk management is also discussed at meetings of the City
Corporation's Senior Leadership Team (Corporate Tier 1 Officers). The Chief Strategy
Officer will regularly report the City Corporation's corporate and top red
departmental rigks to the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

5.8 Chief Officers must have regard to the requirements and/or guidance issued by the Chief
Strategy Officer and adhere to the City Corporation’s risk management policy and strategy.
Specifically, Chief Officers are responsible for:

a)

b)

d)

Ensuring that risk management is integrated into business planning, programme and
project management and finance planning.

Ensuring that there are appropriate management arrangements for the continuous
identification, assessment, mitigation, monitoring and reporting of risk within the
department. This includes considering the risk appetite and risk culture within their
areas.

As par s, ginp pprop

effective risk
management within the department, liaise with the corporate risk advisor and ensures
it complies with the City Corporations risk management policy and strategy.

Maintaining corporate and departmental, service, team risks on the corporate risk
system and use system generated reports for management and Committee reporting
purposes.

Reporting their corporate and departmental level risks to their relevant Committee(s) in
accordance with the Guidance on reporting risk information to Service/Grand
Committees.

Identifying and flagging cross-cutting and/or thematic risks impacting the City of London
Corporation more widely, e.g. through Head of Profession roles.

20
Page 66



SECTION 6. TREASURY MANAGEMENT

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

The Court of Common Council adopts the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management. This regulation shall
include management of monies in connection with cash and funding resources of the City
as Police Authority. For City Bridge Foundation, treasury management standards are
adopted.

A Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy (relating to
Treasury Management) setting out the City’s strategies and procedures is adopted annually
by the Court of Common Council and includes the following scheme of delegation for the
operation of treasury policy:

The Court of Common Councli

¢ Receiving and reviewing reporis on treasury management policies, practices and
activities.

o Approval of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment
Strategy (relating to Treasury Management).

o For City Bridge Foundation approval of the—charbt/s overarching Treasury
Management Strategy statement and Annual Investment Strateqy (related to Treasury
Management) as applied to the charity.

The Investment Committee and Finance Committee (for City Fund & City’s Estate) and
for City Bridge Foundation the CBF Board and the CBF investment Committee

e Approval offamendments to the-erganisation’s adopted clauses, treasury management
policy statement and treasury management practices for the City Corporation.
Budget consideration and approval.
Approval of the division of responsibilities.
Receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on recommendations.
Approving the selection of extemal service providers and agreeing terms of
appointment.

Note Finance Committes and the CBF Board usually only receive the first item.

Audit and Risk Management Committee & the Investment Committee of CBF Board
» Reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures and making
recommendations to the responsible committee and/or the Courtbedy.

The Chamberlaln
¢ Application of approved strategy.
¢ Treasury dealing with counterparties.
¢ Authorisation of cash transfers.
¢ . Borrowing and lending documentation.

All money in the management of the City Corporation shall be aggregated for the purposes
of Treasury Management and shall be under the control of the Chamberiain.

All executive decisions on borrowing, investment or financing shall be delegated to the

Chamberlain or through their staff, who shall be required to act in accordance with the City
21

Page 67



6.5

6.6

Corporation’s Treasury Management Code. ay
qy ( 19 ry Manag ) prep

ry H

The Chamberiain shall report to the Investment Committee not less than twice in each
financial year on the activities of the Treasury Management operation and on the exercise
of the Treasury Management powers delegated to him/her. One such report shall comprise
an Annual Report on Treasury Management of the succeeding financial year.

Trustee Reports provided for Charitable Funds administered by the City Corporation must
be compliant with charity law requirements (refer to sections 162,132 and 133 of the
Charities Act 2011 and the Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008

1) and make a risk management statement in their Trustee’s report.

22
Page 68



SECTION 7. INVESTMENTS, BORROWING AND TRUST FUNDS

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

All borrowing or investments of money shall be made in accordance with the orders of the
Court of Common Council or as delegated to the Finance Committee and Investment
Committee and the Chamberlain for City Fund and City’s Estate and, for City Bridge
Foundation the City Bridge Foundation Board and its Investment Committee and the

Chamberlain.

All securities for money shall be held by the Chamberlain or their nominees, except where
legal requirements necessitate their being held elsewhere.

The Chamberiain shall maintain records of all borrowing of money and make provisions for
repayment where appropriate.

All Members and Officers acting as trustees by virtue of their official positions shall deposit
all securities relating to the trust with the Chamberlain, or their nominees, unless the deed
(or other legal governing document) otherwise provides.

In addition to the matters set out at 7.1 - 7.4 above, all investments of charitable funds must
comply with the relevant charity’s governing documents, the Trustee Act 2000, the Charities
Act 2011 (as amended) and other regulatory requirements.

23
Page 69



SECTION 8. PROCUREMENT

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

In accordance with Standing Order 51 all procurement and contracts activity must be
undertaken by officers in accordance with the agreed Procurement Code.

Chief Officers shall be responsible for all procurement originating from their service for the
execution of any works, supply of goods, materials and services and shall ensure that the
selection of firms to be invited to tender shall be in accordance with the procedures detailed
in the Procurement Code and Corporate Project Procedures.

No City contract shall be issued unless its terms have been previously approved by the
Comptroller and City Solicitor and be consistent with the requirements as laid down in
Standing Orders, Procurement Code and these Financial Regulations.

The use of corporate purchase cards (P-card) is restricted to authorised staff that must follow
the rules of the Purchase Card Policy. Where appropriate, a P-card should be used for all
expenditure up to £1,000 per transaction. Card users are responsible for entering
information onto the P-card system which is clear and accurate, avoiding the use of terms
which may be open to misinterpretation. The Purchase Card Policy lays out further detail on
P-Card use.

Purchase orders must be raised through City Finance System and in compliance with the
Procurement Code. | ty Of y policy’ a D
88
policy pp
_I':J—

T2

Where contractors are engaged for works that fall within the scope of the Construction
Industry Scheme (CIS), the Transactional Finance Data Team shall confirm whether the
contractor holds a valid Unique Tax Reference (UTR) number and verify whether the
contractor is registered with HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC) for CIS, ensuring that tax is
deducted from payments at the appropriate rate.

Prompt notification shall be given to the Chamberlain’s Insurance and Risk Management
Team where the goods or services procured or sold or the contract terms being entered Into
materially affect the Corporation’s insurance programme prior to agreement.

All ex-gratia and non-contractual claims from contractors shall be referred for comments to
the Finance Director of City Bridge Foundation for City Bridge Foundation contracts or
otherwise to the to the Financial Services Director and also to the Comptroller and City
Solicitor before settiement is reached. They will further advise on whether
approval of the City Bridge Foundation Board for City Bridge Foundation or otherwise of
Finance Committee needs to be sought prior to settlement.

The Finance Director City Bridge Foundation for City Bridge Foundation and otherwise the
Financial Services Director shall, to the extent he/she considers necessary, examine the
final accounts or interim valuations for contracts and shall be entitied to make all such

24
Page 70



enquiries and receive such information and explanations as may be required to satisfy the
accuracy of the accounts (see section 24 of the Financial Regulations for further details).

25
Page 71



SECTION 9. PAYMENTS OF ACCOUNTS

9.1 Payments shall be made, wherever possible, through City Corporation’s Finance System
and by the Bank Automated Clearance System (BACS). Where payment by BACS is not
possible or practical then payment shall normally be made by cheque drawn through the
City Corporation’s Finance System or, in the case of payments of £1m or more, by the
Clearing House Automated Payment Systems (CHAPS). Any payment of £1m or more paid
via BACS or cheque must be authorised by the Corporate Treasurer in addition to the
standard approvals.

9.2 Any payments where timing is crucial (e.g. certain property transactions) or where use of
BACS would not be appropriate, may be processed by CHAPS or Faster Payment. This
process should not be used for regular creditor payments. Payment by CHAPS or Faster
Payment is available from the Chamberlain's Corporate Treasury Team.

9.3 Payments in foreign currency, or sterling payments to a non-UK bank account, shall be made
as International payments via internet banking using the beneficiary’s International Bank
Account Number (IBAN) where possible together with their Bank Identifier Code (BIC, also
known as a SWIFT code).

9.4 Payment requests in foreign currency or a sterling payment to a non-UK bank account
should be made using the standard form which is available from the Chamberlain’s
Corporate Treasury Team and must be approved by an appropriate authorised signatory and
submitted to the Corporate Treasury Team.

9.5 No officer shall be able to approve a requisition or purchase order that he/she has raised in
the City Corporation’s Finance System. The appropriate separation of duties shall be
ensured by the maintenance of relevant responsibilities and purchase order approval
hierarchies within the City Corporation's Finance System with the exception of system

administrators.
9.6 The P q Team fou
he shall be responsible for maintaining and updating the req
approval hierarchy in the City's Finar System

Sig ies List (ASL)-an¢ | gignatories for PO exempt-@ménts toc it
epartments and service areas shall be responsible for informing

the Data D q Team of required changes to the

hierarchy/ ons variatiol pp

26
Page 72



9.7 The person named as the Requestor on the relevant purchase order is responsible for
Goods Receipting in the City Corporation's Finance System to confirm that the
goods/services/works have been delivered.

9.8 Payments for goods, services or works will follow the receipt of a valid/undisputed invoice
and where the goods, services, or works have been delivered in full. Where officers consider
it to be in the best interests of the City Corporation to make a payment in advance, such
payments shall only. be made if the appropriate authorisation below has been provided in
writing in accordance with the table helow. If at any time 2 significant risk or other concern
is identified connected with an advance payment, notwithstanding the limits set out below,
officers may remit the decision for guidance to Finance Committee for City Fund and City's
Estate or for City Bridge Foundation to the City Bridge Foundation Board.

" Cost of works, goods or services " Authorisation Requlired
(excluding VAT) paid in advance
Up to £499,999 Head of Finance and Corporate Treasurer
£499,999 up to £999,999 Financial Services Director
'£1.000.000£909.000 up to £1,999,899 | Chamberiain '
£2.000,000£4,098,000 or above Finance Committee -

For Clty Bridge Foundation in the above table the Financial Service Director should be replaced with the CBF
Finance Director, the Chamberlain by the CBF Managing Director and Finance Committee by the CBF Board.

9.9 Before requesting advance payment, a short business case including the risks should the
company not deliver is to be included with request for the advanced payment. It is noted that
payments for rent, software licences, artists fees (50% in advance), or power connection by
UK Power Networks, are paid in advance as a standard term for that industry. Unless officers
have identified an additional concern or risk, the presumption should be that these can be
paid in advance without application of the additional approval set out in para 9.8 above.

9.10 Payments in advance may be made by Purchase Cards (P-cards) without further
authorisation provided P-cards are used in accordance with the P- card Policy.

9.11 Compliance with the P-card Policy is mandatory and non-compliance in certain
circumstances may result in disciplinary action and instant removal of access to the P-Card.

9.12 The Accounts Payable Team is responsible for the payment of all invoices for goods and
services. Invoices should be sent directly to the Accounts Payable team. Any invoices
received by departmental officers must be forwarded to the Accounts Payable Team without

delay.

9.13 All undisputed invoices must be paid within 30 days of receipt, but contractual terms may
oblige the City Corporation to pay certain invoices sooner. The City Corporation aims to pay
ali sole traders and SMEs within 10 working days of receipt of a valid invoice.

9.14 Where contracts, valued more than £250,000 for payments to be made by instaiments, all
payments to contractors shall made on receipt of a valid VAT invoice and be accompanied
by a certificate issued and signed by the City Corporation’s designated officer, authorised

27
Page 73



agent or consultant which confirms the value of work completed. Those contracts not subject
to the issue of certificates, may be paid on invoices.

9.15 Receipting a purchase order (PO) or authorising payment of accounts (by way of approval
workflow) in the City Corporation’s Finance System will release invoices matched to that PO
for payment on the due date. Before receipting a PO, officers must determine that:

a) The goods, services or works to which the account relates have been received,
examined, are fit for purpose and, where appropriate, comply with pre-determined
standards. Failure to comply may result in additional costs incurred by the department,
where additional support is required by the Chamberlain to ensure corrective action(s)
is taken.

b) The receipt amount reflects the ordered value of goods received/services
provided/works completed.

c) Appropriate entries have been made in inventories or store records.

d) Proper internal check procedures have operated in the examination of the account.

e) The account has not been previously paid and is a proper liability of the City.

9.16 Before authorising payment of accounts by way of the City Corporation’s Finance Systems
approval workflow or email/signature (Authorised Signatories List) for services that are
purchase order exempt, authorisers or other appropriate officers shall determine that:

a) The goods, services or works to which the account relates have been received,
examined, are fit for purpose and, where appropriate, comply with pre-determined
standards.

b) The amount reflects the ordered value of goods received/services provided/works
completed.

¢) Prices, extensions, calculations, discounts, other allowances and credits are correct,
as expected or are otherwise reasonable.

d) The expenditure has been properly incurred and is within the relevant estimated
provision.

e) The account has not been previously paid and is a proper liability of the City
Cormporation.

28
Page 74



SECTION 10. IMPREST ACCOUNTS (PETTY CASH)

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

The Corporate Treasurer shall provide imprest accounts and may arrange for bank accounts
to be opened for use by holders of imprest accounts but are not generally encouraged. Such
bank accounts shall not be overdrawn.

No sums received on behalf of the City Corporation may be paid into an imprest account but
shall be banked separately or paid to the City Corporation promptly as may be directed.
Income and change floats shall be kept separately from the imprest cash at all times and
shall not be used to fund cash expenditure.

Payments from imprest accounts shall be limited to minor items, the maximum value of
which shall be £100; larger figures require the prior approval of the appropriate Head of
Finance.

Expense claims for staff should be made through City People. Only if staff do not have
access to City People should they use the petty cash claim form that can be found on the
intranet.

All imprest/petty cash claims should be approved by a second officer (either the Head of
Finance or their nominated officer) prior to reimbursing the claimant. This ensures a
separation of duties is maintained between the person claiming the money and the person
approving that payment can be made for appropriate spend.

All payments shall be supported by vouchers and all receipts, including a VAT receipt
wherever appropriate. Payments made on behalf of the Commissioner of Police in pursuit
of their operational responsibilites may exceed the maximum figure where specifically
authorised by the Commissioner of Police.

A reconciliation of imprest accounts should be completed on a monthly basis by each
department. At the end of the financial year imprest holders shall provide electronically the
Chamberlain with certificates which must be sent to their Head of Finance promptly after the
end of the appropriate financial year and include their approval in the covering email. The
relevant Head of Finance shall review these certificates and ensure they reconcile to the
general ledger. Once satisfied they should provide a copy to Corporate Accountancy
electronically which will include their sign-off in the covering email.

Reimbursements of imprest accounts shall be made through the City Corporation's Finance
System ordinarily at monthly intervals, following a full reconciliation of the imprest account
and, in any event, frequently enough to maintain a sufficient amount of cash in the float to
cover claims for the relevant bank account to remain in credit.

If an imprest t holder leaves the City Corporation’s service,
shall advise the Corporate Treasurer of the name of the officer for whom

responsibility has been passed, who in tum shall confirm that they are now taking

responsibility for the imprest

) g ap

1S DASSEU 8] 4] ly 9]

29
Page 75



10.10 Disbursements shall be limited to minor items of expenditure and specifically should not
include expenditure which should form part of the payroll system, (e.g. clothing and car
allowances), nor shall they include the encashment of personal cheques and the advancing
of loans.

10.11 The only bank charges which should be incurred, in respect of imprest accounts operated
via a bank account, are those in the normal course of operation of the account.

10.12 All Departments holding petty cash should ensure that, at all times, cash is adequately
secured. As a minimum this should be in a cash box within a lockable drawer. Amounts in
excess of £100 should be kept in a safe overnight.

10.13 Whenever any matter arises which involves or may suggest irregularities affecting a petty
cash/imprest account, the relevant Chief Officer shall notify the Financial Services Director
(or the CBF Finance Director if it relates to the charity), the Corporate Treasurer and Head
of internal Audit forthwith. This also applies in the event of any loss from the imprest account
identified during reconciliation.

30
Page 76



SECTION 11. TRAVELLING AND SUBSISTENCE CLAIMS

11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

11.5

11.6

11.7

11.8

All claims for reimbursement of travelling, subsistence and minor personal expenses shall
be made via the payroll system (self-service through the HR/Payroll System). Each claim
shall be promptly submitted for payment through the HR system detailing the expenditure
incurred, supported by receipts, dated, coded, and approved electronically by the
appropriate authorising officer. ltems or services purchased on behalf of the City must not
be reimbursed through the HR System and instead where possible a Purchase Card (P-
card) should be used to avoid the need for a claim. If it is not possible to make a payment
using a P-card then the only alternative would be for a payment request claim to be
processed via Accounts Payable within the City Corporation’s Finance System. Officers
making purchases on behalf of the City Corporation using their own funds should ensure
they have prior approval otherwise this is at their own risk and it does not guarantee the
claim will be paid out. Claims for reimbursement of travelling, subsistence and minor
personal expenses should be submitted on a regular monthly basis and within three months
of the date the expenditure was incurred. The reimbursement of claims falling outside of this
timeframe will require the permission of the Chamberiain. Such pemission will only be given
following Chief Officer justification for the late submission of the claim. Claims for expenses,
where more than six months has lapsed since the expenditure was incurred, will not be
allowed.

Travel should be booked in accordance with the City Corporation’s Travel Policy. The
preferred method of payment for any business travel expenditure outside of a Corporate
Contract or to be re-imbursed through Payroll up to £1,000 is a (P-card) in line with Section
8.4 of these regulations and the P-card Policy.

Claims with a total value of less than £100 (inclusive of VAT) may be reimbursed from petty
cash where use of a P-card would be unsuitable or a P-card is unavailable i.e. outside of
office hours or for one-off expenditure.

Copies of claims and VAT receipts must be kept by the claimant for audit and accounting
purposes.

Every officer who receives a car loan or car allowance, whether casual or essential, must
produce to their Chief Officer the registration document of the car, a valid certificate of
insurance and an assurance to take all reasonable steps to maintain the car in an efficient
and roadworthy condition. The Chief Officer shall be promptly informed of any subsequent
changes to the above details.

All car allowancss are to be paid through the payroll system.

The certification by or on behalf of the Chief Officer shall be taken to mean that the certifying
officer is satisfied that the journeys were authorised, the expenses properly and necessarily
incurred and all the requirements of the appropriate City scheme have been observed.

All travelling allowances paid shall be in accordance with the current provisions laid down
by the City Corporation in the Business and Travel Expenses Scheme. All subsistence

31
Page 77



11.9

allowances paid shall be in accordance with the current provisions laid down by the City
Corporation in the Employee Handbook.

The payment of fees for individual membership of professional bodies shall be the
responsibility of the member of staff to whom the individual membership relates. Consistent
with the Subscriptions to Professional Bodies, Societies and Business Interest Groups
employee policy, staff can, through the HR System, reclaim membership fees for approved
professional bodies, a list of which can be found on SharePoint. Fees for corporate
membership of professional bodies shall be paid by the Chamberlain’s Accounts Payable
Team.

32
Page 78



SECTION 12. CUSTODY AND SECURITY OF ASSETS

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

Chief Officers are responsible for maintaining proper security and stewardship over all
assets under their control in accordance with Standing Orders.

Chief Officers are responsible for the maintenance of registers for City Fund, City's Estate
and City Bridge Foundation assets as follows:

s Property (Buildings and Land) — City Surveyor

¢ Police Vehicles — Commissioner of Police

¢ Other Vehicles — Executive Director of Environment

¢ Exhibits — Assistant Town Clerk and Cultural and Visitor Development Director
« Barbican Centre — Managing Director, Barbican Centre

IT Infrastructure — Chamberiain

Infrastructure — Director of Built Environment

Other Furniture and Equipment — relevant Chief Officers

All Chief Officers shall ensure that any information requested from them by the above
registrars, for the purposes of maintaining the above asset registers, is provided rapidly and
freely. Any acquisitions or disposals of assets (other than furniture and equipment) should
be notified to the relevant registrar at the appropriate time.

Asset registers are required to itemise all City Fund assets which cost in excess of £1,000
and for those assets acquired since 1 April 1990, the date and cost of acquisition. In respect
of all assets other than land and buildings, the information should be capable of being
extracted from inventories. Although the Chamberlain is the statutory registrar for items of
furniture and equipment, it is the responsibility of each Chief Officer to maintain inventories
for all fumiture and equipment within their control (there is no longer a requirement to provide
separate registers of furniture and equipment items costing in excess of £1,000). Chief
Officers shall provide a statement of items held at year end, to the Corporate Finance team
on reguest.

The authority to acquire new or add to/enhance existing assets with a value in excess of
£50,000 is subject to the Corporate Project Procedure or as otherwise required in
accordance with standing orders.

A terrier (a record system for the City’s land and property holdings) shall be maintained by
the City Surveyor for all City properties, whether owned or leased. This should supplement
the information required to maintain property asset registers for all Funds.

The Comptrolier and City Solicitor is responsible for the safe custody of all deeds and lease
agreements in respect of all properties owned or leased by each of the City’s Funds.

For acquisition of property a completed acquisition statement shall be provided by the
Comptroller to the Chamberlain (and also to the CBF ince Director for
FoundationCEBF properties) prior to the transaction being completed.

33
Page 79



Disposal of Assets

12.9 Assets with a value in excess of £50,000 require approval of the relevant service committee
or board before disposal. In addition, there is specific governance relating to the disposal of
property within standing orders. Where acquisition of a number of assets has been
aggregated into a capital project (e.g. fleet vehicles, personal IT devices such as laptops
etc) then disposal proceeds should be likewise considered on an aggregated basis. Disposal
proceeds generally accrue back to the centrally held reserves — they may not be used to
supplement local risk budgets or be reallocated to supplement project budgets without
specific Member approval. Any p p D

2

12.10 Assets should be disposed of at Fair Value (or for any charity land on terms which are the
best which can reasonably be obtained) — any proposal to dispose of an asset at below fair
(market) value must be in consultation with the Chamberlain and Comptroller and City
Solicitor and requires specific member approval. For assets under the control of City Bridge
Foundation, consultation must also be sought with the Managing Director of City Bridge
Foundation.

12.11 The Chamberlain must be advised of the disposal of capital assets before the year-end to
ensure the accuracy of the City Corporation’s published accounts for each Fund.

34
Page 80



SECTION 13. INSURANCE

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

The City Corporation maintains insurance cover to limit the financial impact of the
consequences of unforeseen events leading to the loss or damage of the City’s assets or
claims for injury loss or damage being made against the City.

The Chamberlain shall procure and maintain all appropriate insurance policies and will
manage all claims within the policies, in consultation with other officers as necessary.

Chief Officers shall notify the Chamberlain's Insurance and Risk Management Team
promptly of all new risks, assets or material changes relevant to the City's insurance
programme. This may include, but not be limited to:

o Significant organizational changes, responsibilities and practices e.g. major
infoutsourcing.

o Additions, loans and disposals of assets, including properties, contents, stock and
equipment, plant, vehicles, works of art and heritage assets etc.

e Contract works, changes of use and occupancy of properties. |
Travel outside of the UK or involving an overnight stay on the business of the City
Corporation.

o Major events, collaborations.

Chief officers shall maintain and provide up to date insurance values for the assets insured.

Chief Officers shall immediately notify the Chamberlain's Insurance and Risk Management
Team of any loss, potential liability or damage to third parties or to City property that may
lead to a claim and take appropriate action to prevent further losses occurring. All officers
and staff must comply with the relevant terms and conditions of the insurance policies and
provide assistance in the investigation of any claim within the specified timescales, as
required. No admission of liability or offers of payment should be made that may prejudice
the assessment of liability in respect of any insurance claim.

No Chief Officer shall enter into any indemnity which the City is required to give unless the
terms thereof have been approved by the Finance Finaneial Director of City Bridge
Foundation for City Bridge Foundation, or otherwise by the Financial Services Director and
also by the Comptroller and City Solicitor or their named delegated officer.

The Chamberlain’s Insurance and Risk Management Team shall be notified immediately that
any valuables belonging to a private individual are taken into the Corporation’s possession
so that directions may be given as to their recording and safe keeping. The term “valuables”
shall include watches, jewellery, cash, documents, goods, chattels or any other items of
intrinsic value. It does not apply to “lost property” of a low value.

35
Page 81



SECTION 14. SECURITY AND DATA PROTECTION

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.68

14.7

Each Chief Officer is responsible for maintaining proper security at all times for all buildings,
stocks, stores, furniture, equipment, cash, information etc. under their control (see also
Financial Regulations conceming Inventories Section 19). In this respect, he or she shall
inform the Financial Services Director or Head of Internal Audit and the Security Board,
where appropriate, immediately where security is thought to be defective or where it is
considered that special security arrangements may be needed.

Maximum limits for cash holdings shall be agreed with the Chamberlain's Head of Internal
Audit and shall not be exceeded without their express permission.

Cash carrying limits shall be In line with insurance policy conditions. Reference should be
made to the Insurance and Risk Management Team for current policy conditions.

Keys to safes and similar receptacles are to be the responsibility of designated officers and
are to be kept secure at all times. Loss of any such keys must be reported to the Corporate
Treasurer or Head of Internal Audit. Duplicate keys to all safes are to be held in a place
approved by the Chamberlain's Head of Internal Audit and locked away for use in the case
of emergency only.

Chief Officers should ensure that all staff are aware of the arrangements which the City has
in place for the proper control and management (including retention) of all information owned
by, or otherwise under the control and management of, the City and held in any format (e.g.
paper, electronic, microfiche, etc.). Chief Officers should ensure that all members of their
Department are aware that information concerning secret and confidential matters or
personal must not be disclosed in any way except to persons entitled to
receive such information and in such cases with appropriate safeguards. All staff are
expected to be familiar with the Employee Handbook, have completed relevant mandatory
training (including IT security and data protection training), and be familiar with their own
department’s policies and procedures.

All staff, including temporary, contract or agency staff, are required to comply fully with the
requirements of the Data Protection Act 2018 (DPA) and the United Kingdom General Data
Protection Regulations (UK GDPR). Chief Officers, (who are each “Responsible Officers” for
the purposes of the DPA and UK GDPR) each have particular responsibility for implementing
appropriate measures and maintaining proper safeguards to ensure the security and the
appropriate degree of privacy of all personal data held within their departments, whether
electronically or in other formats. The City’s Director of Digital Information and Technology
and the City's IT Information and Security Director (who are each “Responsible Officers” for
the purposes of the DPA and UK GDPR) each have similar obligations relevant to their role.

In particular, Responsible Officers are required to implement “privacy by design and default’,
to comply with the six data protection principles under the UK GDPR, and to maintain
appropriate records, including Records of Processing Activities (ROPA) and, where
appropriate, undertake Privacy Impact Assessments (PIA). Where processing is contracted
out to third parties then the requirements for data processors must also be complied with.

36
Page 82



14.8

14.9

The City Corporation’s Director of Digital Information and Technology shall agree with Chief
Officers, consulting as appropriate with the Chamberlain’s IT Audit Manager, the degree of
privacy and security to be applied to IT Systems. The IT Information and Security Director
shall then be responsible for maintaining proper security and the agreed control of access
the systems to maintain the privacy or confidentiality the information held on those systems
where he is responsible for development, support or operation of those systems. Chief
Officers are responsible for maintaining such standards within their own departments.

Chief Officers should ensure that all staff within their department who use IT and
communication storage devices (e.g. desktop PCs, laptops, PDAs, smart phones, mobile
phones, etc.) are aware of, and adhere to, the current IT security requirements and Internal
Audit Guidelines. All new employees should be briefed as to the security policies and
procedures that are applicable to them, including the implications of relevant legislation.

14.10 Prior to the employment of temporary contract, or agency staff, each Chief Officer shouid

ensure that they receive written confirmation from such staff that they understand and agree
to conform to the Rules for the Use of City Information Technology Systems (IT) Facilities.
System access will be provided by the IT Service Desk. Line of Business Application (LOB)
access may require authority to access the specific information from the relevant business

system administration team.

37
Page 83



SECTION 15. INCOME & BANKING ARRANGEMENTS

15.1

156.2

16.3

15.4

16.5

15.6

15.7

15.8

15.9

The systems effecting the collection of all money due to the City Corporation shall be
approved by the Chamberlain.

Al banking arrangements shall be made by or subject to the prior approval of the
Chamberiain.

The Chamberiain shall be notified promptly of any event where income potential will arise to
the City Corporation. In such instances the Chamberain shall be consulted prior to any
contracts, leases and other agreements and arrangements being entered into which involve
the receipt of money by the City Corporation, and the Chamberlain has the right to inspect
any document or other evidence in this connection as he may decide. City

L

p a p aq

Each Chief Officer shall ensure the use of City Corporation’s Finance System for the raising
of debtor invoices and the recording of data in respect of miscelianeous invoiced income,
unless otherwise directed by the Chamberlain.

Departments shall ensure that arrangements are in place for the regular and frequent
reconciliation of amounts collected to the general ledger.

All income must be accounted for separately and never credited to an expenditure code. In
particular, proceeds from the disposal of assets are not to be off set against expenditures.

Al income, whether cheques, notes or coins received by an officer on behalf of the City
shall, without delay, be recorded including a reference to the related debt, such as the receipt
number, the name of the debtor, details of any cheques or other indication of the origins of
the income, and (unless otherwise directed by the Comptroller and City Solicitor) paid intact
into a designated bank account. This shall be done at regular intervals and in a manner as
directed by the Chamberiain.

Every officer who banks money shall enter on the paying-in slip their name, their contact
telephone number and/or email address, and the number of cheques being paid in (if any).
Every officer paying in money should also ensure that the standard electronic form is
completed and submitted to the Chamberlain's Income Allocation Team (in Corporate
Treasury) on the day of banking to facilitate the correct coding of the banked monies.

Cash payments are not encouraged, except where necessary and officers must ensure that
cash payments are not accepted for individual transactions which exceed the threshold of
10,000 euros (set by the Money Laundering, Terrorist Financing and Transfer of Funds
(Information on the Payer) Regulations 2017 (SI 2017/292)) which came into force on 26
June 2017.

15.10 Departmental procedures for accepting cash, cheques or credit cards tendered in respect

of the sale of goods, materials or services by the City shall be agreed by the Chamberlain.

38
Page 84



15.11 All cheques and similar documents (but excluding cheques drawn on authorised imprest
accounts) shall be ordered only on the authority of the Chamberiain, who shall make proper
arrangements for their safe custody.

15.12 Cash holdings on premises shall be kept to a minimum, in safes or locked receptacles
appropriate for the value being held with regard to the insurance limits. The average and
maximum values held in safes must be notified to the Insurance and Risk Management

team.

15.13 Money held on behalf of the City Corporation shall be kept separately from personal funds
and shall not be used in any way for personal purposes.

15.14 Every transfer of official money from one member of staff to another will be evidenced in the
records of the departments concerned by the signature of the receiving officer.

VAT

15.15 Chief Officers shall ensure that the form of any sundry debtor invoice, or other equivalent
document used in the collection of VAT, is approved by the Chamberlain prior to use.

15.16 For all new income streams advice should be sought from the City's VAT Accountant to
determine the appropriate VAT liability. A guide for VAT can be found on the intranet.

Irrecoverable Debis

15.17 No debt shall be written off, with the exception of small balance write-offs, without first
obtaining the approval from either the Assistant Director Financial Shared Services or the
Chamberlain. Any such amounts relating to City Bridge Foundation should also be reported
to the CBF Finance Director. The current levels of authority are set out in the Scheme of

q . | Standing Order 52—\/rite write offs
may be approved for a variety of reasons, among the more usual are:

a) Insufficient legal proof of the debt or liability for the charge.

b) Probable expense of legal action in excess of amount to be recovered.

¢) Debtor cannot be traced.

d) Debtor with insufficient means or assets.

e) The debt represents the balance outstanding after a final dividend has been paid in
bankruptcy or insolvency cases.

15.18 Chief Officers shall maintain relevant documentation to support the validity of the write-off,
confirming that action has been taken to mitigate the loss. Where a series of debts are
proposed to be written off at the same time, their aggregate value shall be used when
considering authority required for the write-off under Standing Order 52.

Fees and Charges

15.19 When determining fees and charges to persons or external organisations, all departments
should recover full costs or submit reasons to the appropriate Service Committee when that

objective is not met. The Duty to recover costs must be subject to any other overriding
39

Page 85



statutory provision e.g. Freedom of Information Act 2000 or in the case of any charities for
which the City Corporation is Trustee subject to any decision taken by the Trustee where it
is determined after proper consideration to be in the best interests of the charity in furthering
the charity's objects for the public benefit not to seek full cost recovery.

15.20 Charges and the charging rationale should be reviewed regularly (e.g. annually). The review
of charges should be reported to Committee unless discretion is specifically
| delegatedawarded to Chief Officers.

15.21 Should consideration be given to offering goods or services in the form of a benefit-in-kind
to a third party, the relevant policy on benefits-in-kind should be followed both prior to making
the decision to provide goods or services at a reduced or nil charge, and in subsequent
monitoring of this decision.

Charitable—Grant/Voluntary Income or Property (including charitable grants, gifts and
bequests)

15.22 For all charities for which the City Corporation is Trustee regard must be had to the current
version of the Charities SORP in relation to the acceptance of grants or other forms of
voluntary income _or property (whether by way of grant, gift. bequest etc or whether free of,
or subject to, restrictions) regard must also be had to the Charities Commission guidance
on refusing or retuming donations'. It is generally the case that donations should be
accepted and kept, but in some circumstances and in the best interests of the charity the
Trustee/s may be obliged to refuse or retum a donation (e.ci. where the donation is from an
illegal source or has illegal conditions attached, is from a donor with lack of mental capacity
or where the donor does not own the donated propeity); there are some other circumstances
which should also mean the benefits and risks of accepting the donation should be weighed
to establish whether it is in the best interests of the charity to accept. with the decision
making process recorded. Appropriate records must be kent and all declsmns should be
made in the best interests of the charity. Sush—incerr e :
{ransaction:

| 15.23 The recognition of grant/voluntary income and property within the accounts of each charity
must follow the general rules of recognition, considering the criteria of entitiement,
probability and measurement (SORP 5.8).

15.24 Recipients of such_voluntary income_or property must be mindful as to whether it can be
used for any purpose of the charity or is restricted to a specific purpose, or any unusual
conditions that may need to be considered as part of the acceptance process detailed in
para 15.22 above. Advice should be obtained from the City Bridge Foundation, Charities
Finance Team and the Comptrollers and City Solicitors department where either restrictions
are being considered or any other form of agreement is to be entered into with a donor/(s).

46:2415.25  Acceptance or refusal (disclaimer), of funds or property will reguire a decision of the
City Corporation which _must be taken in accordance with the approved corporate
governance framework which may require committee approval where the decision is not
within the delegated authority of a Chief Officer.

1A ing, refusing and returning donations to your charity - V.UK
40

Page 86



SECTION 16. PARTNERSHIPS

16.1

16.2

16.3

When entering into collaborative arrangements, be they partnering, partnership agreements,
joint venture arrangements or other forms of sponsorship, each Chief Officer shall undertake
an Initial due diligence exercise to ascertain which form of collaboration is being proposed.
Based on this initial scoping exercise, the relevant collaboration proposal will need a risk
management appraisal to ensure that the City Corporation’s interests are protected and
appropriate financial (including fiscal) and legal advice needs to be sought from both the
Chamberain and the Comptroller and City Solicitor. Chief Officers shall ensure that:

a) Involve Commercial Services where appropriate and necessary select routes to choose
an appropriate partner, this is especially important if the partnership could result in a
contract.

b) Consult with the Chamberain to ensure expenditure and income transactions are
correctly accounted.

c) An appropriate exit strategy is in place.

d) Where necessary, proposed contractual and other relevant agreements are approved
by the appropriate Service Committee, and where the Town Clerk considers necessary,
approval is also received by the Finance and/or Policy and Resources Committees,
prior to the conclusion of any negotiations with external bodies; and

e) Details of each collaborative arrangement must be forwarded to the Town Clerk for
inclusion within a corporate database.

Within three years of the start of a collaborative arrangement (partnering or partnership
agreement or sponsorship agreement as the case may be), each Chief Officer shall ensure
that the ongoing costs, benefits and risk management issues are reported to the appropriate
Service Committee with reference to applicable corporate objectives and agreed project
outputs. Further reporting is to be carried out at intervals of three years for as long as the
relevant arrangements remain active.

Information on the Concession Contracts can be found in the Procurement Code — please see
both Part 1 (Rules) and Part 2 {(Guidance).

41
Page 87



SECTION 17. GRANT-MAKING

17.1

17.2

Grants made by the City Corporation are frequently voluntary payments made to further the
purposes of a grant-making charity. The City Corporation also makes grants from its private
funds (City’s Estate). Grants can be made to either fund the general purposes of the recipient
or for a specific activity or service. A grant may be unconditional, or subject to conditions
which must be met before the recipient is entitled to the payment.

All grants awarded from charitable funds managed by the City Corporation shall be made in
accordance with Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended
Practice (SORP) applicable to charities preparing accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland. This requires the full value
of a grant award/commitment to be recorded as expenditure when a constructive obligation
exists. Such an obligation exists when the grant-making charity creates a valid expectation
on the part of the recipient that the full grant will be paid. Although grants are non-contractual,
a liability still arises if the charity has no realistic atternative but to provide the funding. A
grant may be made subject to binding terms and conditions under an agreement.

42
Page 88



174173 All grants awarded from non-charitable funds managed by the City Corporation

should aspire to follow recommended practice as established within the Charities SORP
(unless grants are awarded by the Corporation acting as a local authority. in which case the
CIPFA Code of Practice should be followed), with reasons submitted to the appropriate
service committee when this practice is not foliowed. Advice should be taken from the
GCentral-Granis-Unit-{CGCentral Funding and Charity Management Team (CFCMT) if
consideration is being given to not following the SORP guidance. All grants should initiaily

be recorded as a balance sheet liability with payment instalments coded to the balance sheet
liability account and unpaid amounts recorded as a balance sheet liability.

17.4 Grants managed by CBF and CFCMT are recorded on the Salesforce Grant Management
system and key controls include:

a) A grant management manual is maintained and reqularly updated by the CBF Funding
team, with principles adopted by CFCMT.

b) Delegated authority process for grant approvals, including consideration of conflicts of
interest, for each grants programme.

c) Weekly payment reconciliations are performed between Oracle payment reports and
Salesforce payment requests.

d) Regular (at least quarterly. monthly for more active grant making programmes) balance
sheet and expenditure reconciliations between Oracle and Salesforce.

e) System-generated controls over payment approvals for grant instaiments.

f) An assumption that all grants are paid in quarterly instalments over the life of the grant,
with documentation and approval required to be recorded on Salesforce for any changes
to this arrangement.

17.5 The City Corporation also makes grants from its non-charitable funds to other organisations

to undertake works that deliver a corporate outcome, such as capital grant funding fo the
43

Page 89




Museum of London to relocate to the Smithfield Market site. Approval to such funding
requires the authority of the Policy and Resources Committee or Capital Buildings
Committee as appropriate.

44
Page 90



SECTION 18. SALARIES, WAGES AND PENSIONS

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

| 18.5

The payment of all salaries, wages, pensions, compensation and other emoluments to all
employees and pensioners of the City Corporation shall be made by the Chamberlain or
under arrangements approved by them.

Each Chief Officer, or their authorised representatives, shall notify the appropriate HR
Business Partner as soon as possible, and in the prescribed form, of all matters affecting
the payment of such emoluments. They will then update City People or complete a Pay 2
form as appropriate. in particular, such matters will include:

a) Appointments, resignations, dismissals, suspensions, secondments and transfers.

b) Absences from duty, apart from approved leave, as laid out in the Employee Handbook.
Sickness absence should be entered by managers directly onto

c¢) Changes in remuneration and pay awards and agreements of general appllcatlon

d) Information necessary to maintain records of service for superannuation, national
insurance, income tax, etc.

All appointments of permanent employees shall be made in accordance with the regulations
of the City Corporation and the approved establishments, grades and rates of pay. The
creation or re-designation of any post requires prior approval in accordance with the
Schemes of Delegation as published by the Town Clerk, for City Corporation Departments
and the four City Schools. Any changes to existing or new posts made in line with this
regulation must be notified to the appropriate HR Business Unit to be entered on the HR
system.

All pay amendments and time records shall be in a form approved by the Chamberlain's
Payroll Manager, this may include emails from Human Resources authorising changes.
Changes shali be notified to the Chamberiain’s Payroll Manager as they occur.

All Line Manager's engaging consultants on behalf of the City Corporation are required to
compiete the HMRC's Employment Status Service tool. The tool must also be used to
ascertain the employment status of other off-payroll workers who do not fall under IR35 but
should be engaged on a fixed term contract or variable contract due to the nature of the
work.

45
Page 91



SECTION 19. INVENTORIES

19.1

19.2

18.3

19.4

19.5

19.6

The Chief Officers shall ensure that inventories of all assets are maintained by their
Department. An inventory is a detailed list of assets. "Assets” shall be taken to mean
furniture, fittings and equipment, plant, machinery and the City Corporation's treasures.
Assets that are belng rented or leased on a long-term basis, or such that the responsibilities
of stewardship lie with the Department, should also be included in the inventory. Generally,
items with a lifespan longer than one year should be included, unless they are already
recorded on a formal stock record system.

The inventory should be in the form of a permanent document. It is important to ensure that
the inventory is complete and that all parts of it are kept together. The inventory can be in
any media, except index cards.

The inventory should provide the following information for each item:

a) Location, but if the item is moved between locations, note the general area (a separate
record of location may well be necessary).

b) Full description

¢) Serial and code numbers, If relevant

d) Date of purchase and cost of acquisition

e) Estimated current replacement value (for insurance purposes), which should be
reviewed annually

f) Date of disposal and the proceeds; and

@) The total of all the estimated current replacement values should be shown, so that the
information is readily available for insurance purposes.

Where practical, the inventory should be updated each time there is an acquisition or
disposal. This will produce a more accurate record than if all the amendments are done at
the end of the year.

Each Chief Officer is responsible for ensuring that an annual check is carried out of all items
on the inventory and for taking action in relation to surpluses and deficiencies. If any
discrepancies are found when checking the inventory, these should be followed up until
reasons have been found. If the result of these findings is that an item has to be removed
from the inventory, then the appropriate authorisation should be sought. If the item
concerned is valued at more than £50,000, then Committee approval should be sought for
any such write-off in accordance with Financial Regulation 19.6 below. The inventory should
then be amended accordingly.

The disposal of any item of inventory shall comply with the City Corporation’s agreed
disposals procedures items of inventory with an estimated disposal value in excess of
£50,000 must be approved by the appropriate Committee. Where the acquisition of an asset
was aggregated into a capital project (e.g. fleet vehicles, personal IT devices such as laptops
etc) then disposal proceeds should be likewise considered on an aggregated basis. Disposal
proceeds generally accrue back to the centre — they may not be used to supplement local
risk budgets or be reallocated to supplement project budgets without specific Member
approval.

48
Page 92



19.7

19.8

19.9

It is important that at least one copy of the of the inventory is held separately from the assets
that it lists, so that if a disaster occurs to the Department or the Guildhall, then all information
is protected for insurance purposes, in the event that items need replacement. If provision
has been made for a business continuity box, as part of the Corporation’s disaster recovery
plan, then this would be the ideal location for a copy of the inventory. For inventories that
are kept on computer disk, backup copies should be kept in a fireproof cabinet in a separate
location to the computer.

All assets, other than for furniture and equipment, which cost in excess of £5,000 are
required to be separately notified to the appropriate registrar for inclusion in the asset
register. The Chamberiain, in their statutory capacity as registrar for funiture and equipment,
may request inventories to be sent to them at 315 March in any one year.

The City Corporation’s property shall not be removed or used otherwise than in accordance
with the ordinary course of the City Corporation’s business or purposes except in
accordance with specific directions issued by the Chief Officer concermned.

47
Page 93



SECTION 20. STOCKS AND STORES

20.1

20.2

20.3

20.4

| 205

Each Chief Officer shall be responsible for the proper care and custody of the stocks and
stores under the control of their department and shall maintain proper records in such a form
and the extent as may be agreed from time to time by the Financial Services Director. This
includes any merchandise held for resale.

Chlef -Officers shall ensure that a count and valuation and reconciliation of all stocks and
stores held in their departments is carried out, either continuously, or on or about the 31¢
March each year. The Financial Services Director, however, may dispense with this
requirement in cases where the value of the items held in store is less than £50,000 in total.

Checks and reconciliations of all stocks and stores, should wherever possible be undertaken
in the presence of a person independent of the keeping of the stores concerned.

All items of stock, other than PC equipment, found to be surplus are to be disposed of at the
best prices available by sale, exchange, internal transfer or scrapped. In respect of PC
equipment, this is to be disposed of in accordance with the procedures detailed on the
appropriate Intranet page as maintained by Digital Information and Technology Services.

The return of all goods to suppliers shall be authoriszed by the appropriate Chief Officer or
their authorised representatives. In each instance officers are only to release such goods
when they are, certain that the return has been properly authorised, satisfied that the
collection company has been previously notified to them, and that they are in recelpt of
appropriate retum note documentation.

48
Page 94



SECTION 21. MOTOR VEHICLES

21.1

21.2

21.3

21.4

21.5

21.8

21.7

21.8

All departments operating vehicles shall maintain records listing details of all motor vehicles
under their control whether owned by, hired by or leased to the City. Each Chief Officer shall
ensure that all such information conceming vehicles under their control is supplied to the
Executive Director of the Environment who is responsible for maintaining an asset register
for City Corporation owned vehicles. The Commissioner of Police shall also maintain a
register of his vehicles.

Chief Officers may acquire and dispose of any vehicle provided they comply with the
Procedure for the Purchase and Disposal of City Corporation Vehicles. City Corporation
vehicles should be registered on the City's fleet management system, except for City of
London Police vehicles. For security reasons the City Police run their own fleet system and
their vehicles should be registered with their systems.

The registration documents of all City Corporation owned vehicles shall be recorded and
held in safekeeping in a manner approved by the Financial Services Director.

Each department hiring or leasing vehicles shall maintain adequate records evidencing the
terms of the hire or leasing agreement.

No vehicle shall be used otherwise than in accordance with the ordinary course of the City
Corporation's businesses or purposes without the prior permission of the Chamberlain. Such
permission is only to be given in exceptional circumstances upon presentation of a written
report providing justification.

A vehicle trip iog shall be kept for ali motor vehicles which require a road fund licence. This
should show as a minimum the milometer readings at the beginning and end of the trip, the
reasons for the trip, and the name of the driver officer in charge of the vehicle during the trip.
Chief Officers shall be responsible for ensuring that milometer readings are continuous.

Where a department has its own fuel pump, comprehensive records shall be maintained of
all deliveries and issues.

The proceeds from the disposal of fleet vehicles previously purchased through a capital
project shall accrue to centrally held reserve and may not be used for other purposes such

as supplementing local risk budgets.

49
Page 95



SECTION 22. ENTERTAINMENT & HOSPITALITY

Hospitality

22.1 Acceptance of gifts or tokens by employees from persons who have, or may seek to have,
dealings with the City Corporation are dealt with through the Employee Handbook — Code
of Conduct — Hospitality & Gifts.

22.2 All other business expenses (business assets) should be purchased via purchasing
cards/petty cash.

Entertainment

223 All business entertainment expenses must be incurred in accordance with the City
Corporation’s Business Travel Policy and Travel and Subsistence Policy which can be found
on SharePoint.

50
Page 96



SECTION 23. DOCUMENT RETENTION

23.1

23.2

23.3

23.4

23.5

23.6

There is very little specific legislation that prescribes retention of document periods for
financial documents in Local Government. Where specific legislation does apply to specific
documents, the minimum retention period has been outlined below., In general, for audit
purposes, all original records should be retained for at least 18 months after the end of the
financial year to which they relate. For example, a document created on 1 June 20242000
should be held until 31 September 20262002 as a minimum.

In addition, the permanent retention of “key records relating to building and engineering
works such as surveys, site plans, drawings, bills of quantities, contract documents,
including those which relating to major projects which have been abandoned or deferred,
deeds, lease documents, insurance policies, inventories, valuations”.

No specific legislation, except that relating to VAT, covers the format in which Local
Government records are retained. If a department wishes to consider electronic storage, it
should ensure that it complies with the British Standard Code of Practice for Legal
Admissibility and Evidential Weight of Information Stored Electronically (PD0008:1899), and
the section on Microfilming and Electronic Storage at the end of this section.

Departmental policy for the retention or destruction of financial records shall be approved
by the Chamberlain or his/her designate, subject to the overriding requirements of the
Director of London Metropolitan Archives and relevant legal requirements which apply.
Details of the minimum periods for which certain records are to be retained, and guidance
as to microfilming and the electronic storage of data, are provided below.

There are legal requirements pertaining to charity financial records retention. In summary
for charitable trusts, the City Corporation as the charity trustee is required to keep accounting
records that are sufficient to: show and explain all the charity's transactions; and disclose at
any time, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the charity. These accounting
records must contain: (a) entries showing from day-to day — ail sums of money received and
expended by the charity, and the matters in respect of which such receipt and expenditure
takes place (e.g. cash books, invoices and receipts); and (b) a record of the charity's assets
and liabilities. These accounting records, together with the accounts and annual reports
prepared from them, are to be preserved for at least six years from the end of the financial
year in which they are made (refer ss 130, 131 and 134 of the Charities Act 2011). Otherwise,
all other records should be retained for the minimum periods as set out below in accordance
with corporate standards.

Rates, Community Charge and Council Tax Records

Apart from archival uses, legal requirements make it necessary to retain details of payments
etc. over a six-year period (Limitation Act 1980).

51
Page 97



23.7

Record Relevant Statute Minimum Perlod of Retention
Valuation Lists General Rate Act 1967 Permanently
Valuation Officer's Direction Lists | General Rate Act 19687 Permanently
' Primary Rate Records 10 Years
Supporting Documents o Primary Rate 6 Years
' Records !
Bailif's completed Receipt Book 10 Years
' Rating Lists L.G. Finance Act 1988 " Permanently
Schedules to Rating Lists L.G. Finance Act 1988 Permanently
Community Charge register L.G. Finance Act 1988 Permanently
Canvass Form | 6 Years
Primary Comm. Charge Records 10 Years
Supporting Documents to 6 Years
. Primary Community Charge Records
Council Tax Valuation Lists L.G. Finance Act 1992 Permanently
' Schedule to Valuation Lists | Permanently
' Primary Council Tax Records ‘ 10 Years
Supporting Documents to ‘ 6 Years
Primary Councll Tax Records
Housing Rental Records
“Record | Relevant Statute | Minimum Period of Retentlon |
Housing Property File / Ledger I 6 Years
Housing Primary Rent Collection | 6 Years |
Records (including rebates and 6 Years '
 refunds)
Other Subsidiary Records After external audit but a

minimum of 18 months after
the end of the financial year. ‘

General Income (other than Rates. Community Charge and Council Tax)

In general, once an account has been paid there is no need to keep supporting records after the
external audit has taken place, except for VAT income accounting purposes (see below).

‘Record

| Relevant Statute

Primary Periodical Income Record-

Minimum Period of Retention |

Primary debtors record

Supporting documents to 1 & 2 above

3 Years

Currency of record or 6 years,
whichever is the longer |

Assessment files (dead case)

Domestic Help Timesheet

3 Years

Income Returns from Departments

After external audit but a
minimum of 18 months after
the financial year

2 years after completion of
external audit

Page 98

1 years after completion of

52



" external audit |

Completed receipt books & other |

' documents

6 Years (see VAT section) |

Cash Register till rolls

6 Years (see VAT section)

‘ Housing Act Advances

Car Loan Repayments, Private Street |

Works, Public Health Acts etc -

payments by instaiments
| over a period of years

All Assessment Records

(for a particular year)

| Basic Information

to be
retained 12 months after
completion of payment.

| Record | Relevant Statute Minimum Perlod of Retention |
| Including Rent Aliowances & General 3 Years

Income

Council Tax and Housing Benefits Limitation Act 1980 6 Years

Community Charge Benefits Limitation Act 1980 6 Years

Expenditure Records

Record

| Relevant Statute

Register of Tenders & Quotations

Contract Documents (where contract is

under seal)

Contract Documents (where contract is

not under seal)

Minimum Period of Retention

Currency of records, or 6
years for dead cases

Unsuccessful quotations & tenders

Contract Regi;ster

Contractors' Final Account Documents

Limitation Act 1980 12 Years
Limitation Act 1980 6 Years
A minimum of 12 months after |
the start of the contract
Indefinitely
Limitation Act 1980 12 Years

Requisitions for supplies / works

Official Copy Orders

Delivery Notes

Periodical Payments Register
| (dead cases)

After external audit but a
minimum of 18 months after
the end of the financial year

6 Years (see VAT section)

6 Years (see VAT section)

' Paid Accounts / Purchase Invoices

" Paid Cheques including Giro
cheques (presented)

6 Years
After external audit but a

Costing Documents

3 Years

minimum of 18 months
after the end of the

financial year

Stores prime records

Page 99

53



Haulage prime records After external audit but a
minimum of 18 months after
{ the end of the financial year
Postage returns After external audit but a
minimum of 18 months after
the end of the financial
B year
inter-departmental account transfer End of the financial year
Petty cash voucher ' 6 years
Detailed expenditure tabulations (final 6 years
| tabulations) |
Year-end costing and financial 3 years
 tabulations B
Rechargeable work job orders | 3 years
PAYROLL
Record _ | Relevant Statute | Minimum Period of Retentlon
Timeshests including Bonus Sheet After external audit but a
Car Allowance claims minimum of 18 months after
| | the end of the financial year
Other staff returns (e.g. overtime After external audit but a
allowances) minimum of 18 months after
the end of the financial year
Payrolls (in whatever final form} 3 Years
P11 & P35 returns 3 Years -
' Individual pensioners files | | Currency of record, 12

months after case has been
cleared after death '

" Pensions payroll | 3 Years '
“ Superannuation [

Register of Contributors and Local Government Indefinitely |
| Contributions | Superannuation Act

Transfer Value documents Indefinitely

Register of Pensioners indefinitely

Quinguennial Valuations - all papers ‘ Indefinitely

and records

Half-Year tabulations of employees 6 Years

superannuable pay and

contributions

54
Page 100



OTHER ACCOUNTING RECORDS

| General Accounting Records | Relevant Statute Minimum Period of Retention
Bank Pass-Book sheets 7 Years

| Receivership Records 7 Years
Cashier's Collection & Deposit o 7 Years
Book B B .
Cashier's Petty Cash 7 Years

“Imprest Account 7 Years
Post-dated cheques register 7 Years
RD Cheques register 7 Years

' Cheques (blank) register o 7 Years o

" Unpaid wages book 7 Years o

' Deceased Persons Effects Register " Indefinitely
Records of patient’s property handed | 6 Years after the end of the
in for safe custody and property held financial year in which the
under Section 48 National Assistance property was disposed
Act 1948 -
Investment Records Relevant Statute | Minimum Period of Retention
Register of holdings Indefinitely
Bought and sales notes when holdings | Limitation Act 1980 ' 6 Years
disconnected

. Loan Records Relevant Statute _ Minimum Period of Retention
Register of Bonds / Mortgages Indefinitely

' Copy Bond Certificates 6 Years after redemption of

. bond
Temporary Loans Register Limitation Act 1980 After external audit but a

minimum of 18 months after
| the end of the financial year |

| Insurance Records | Relevant Statute ' Minimum Perlod of Retention
Register of Insurances Indefinitely

" Insurance Policies (discontinued) Indefinitely

Financial Administration Records | Relevant Statute Minimum Period of Retention

Controlled stationery register

Indefinitely

Page 101

55



VAT RECORD

All records relating to VAT (detailed below) VAT Act 1994: 6 Years

Type of Record

Detall

Business and accounting records

Orders and delivery notes

Relevant Business correspondence
Purchase and sales books

Cash and other accounts books

Purchase invoices and copy sales invoices
Record of daily takings e.g. till rolls

Annual Accounts

Import and export documents

Bank Statements and paying in slips

A VAT account

Any Credit or debit notes issued or received

A VAT Account

An account summarising the totals of the output
tax and input tax for each period. I

Copies of all VAT invoices issued

A copy of all VAT invoices must be retained either |
on paper, computer or other media and should be
readily available for ingspection.

All VAT invoices received

A copy of all VAT invoices must be retained either
on paper, or computer or other media and should
be readily available for ingpection. -

| Documentation relating to acquisition of goods
from other EU countries

All documents must be retained either on paper,
computer or other media and be readily available
for inspection

Copy documentation relating to the transfer, |
dispatch or transportation of goods to or from EU
countries.

All documents must be retained either on paper,
computer or other media and be readily available
for inspection, including documentary evidence of
any goods leaving the UK.

'Documents relating to imports and exports.

| All documents must be retained either on paper,

computer or other media and be readily available
for inspection, including documentary evidence of
any goods leaving the UK.

All credit notes, debit notes or other documents
which evidence an increase or decrease in
consideration that are received and coples of all
such documents that are issued.

A copy of all credit notes, debit notes or other
documents must be retained either on paper,
computer or other media and shouid be readily
available for ingpection.

Any documents or certificates supporting special
VAT treatment such as relief on supplies to visiting
forces or zero-rating by certificate.

A copy of all documents or certificates must be
retained either on paper, computer or cther media
and should be readily available for inspection.

Additional records as required by HMRC such as
copies of self-billing invoice agreements.

Any other additional records must be retained
either on paper, computer or other media and
should be readily available for ingpaction.

56

Page 102



Microfilming & Electronic Storage of Documents

23.8 Subject to normal audit procedures for microfilming of documents, the following points are
refevant to retention of documents.

23.9 Sections 37 and 39 of the GLC (General Powers) Act 1969 empower the City of London
Corporation to make microfilm records of their documents which, notwithstanding that the
document may have been destroyed are receivable in evidencs, If properly verified, in Court
proceedings.

23.10 Any documents to be electronically scanned or microfilmed, for VAT purposes, must first be
reported to the Chamberlain’s Corporate Treasurer who will seek the permission of HMRC.

23.11 Any documents which have been microfiimed may, subject to the conditions set out in
Sections below, be destroyed after formal closure of the audit for a financial year
by the external auditor. In certain situations, the audit may remain open for a longer period
of time. If an audit remains open the authorities must seek approval of the extemal auditors
for the disposal for any documents.

23.12 Instances when documents should be retained:

a) Records deposited under Section 4 of the Public Records Act 1958 are to be retained
permanently.

b) Records deposited or acquired under Section 5 of the City of London (Various Powers)
Act 1962 and Section 2 of the Local Govemment (Records) Act 1962, as amended by
the London Government Act of 1963 and any relevant later Acts.

¢) Documents which are or may be value for administrative, historical, sociological or
research purposes should be retained.

d) Before documents are destroyed it is recommended that an Archivist be consulted for
advice:

e On the retention on a selective or sampling basis (say 1% to 2%) of a typical set of
papers.

* When doubts exist on documents which should be preserved as having an historical
value not only because of their age, but the fact that current documents may from
their content or nature have an historical value.

» On the retention of microfilm after its use for administrative purposes has ceased or
at the end of any statutory period for which it is required.

23.13 In general, any microfilm intended to be preserved should be original film and not a diazo
copy. References to microfilm are equally applicable to microfiche.

57
Page 103



SECTION 24. VERIFICATION OF CONTRACTORS AND CONSULTANTS FINAL
ACCOUNTS

241

24.2

24.3

244

Verification of Contractors’ and Consultants' Final Accounts

The verification procedures set out in (a) and (b) below will apply to final accounts for works
contracts. In this context, references to risks relate to the matrix set out in the Project
Procedure:

a) All Final accounts which exceed £50,000 in value will be subject to an independent
verification check, undertaken by a suitably experienced officer within the relevant
implementing department, regardless of whether the overall risk of the project has been
assessed at some point as low, medium or high risk,

b) In addition, final accounts of £2,000,000 and above will also be subject to final account
verification by the Chamberlain’s Financial Services Division (FSD) or the City Bridge
Foundation Financial Director (for CBF projects) where (i) the value is £2,000,000 to
£10,000,000 and the overall risk of the project has been assessed at some point as
“Medium” or "High", and (ii) the value exceeds £10,000,000 regardiess of the risk
assessment.

All final account documentation is to be made available before or with the submission of the
final account, which is itself to be prepared in accordance with the contract conditions (e.g.
within 3 or 8 months of practical completion) and immediately submitted for verification by
the Clty of London. Where the final account has not been verified as correct in accordance
with clauses and/or the Final Payment Certificate/Invoice is not to be paid prior
to approval of an outcome report (Gateway 6 report as set out in the Project Procedure)
which informs Members of the position of the Final Account Verification.

The verification procedures set out in (a) and (b) below will apply to final fee accounts for
consultants that exceed £50,000 in value. In this context, references to rigks relate to the
matrix set out in the Project Procedure:

a) Fee accounts associated with works contracts will be subject to an independent
verification check, undertaken by a suitably experienced officer within the relevant
implementing department, regardless of whether the overall risk of the project has been
assessed at some point as low, medium or high risk,

b) Fee accounts shall also be submitted for verification by the FSD where the assoclated
works contract final account requires verification by the FSD in accordance with the
above regulations.

Where a consultant’s remit includes preparation of final account documentation for the works
contract, they shall not submit their final fee account for payment until the works contract
final account has been verified as correct in accordance with clauses and/or
above. A clause to this effect should have been inserted in the fee agreement.

58
Page 104



24,5

24.6

24.7

Submission of Final Accounts to the Chamberlain’s Financial Services Division for
Verification

Project Management and Technical staff shall either prepare final accounts, or ensure that
this is done by our consultant(s) and contractor(s) for all works contracts, in accordance with
the time scales stipulated in the contract conditions, and then make this information available
in either digital or hard copy format to the appropriate Financial Services Head of Finance
along with relevant supporting documentation in the form of Contract Instructions, Variation
Orders, Site Meeting Minutes, Practical Completion Certificates, Extension of Time
Certificates, Payment Certificates, Invoices, Day-Work Sheets, Priced Bills of Quantities,
Specifications, etc.

Project Management and Technical staff shall prepare final fee accounts for all consultancy
appointments, in accordance with the time scales stipulated in the contract conditions and
then make this information available in either digital or hard copy format to the appropriate
Financial Services Head of Finance or CBF Head of Finance along with relevant supporting
documentation.

When all the applicable documentation is available the “Originating” Officer in the technical
department should email that the final account is ready for verification to the appropriate
Financial Services Head of Finance. This is the Head of Finance who heads the unit
responsible for providing financia! support services to the client department for the project
in question. For works contracts, attached to this emall should be a completed copy of the
Contractor’s Final Account checklist form. This email should be copied to the Town Clerk’s
Corporate Programme Team and to the CBF Chief Operating Officer for CBF schemes, for

information.

59
Page 105



Page 106



Agenda Item 12

City of London Corporation Committee Report

Committee(s):

Finance Committee — For Information

Corporate Services Committee — For Information
Digital Services Committee — For Information

Dated:

29 April 2025
7 May 2025
15 May 2025

Subject:
Quarterly Programme Sapphire (ERP) Update Report —
Q4 2024/25

Public report:

For Information

This proposal:
e delivers Corporate Plan 2024-29 outcomes
e provides statutory duties
e provides business enabling functions

Providing Excellent Services

Chamberlain’s Department?

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or No
capital spending?

If so, how much? N/A
What is the source of Funding? N/A
Has this Funding Source been agreed with the N/A

Report of:

Caroline Al-Beyerty,
Chamberlain

Report author:

Simon Gray, Chamberlain’s
Department

Summary

The Programme has made good progress and is tracking to both plan and budget.
The first go live milestone (the Learning Management System) has been achieved and

the remaining Wave 1 deliverable are progressing well.

The scale and complexity of the programme requires additional risk mitigation for
Wave 2 (HR & Payroll) and Wave 3 (Finance). There has been no change in the plan
and the focus is on taking proactive steps to mitigate any delivery risks. All risks are

being managed at Programme Board level.

The principle of “Adopt not Adapt” is being maintained and there have been minimal
changes proposed. A quality assurance partner (SAP) has been appointed to provide

additional confidence and help drive the transformation work.

Recommendation(s)

Members are asked to:
e Note the report.

Page 107



Main Report

Background

1. The Programme Sapphire - Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Programme is the
project for the City of London Corporation to replace its current legacy systems; City
People (Midland i-Trent) for HR & Payroll and Oracle R12 for both strategic and
operational finance.

2. The new ERP Solution will modernise the technology we rely upon to deliver back-
office services aligning our services with organisational excellence.

3. A vital component of the new ERP Solution is that it will support the City of London
Corporation’s culture change. It will promote and enable self-service for all
employees to access their information, provide access to real-time information and
enable informed business decisions.

4. The change workstream will be key to driving the success of the programme over
and above the technology, this is driven by the ‘adopt not adapt’ principle.

5. The Programme is delivering in 3 waves (see Appendix 3 for further details):

Wave 1 Leaning Management System (April 2025) Q1 2025/26
Performance & Goals (May 2025)
Recruitment (June 2025)

Wave 2 | Core HR & Payroll Q3 2025/26
Wave 3 | Finance & Budget Management / Forecasting Q1 2026/27

Current Position

Overall Status Status Summary and Commentary (inc. pathto green)

Lo it Qi Vi Tracking to amber across the programme until Payroll / Finance is locked to delivery plan. Mitigation in place for both to bring back to green and

_ ' expected to reportgreen for next quarter.

) 6.Payroll
1.Initiation @ 4TestingHR & Payroll 7.TestingFinance
? 2.IMs @ 3-Performance & Goals @ 5HR 8.Finance | 9.Operational

2024/25Q3 2024/2504 2025/26 Q1 2025/26 Q2 2025/26 Q3 2025/26 Q4 2026/27 Q1

6. Significant progress has been made in strengthening the Programme Team
through a combination of internal appointments and external recruitment. Across
the programme no critical roles are currently outstanding. The high-level structure
can be viewed in Appendix 1. Additional recruitment will be linked to the
programme phases.

7. The overall budget forecast is unchanged at £19m with no use of Costed Risk
Provision (£8.6m). Appendix 4 provides a breakdown of the budget. Variances in
actual vs forecast is related to actual spend being slower due to:

Page 108



e Spend with System Integrator being weighted towards end of programme
linked to milestones / outcomes vs original forecast which was based on
expected burn rate.

e Programme Team ramp-aligned to phased delivery plan / controls on backfill

budget.

8. Progress against the plan is currently logged as Amber with the following status

updates:

Wave 1 Update

9. Progress is Green with the programme on track / delivering against the plan:

Module Progress Update
Leaning e The Learning Management module had a soft go-live on 01/04 to
Management a limited number of users and is now available to all users from
System the 07/04
(April 2025) | e A train-the-trainer approach was used for the Learning team, with
end user training being supported by quick guides / videos
e A full User Acceptance Testing (UAT) was completed for the
product prior to go live and all issues either resolved or a
mitigation in place as shown below in readiness for cut-over.
e Delivery was achieved to plan and cost.
Metric Phase 1 Phase 2 Total
Total Tasks Tested 420 312 732
Issues Reported 29 22 51
Issues Resolved 24 18 42
Known Issues (Still Open—SAP Aware) 5 4 9
Success Rate (Tasks with noissues) 93.10% 92.90% 93.00%
Issue Resolution Rate (Resolved) 82.80% 81.80% 82.40%
Performance | ¢ Completed System Integration Testing and UAT will be
& Goals completed in April in preparation for planned go live on the 19t
(May 2025) of May.

A train-the-trainer approach will be used for the Performance
Team, with end user training being supported by quick guides /
videos but being intuitive in nature.

Delivery is forecast as on time and budget.

Recruitment
(June 2025)

Recruitment will progress through System Integration Testing,
User Acceptance Testing in preparation for planned go-live in
June. Existing recruitment will complete in the existing system
meaning the solution will work in parallel to ensure current
campaigns are not disrupted. Delivery is on time and budget.
Recruitment will have a more extensive training support given the
relative complexity and need to embed process changes —
supported by guides and videos

10.The Digital workstream had a strong quarter supporting the data migration of the
Learning Management solution and resolving issues with single sign-on across
the institutions. This was welcomed by staff compared to the multi-factor

Page 109




authentication process required by the existing HR solution and was part of a wider
Digital Services Team initiative to make life simpler for colleagues across the
Corporation.

11.The Change Management work steam has supported the creation of the Change
Champions with Future Ambition 18 with over 50 volunteers identified across the
organisation.

12.The benefits tracking is in place to track Wave 1 deliverables following and will be
further expanded in Wave 2 & 3.

Wave 2 Update

13.Progress is Amber (see table below). The plan remains on track, there are risks
to delivery being tracked with mitigating work in progress to return to Green. The
overall programme status is Green but the following actions are being tracked
which has resulted in an amber status:

Module Progress Update
HR Service e SAP have decided to sunset their existing product (in 5 years'
Desk time) and the Corporation will need to evaluate the alternative
(December product to ensure compliance with requirements.
2025) e This issue has been escalated to SAP at the latest executive
meeting by the SRO.
Employee e The workshops are underway in March / April and need to
Health & evidence the product meets UK requirements. This is a Wave 3
Safety (April deliverable.
2026) e This issue has been escalated to SAP at the latest executive
meeting by the SRO
Payroll e The plan is being evaluation to ensure that December 2025 is
(December achievable with contingency plans in the event of delays during
2025) the parallel run process.
e This issue has been escalated to HCL to resolve and mitigation
is in place and a draft plan to return to green

14.The Corporation leads are now focused on data collection/ cleansing in preparation
for the first data migration wave. Workshops are due to complete in April in
readiness for first wave migrations in July 2025.

15.The level of change management / stakeholder management needs to increase
significantly with a focus on driving the transformation from the service delivery
teams (Finance / HR / DITS).

Wave 3 Update

16.Progress against the overall plan is currently logged as Amber with the following
status updates:

e The explore phase was planned to complete by the 31t °F March but key
decisions over the enterprise structure, chart of accounts and hierarchy were
outstanding. This risk was escalated to the Chamberlain and Financial Services

Page 110



Director on 25/02/25. Measures to address this issue include onboarding an
Assurance Partner and implementing additional scrutiny and sign-off
procedures by the Financial Services Director. Additional support was also
offered by SAP was also provided to resolve the issue and a recommendation
was made to Programme Board on the 24/03/25 which enabled design work to
progress and build work on the HR workstream.

e Resource gaps from the system integration partner (HCL) were escalated on
the 07/02/25 on the HCL governance call by the SRO and Financial Services
Director and by Board on the 25/02/25

e HCL director committed to provide the resource on the 28/02/25 to the SRO

e Resource provision will continue to be flagged on the monthly review calls with
the SRO

e The workstream is currently being re-planned and the expectation is still to
deliver for 15t April 2026 once the replan is complete.

e The level of change management / stakeholder management needs to increase
significantly with a focus on driving the transformation from the service delivery
teams (Finance / DITS).

Procurement Update

17.The Corporation completed a procurement using the G-Cloud framework and
appointed EPI-USE as the data migration for SuccessFactors (HR & Payroll) to
December 2025. They will bring specific resource and tools to de-risk the Wave 2
delivery plan.

18.Concur, which is the expenses module of SAP, was confirmed in March 2025. This
was part of the original procurement scope, but the service / software was not
contracted until the programme was ready to commence delivery. The delivery of
Concur is direct with SAP rather than the other elements which sit with HCL.

19.The SAP “Preferred Success” services will be used to provide quality assurance
on the design of the solution and also to maximise the transformation capabilities
of the product with the expansion of new features.

Look ahead — Quarter 2 2025/26

20.The build for Wave 2 (HR and Payroll) to be completed and commencement of
System Integration Testing (this will include 3 playback sessions to validate the
solution during build and the delivery of data migration to support the testing
waves.

21.Explore phase to be completed and build and playback sessions to be delivered
(but not completed).

22.Change champions network to be established and training needs analysis (TNA)
to support the Wave 2 & 3 delivery plans — See Appendix 2.

Page 111



Corporate & Strategic Implications

Strategic implications
23. The ERP Programme supports the Corporate Initiatives to deliver brilliant basics
and mitigates the risk of unsupported legacy systems.

Financial implications

24. Digital Services Committee, Finance Committee and Court of Common Council
have approved the budget envelope to bring in the relevant resources including
backfills.

Resource implications
25. The requirement of resourcing is detailed in this paper.

Legal implications
26. All staff resourcing, and employment contracts will comply with statutory
requirements and be in line with best practice.

Risk implications

27. Failure to baseline the programme roles would place a risk on the organisation.
Equalities implications

28. An Equalities Impact Assessment was done initially and is currently being

updated and will be brought back for review. This will be routinely updated
throughout the life of the programme.

Climate implications
29. None

Security implications
30. None (other than standard vetting requirements)

Conclusion

23.The programme is tracking to plan on deliverables and budget and no use of costed
risk. The key principle of adopt not adapt is being adhered to with minimal change.
Risk and issues will continue to be monitored / reported with the focus on robust
planning for Wave 2 & 3. The levels of change management / stakeholder
engagement need to ramp up to support the transformation journey over the next
guarter and will be reported on at the next stage report.

Appendices

e Appendix 1 — High Level Structure Chart

e Appendix 2 — Comms and Engagement Roadmap
e Appendix 3 — Project Plan on the page

e Appendix 4 — Budget Update (Non-Public)

Simon Gray
Programme Director, Chamberlain’s Department

T: 07557 568016
E: simon.gray@-cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 112


mailto:simon.gray@cityoflondon.gov.uk

PROGRAMME et

Appendix 1 - High Level Structure Chart PHIRE ...

Programme Manager i
] HR & Payroll Lead Jumoke Alli
HCL Prog Lead Nichelas Toko SuccessFactors SA
Dawson Morris
Colin Ready
SA Suresh Rao
Finance SA
L] Finance Lead
Radwan Ahmed
Jasper Visser
- Abi’:;::::"g Budgeting and Forecasting SA
Q
«Q ERP Programme Director
Simon G
® thd Sowriharan Manoharan
E Data Migration SA
w HCL Kemi Oyesiku TBC N DITS Lead
PMO Lead PMO analyst Gary Standford
Col Suchita Kamath
SAC Planning Lead
] Jennifer Bryan
New Change Lead
Starters/
Position
Planned - Niki Parr
Cutover Manager
Leaver/
Gap

Improved Efficiency | Increased Capacity | Improved Information Programme Sapphire delivering Brilliant Basics




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 114



PROGRAMME

Appendix 2 - Comms arn.ad Engagement Roadmap PHIRE ..

Audience | Oct/Nov | Dec/Jan | Feb/Mar | Apr/May Jun/Jul | Aug/Sep | Oct/Nov | Dec/Jan | Feb/Mar | Apr/May Jun/Jul
2024 2024/5 2025 2025 2025 2025 2025 2025/6 2026 2026 2026

H Identify Key Strategic Messag Reinforcement Strateg|c Go Live Strateg\c Go Live
Executives Salkahaldlzs A Strategic Go Live A Strategic Message Message A Reinforcement Message A Reinforcement
Sponsors Leadership Interviews Message SiyElizgfE Mzasngz Strategic Message
And survey Active and visible support
=L A Support Message to Reinforcement Reimcoreement A Reinforcement
Leadership Network | Strategic Message Strategic Message Fisgle Wessage
ALeadership Event:
Launch change I Provide resources to support programme
Leadership network l
Network Identify & . o
Approve I Active and visible support
Monthly Briefings
mv) D?g‘;;::e Develop and deploy team engagement activities
Q_) Change change Programme Engagement Activities
«Q Champions network ALEU“ChSUPP‘J’T ALaunchSuppor‘t ALaunehSuppor‘t
D Training on new systems
Y Develop feedback tools
= . .
U1 Leade.rshlp CCid& I Deploy communications to staff and managers
e . Interviews approval
Institutions CC Incal P
rca fomo Deploy events, training, workshops and activities
Develop communication Implement comment and feedback tools
plan with local comms team I
A Local showcase
L Reinforce I A Canteen showcase
ine R
vision to :
Managers & staff cc Prdnotion
Staff I Deploy communications to staff and managers
Deploy events, training, workshops and activities
I Implement commentand feedback tools
A SR showcaﬂ Go Live A A Go Live A Go Live A Go Live
& Away Day
Programme
aam I Weekly Workstream Meetings
Meonthly Committee and Board Meetings/Briefings
I Technical Definition
I UAT

Improved Efficiency | Increased Capacity | Improved Information Programme Sapphire delivering Brilliant Basics



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 116



Appendix 3 — Plan on a Page

Progress Status Vs Plan—As Per Week — 31.03.2025

*EC & ECP Plan subject to change as per CoL’s decision on PPR proposal submitted.
#% S/4 Finance plan subject to changed as per CoL’s decision on revised plan submitted.

Wave P]. a.n We’re Here

I 2025

2024

Moo Mo1 Mo2 M03 W04 M05 06 M7 M08 M09 M10
Oct24 Nov 24 Dec 24 Jan 25 Feb25 Mar 25 I Apr2s May 25 Jun 25 Jul 25 Aug 25

Learning Management Preparation

"
Build SIT UAT Culvn

mv) Perf. & Goals Management “ n
QD
% RecruitMgmt & Recruit Mktng . - Cutover
H "y -
: Employee Central & Payroll* Preparation : Build
Onboarding
Succession & CDP

Employee Central Service Centre

S/4HANA Finance, Procurement, Preparation W iz?
orkshops

Sales & EH&S**

SAC Budgeting & Forecasting for =5
Finance Preparation Workshops Build SIT UAT

Improved Efficiency | Increased Capacity | Improved Information

PROGRAMME

PHIRE

Target Milestones #Wave 1 Key Dates

Wave# 1 -LMS (MVP) Planned Go —Live

Wave# 1 -PM/GM (MVP) Planned Go-Live

Wave# 1 -RCM, RMK (MVP) Planned Go-Live
2026

M13 W14 W15 M16 M17 M18
Nov 25 Dec 25 Jan 26 Feb 26 Mar 26 Apr 26

Cutover

SIT/UAT S,
Integration

Programme Sapphire delivering Brilliant Basics



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 118



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 13

City of London Corporation Committee Report

Committee(s):
Finance Committee — For information

Dated:
29 April 2025

Subiject:
Chamberlain’s Business Plan Quarter 4 2024/25 update

Public report:
For information

This proposal:
e delivers Corporate Plan 2024-29 outcomes
e provides statutory duties
e provides business enabling functions

Chamberlain’s Department
as a support service aims to
impact all six outcomes in
the Corporate Plan directly
or indirectly.

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or No
capital spending?
If so, how much? N/A

What is the source of Funding?

Budgets already agreed by
this committee for 2024/25

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the
Chamberlain’s Department?

Yes, within budget estimate
and capital funding already
agreed

Report of:

The Chamberlain

Report author:

Hayley Puhlhofer, Head of
Chamberlain’s Office

Summary

This report provides an update on the progress of Chamberlain's Department against

Business Plan during quarter four of 2024/25.
Highlights from quarter four of 2024/25 include:

e Financial Shared Services have completed Annual Billing with all Council Tax

and Business Rates bills dispatched on time.

e Internal Audit achieved the 600 audit days target for the 2024/25 year.

e Programme Sapphire (the ERP Programme implementing SAP Financials and
HR) continued to track to Plan. The full design was signed-off for HR & Payroll
and Wave 1 deliverables have been built (Learning Management System,
Performance & Goals and Recruitment) and will go live in Q1 2025/26. Wave 2
build is due to complete at the end of Q1 2025/26 (Core HR & Payroll) and
Wave 3 (Finance) will sign off design and then commence build in the next
guarter. The programme is tracking to budget and is resourced to plan. The
overall status is tracked as Amber while the detailed planning is completed for

Wave 2 / 3.

1
Page 121




The details of the key updates, challenges and future priorities are detailed in
Appendix 1.

Recommendation
Members are asked to note the report.

Main Report

Background

1. The Chamberlain’s Department provides quarterly updates to Finance Committee
on the activities and achievements against the approved business plan. This
report provides an update on the department’s performance during quarter four of
2024/25.

Current Position

Financial Services Division & Corporate Treasury

2. The production of medium-term cash flow modelling for both City Fund and City’s
Estate has now transitioned into business as usual. At the February meeting, the
Investment Committee received an update on the latest cashflow forecast position,
considering significant decisions made around the Barbican Renewal Programme
and Markets. This collaborative effort between Chamberlain’s and the City
Surveyor’s teams informs Members about the cash flow requirements for City
Fund and City’s Estate over the medium-term financial plan. Investment
Committee agreed a capital realisation strategy to ensure sufficient liquidity for
major project costs, daily operations, and unforeseen expenses. Additionally, for
City’s Estate, the proposed strategy aligns with the broader asset allocation
targets, considering the timeframes necessary for the disposal of illiquid property
investment assets.

3. The 2025/26 Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment
Strategy (relating to Treasury Management) was approved by the Court of
Common Council at their March meeting.

Financial Shared Services

4. Annual Billing for Business Rates and Council Tax was completed on time with
the Second Home Premium for Council Tax being implemented and all impacted
residents being notified in advance of the bill. This is the first-year e-billing has
been available for all Council Tax and Business Rates customers since it was
rolled out in September 2024.

5. In-year collection rates for Council Tax during Q4 2024/25 is at 97.9% which is an
increase of 1.3% when compared to Q4 23/24. This is the best in-year collection
performance since 2018/19 and the best since the Covid Pandemic.

6. In-year collection rates for Business Rates during Q4 2024/25 is at 97.32% which
is an increase on 96.07% when compared to Q4 23/24 collection.

7. Investment Property Income overall collection was 94.70% at the end of Q4 which
equates to £8.5m of arrears. £40.7k is subject to an ongoing arrangement and
circa £50k relates to former tenant arrears. £3.6m is with City Solicitor’s for further
action.

2
Page 122



The City’s performance for the payment of invoices within 30 days has improved
since Q4, with 95.35% paid within 30 days, however this is still 1.65% short of the
target.

Housing and Council Tax Benefit claim processing performance has improved
from Q3. Days to assess new claims has improved from 12.44 days to 10.23 days
and changes of circumstance have been assessed in 3.23 days, which is a
marginal increase from 3.05 days in Q3.

Internal Audit

10.

The Internal Audit team achieved the baseline target of 600 audit days delivered
in 2024/25 and remains on target to achieve the longer-term target of 1000 audit
days per year by 31/03/2026. Sufficient work has been completed to enable the
Head of Internal Audit to form an opinion on the overall adequacy of the Internal
Control Environment, Governance and Risk Management arrangements, this
opinion will follow on completion of the detailed analysis of audit findings.
Excellent progress has been made in transitioning to the new Global Internal Audit
Standards in accordance with the Internal Audit Strategy.

Chamberlain’s Transformation

11.

12.

13.

14.

Programme Sapphire (ERP) completed the build and testing for the first
deliverable, the learning management system. Work continues on the design of
the chart of accounts for the new SAP system. A key focus for Q4 was resourcing
the team to deliver the programme and enabling the change and engagement
workstreams.

The Digital, Data and Technology Strategy 2024-2029, was launched at the end
of 2024 and the Chamberlain’s Transformation Board met in January to identify
opportunities across the department where the new strategy can be utilised to
create efficiencies, such as Al bots to answer general enquiries, automation of
reporting and modernising our processes.

The Financial Services Transformation (FIT Strategy) is under development,
whilst the strategy is being refined, the transformation works have continued. A
skills assessment was completed for all team members to inform the training
programme for 2025/26; the budget setting process reset was delivered for
2025/26 and will be refined for 2026/27; and reporting templates have been
updated. Further transformation is planned for 2025/26, in preparation for the
implementation of the SAP Finance system in April 2026.

The Commercial Improvement Programme is now underway, Q4 of 2024/25
was focused on designing the new service, with consultation being completed on
transitioning to a category structure (taking effect from 15t April 2025). The
Procurement Act 2023 has come into effect in February and internal and supplier
facing documentation and processes have been updated in conjunction with the
Comptrollers team to comply with the legislative changes. Engagement was
commenced with internal commercial service users on the new upcoming
Procurement Policy, which will be presented to Members of this committee in
June. Finally, the Training and Development workstream, undertook a training

3
Page 123



needs analysis for all Commercial Team Members to design the 2025/26 training
programme.

Commercial, Change and Portfolio Delivery

15. The Commercial Service has completed significant work in readiness for the new
procurement act which is now in effect. Training sessions have been rolled out to
stakeholders across the Corporation and the appropriate policies, templates and
processes have been updated to reflect the legislative changes. These will be
monitored for improvements throughout 2025.

16. The new Project Management System, Cora, has been developed and configured.
Training on the new system will commence in Q1 25/26. Work continues on the
new project procedure and gateways which will be presented for committee
approvals in July 2025.

17. The CCPD Service is now fully resourced, skills and competency assessments
are being undertaken and a learning and development programme will be
launched alongside start of year appraisals.

Conclusion
18. The Chamberlain’s Department have made good progress on the 2024/25
business plan and will work to build on this success in the 2025/26 Business Plan.

Corporate & Strategic Implications
Strategic _implications — Strategic priorities and commitments are expressed in
Appendix 1.

Financial implications — The 2024/25 Business Plan reflected a 3% inflationary
increase on pay and prices against the departmental budget as agreed by Court of
Common Council in March 2024.

Resource implications — The recruitment campaign to fill the new roles in the
Commercial, change and portfolio delivery division was undertaken in Q2 the team are
now fully resourced.

Legal implications — None.

Risk implications — Key risks managed by the department are included in the Risk
Update Report also received by this committee.

Equalities implications — The department has a separate Equalities and Inclusion Plan
which aims to improve the department’s Equalities position for employees. Where
appropriate the department will complete Equality Impact Assessment for upcoming
changes.

Climate Implications — Under the Climate action strategy the departments Corporate
Treasury function is responsible for delivering Scope 3 emission actions related to our
financial investments.

Security implications — None.

4
Page 124



Background Papers
Draft Chamberlain's Business Plan for 2024/25 — 23 January 2024
Draft Commercial Business Plan for 2024/25 — 23 January 2024

Appendices
Appendix 1 — Chamberlain’s Business Plan progress report
Appendix 2 — Transformation Dashboard

Hayley Puhlhofer

Head of Chamberlain’s Office

T: 0207 332 1033
Hayley.Puhlhofer@cityoflondon.gov.uk

5
Page 125


mailto:Hayley.Puhlhofer@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 126



Chamberlain 2024-25 Business Plan Quarterly Report
Q4 1 January - 31 March 2025
Report completed by

Executive Summary

Our Impacts 2024/25

2024 saw unprecedented numbers of applicants admitted to the Freedom of the City of London, continuing to work with our stakeholders and building relationships.

Development medium term cash flow modelling for both City Fund and City’s Estate is now business as usual enabling advice on internal borrowing caps, external borrowing requirements/limits, draw down on financial investments and reserves held in illiquid asset classes such as property.
Internal Audit achieved the baseline target of 600 audit days delivered in 2024/25 and remains on target to achieve the longer term target of 1000 audit days per year by 31/03/2026. This has provided sufficient work for the Head of Internal Audit to for an opinion on the overall adequacy of the
Internal Control Environment, Governance and Risk Management arrangements.

Programme Sapphire (ERP) completed the build and testing for the first deliverable; the learning management system. The new system is far more user friendly and we should see benefits of this in the coming year.

Secured HCL as our delivery partner for Programme Sapphire which will enable us to deliver the programme to target.

Summary of Q4

The Chamberlain's Department have made good progress against the departmental business plan for 2024/25. In Quarter 4 the Internal Audit team achieved the baseline target of 600 audit days delivered in 2024/25 and remains on target to achieve the longer term target of 1000 audit days per
year by 31/03/2026. Sufficient work has been completed to enable the Head of Internal Audit to form an opinion on the overall adequacy of the Internal Control Environment, Governance and Risk Management arrangements, this opinion will follow on completion of the detailed analysis of audit
findings. In-year collection rates for Council Tax during Q4 2024/25 was 97.9% which is an increase of 1.3% when compared to Q4 23/24. This is the best in-year collection performance since 2018/19 and the best since the COVID Pandemic. The Commercial Service has completed significant
work in readiness for the new procurement act which is now in effect. Training sessions have been rolled out to stakeholders across the Corporation and the appropriate policies, templates and processes have been updated to reflect the legislative changes. The new Project Management
System, Cora, has been developed and configured. Training on the new system will commence in Q1 25/26. Work continues on the new project procedure and gateways which will be presented for committee approvals in July 2025.

Cross - cutting themes:

Chamberlain's colleagues are very active in staff Networks with many of our colleagues taking part as members co-chairs or sponsors. The team contribute to the Corporate EEDI Groups and colleagues are also encouraged to
join networks. EQIAs are completed on projects. We have recently been active participants in the EEDI corporate review. O

having relaunched our EEDI group we have just agreed our Terms of Reference with the following objectives.

*Responsible for driving Chamberlain’s activities to support the delivery of the City of London Corporation’s equality objectives and priorities.

A forum to escalate and discuss EEDI issues and to make decisions as appropriate.

A forum to discuss good news stories. [

1. EEDI

Programme Sapphire (ERP) completed the build and testing for the first deliverable; the learning management system. Work continues the design of the chart of accounts for the new SAP system. A key focus for Q4 was
resourcing the team to deliver the programme and enabling the change and engagement workstreams. The Digital, Data and Technology Strategy 2024-2029, was launched at the end of 2024 and the Chamberlain’s
Transformation Board met in January to identify opportunities across the department where the new strategy can be utilised to create efficiencies, such as through Al bots to answer general enquiries, automation of reporting
and modernising our processes. The Financial Services Transformation (FIT Strategy) is under development, whilst the strategy is being refined, the transformation works have continued; a skills assessment was completed
for all team members to inform the training programme for 2025/26, the budget setting process reset was delivered for 2025/26 and will be refined for 2026/27 and reporting templates have been updated. Further transformation
is planned for 2025/26, in preparation for the implementation of the SAP Finance system in April 2026. The Commercial Improvement Programme is now underway, Q4 of 2024/25 was focused on designing the new service,
with consultation being completed on transitioning to a category structure (taking effect from 1st April 2025). The Procurement Act 2023 has come into effect in February and internal and supplier facing documentation and
processes have been updated in conjunction with the Comptrollers team to comply with the legislative changes. Engagement was commenced with internal commercial service users on the new upcoming Procurement Policy,
which will be presented to Members of this committee in June. Finally, the Training and Development workstream, undertook a training needs analysis for all Commercial Team Members to design the 2025/26 training

2. Transformation programme.

/2T abed

As part of the Financial Improvement and Transformation (FIT) Strategy, budget manager training workshops have been conducted during quarter 3 and 4. These workshops are initial steps toward a self-service monitoring
process. 3 training sessions have occurred with 50 invited and 24 attending. There will be a pause on training during March and April 2025 due to prioritising year-end closing with a view to increase training with multiple
sessions per month starting from May. We have booked 32 training sessions between May and August to which 18 of these have a Finance Business Partner attending to which they are still being signed up to. Finance
Business Partners will be inviting their Budget Managers to the training sessions. The training is still on track to reach all 450 budget managers by December 2025. Feedback has been positive from the sessions and are
continually evaluated to ensure the benefits of the training are being met. The FIT strategy, being officially launched in June 2025, aims to transform operations and processes within FSD to align with modern and best
practices, enhancing efficiency, accuracy, and accountability in financial management. This strategy is important for current operations and prepares for future innovations and advancements, such as the new ERP system.
Additionally, the FIT Strategy will provide a framework for continuous improvement and adaptability. By focusing on skill development, process optimisation, and strategic alignment, we aim to create a finance function that is
prepared for future needs.

2, Filgk s G TaTEEEEs The Chamberlain's Senior Leadership team review risk regularly including horizon scanning. There are 2 risks are currently emerging which are being scoped and will be escalated through the appropriate channels in coming

months.
Corporate Plan 2024-2029 Measures data

Workstream Workstream Assessment RAG Status Next Steps Outcomes submitted? Y/N
"Collection of: In Year collection rates for business Rates during Q4 2024/25 is at 97.32%. Council Providing Excellent Services Y
-Business Rates Tax collection has increased by 1.3% on 23/24 to 97.9% in Q4. This is the highest
-Council Tax" collection rate reported since 2018/19.

New Claims were processed within 10.42 days which was faster than in Q3. Change Providing Excellent Services Y

of Circumstances were processed within 3.23 days which is a marginal increase on
Payment of Housing and Council Tax Benefits 3.05 days in Q3.




Brilliant Basics - capital and revenue reporting through to statement
of accounts

Regular reporting on capital and revenue will continue, with an emphasis on training
budget holders and project accountants to assume greater responsibility.
Additionally, the Finance Team will be upskilled to play a more strategic role instead
of completing tasks for the budget holders. This transition will involve extensive
training and a cultural shift, with full benefits expected after the implementation of the
new ERP system.

Delivery of a programme of Internal Audit work to inform the Head of
Internal Audit Annual Opinion on the adequacy of the Internal
Control Environment, Governance and Risk Management
arrangements

Programme of work delivered - the spread and depth of coverage is sufficient to form
an overall opinion.

Planning, organisation, delivery and administration of Freedom
Ceremonies and events at the Guildhall

Freedom recipient numbers were 2200 for 2024. A fantastic effort from the team.
Numbers are expected to be lower than this in 2025 as this was an unprecedented
year, but the current tragectory still looks to be above that of 2023.

Develop medium term cash flow modelling for both City Fund and
City’s Estate enabling advice on internal borrowing caps, external
borrowing requirements/limits, draw down on financial investments
and reserves held in illiquid asset classes such as property

This workstream has now transitioned into Business As Usual. At their February
meeting, the Investment Committee received an update on the latest cashflow
forecast position, considering significant decisions made around the Barbican
Renewal Programme and Markets. This collaborative effort between Chamberlain’s
and the City Surveyors team informs Members about the cash flow requirements for
City Fund and City’s Estate over the medium-term financial plan. It also proposes a
capital realisation strategy to ensure sufficient liquidity for major project costs, daily
operations, and unforeseen expenses. Additionally, for City’s Estate, the proposed
strategy aligns with the broader asset allocation targets, considering the timeframes
necessary for the disposal of illiquid property investment assets.

82T obed

"Enterprise Resource Planning system
implementation across Finance, HR, Payroll, IT and Procurement"

The Programme has made good progress and is tracking to both plan and budget.
The first go live milestone (the Learning Management System) was approved for 1st
April, the remaining Wave 1 deliverables are progressing well (Performance & Goals
/ Recruitment) with go live planned in Quarter 1 2025/26

The scale and complexity of the programme requires additional risk mitigation for
Wave 2 (HR & Payroll) and Wave 3 (Finance). There has been no change in the plan
and the focus is on taking proactive steps to mitigate any delivery risks. All risks are
being managed at Programme Board level.

The status has been put at Amber while the replan is completed.
The principle of “Adopt not Adapt” is being maintained and there have been minimal

changes proposed. A quality assurance partner (SAP) has been appointed to provide
additional confidence and help drive the transformation work.

Proactive deployment of measures to prevent and detect fraud
against the City of London Corporation and provision of a corporate
wide responsive fraud investigation service

Investigation service continues to be responsive to concerns raised, case
management system is providing useful management information. Proactive work is
focussed on Failure to Prevent Fraud obligations.

Automation of Invoice Payments

The e-invoicing project is currently on hold while we implement SAP.

Providing Excellent Services Y
The FIT Strategy will remain a priority and is
scheduled to be officially launched in June 2025.
Providing Excellent Services Y
Providing Excellent Services Y
Providing Excellent Services Y
Business As Usual
Providing Excellent Services
Deploy Build of Wave 2 (HR & Payroll to be
advanced)
Build of Wave 3 to be in progress (Finance)
N/A
Providing Excellent Services Y
This project will be stood up again following the
implementation of SAP. Providing Excellent Services Y




Provide high level executive & programme management support to
Chamberlain’s senior leaders in the strategical and operational
delivery of CHB's transformation programme

The Chamberlain's Transformation Programme will continue to support the delivery
of chamberlain's transformation workstreams, the focus for 2025/26 is supporting the
delivery of the Commercial improvement programme, implementation of the ERP
Programme and financial service transformation programme.

Utilisation of the new project management reporting
tools to improve portfolio reporting.

Providing Excellent Services

Training and Development/Succession planning

Chamberlain's Learning and Engagement Board continue to meet on a monthly
basis. The Chamberlain's learning policy has been refreshed and a lunch and learn
programme has been developed. Over the last quarter two lunch and learn sessions
took place on SharePoint and were attended by around 70 staff. Staff continue to
complete the CIPFA Competency Framework tool which will assist in identifying team
and individual development requirements. Workshops have also taken place in
relation to the Finance Improvement and Transformation Strategy.

Providing Excellent Services

Portfolio management implementation

The new Project Management System: Cora has been developed and configured.
Training on the new system will commence in Q1 25/26. Work continues on the new
project procedure and gateways which will be presented for committee approvals in
July 25.

Roll out training on the new Cora system, conduct
officer and member engagement sessions on the
new project procedure and gateways. Reports on
track to be presented to committees in June/July 25

Providing Excellent Services

Commercial maturity assessment and improvement plan
(procurement governance review)

The Commercial maturity assessment was completed in Nov-24, with the
recommendations and improvement plan signed off by PPsC in Dec-24. Q4 2025/26
focused on stakeholder engagement and creating workstream project plans to deliver
throuahout 2025.

Providing Excellent Services

Data and insights — understanding our impact

The Impact and Reporting team are now fully resourced. There is an initial focus on
developing a business plan for the CCPD Division for 25/26. Work has commenced
on data cleansing on the contracts register following the transition to the new Jaggaer
system.

The Corporate Benefits Realisation Model delivery plan has been mapped for
delivery about 2025/26.

Providing Excellent Services

T
jab)

In Q4 work continued across the 4 transformational pillars: Organisational
Excellence, Innovative Collaboration, Entrepreneurial Spirit and Future First. Boards
and working groups for each pillar have been established. Work also progressed on
procuring a transformation partner to deliver the workstreams across the corporation,
this anticipated to go to market in O1 2025/26.

Onboard transformation partner

Providing Excellent Services

Transfgsmation and improvement framework (embedding RPR)
v

The CCPD Service is now fully resourced, skills and competency assessments are
being undertaken and a learning and development programme will be launched
alongside start of year appraisals.

Providing Excellent Services

Servichquyelopment — capacity and capability
LI 4

(o]

Procurement Act implementation

The procurement act is now in effect and the appropriate policies, templates and
processes have been updated to reflect the legislative changes. These will be
monitored for any improvements in 2025

Providing Excellent Services

"DITS Strategy
Implementation”

FONOWITTg Orrrorm e approvar Or our DII.dIEu DbdaTt Slrategy tridt wdas dpproveu ast
year, we have commenced work to deliver the Strategic Outcomes set out in the
Strategy.

This includes the work we have commenced around network and connectivity
improvements where we have seen a 97% drop in network dropouts across the
wider corporation estate.

We have now implemented Microsoft Fabric, which will form the foundation for a
Corporation-wide data hub. We are also working on a single CRM system for the
wider organisation, with support from our Institutions.

Work is continuing around convergence across the wider organisation, with closer
ties with Barbican and GSMD being forged, and federating our estate allowing
greater trust between the Corporation and Institutions.

We are also testing several Al bots which are due to be deployed shortly, and are
increasing our work around automation.

We have deployed a single Cyber Security training package across every part of the
Corporation with the exception of the Police, who have their own training suite and
there has been an 82% takeup.

Work around a new Shared Services Agreement between the Corporation and the
City of London Police is still in progress, with PWC being engaged.

Providing Excellent Services




"Managed Print
Service"

The initial procurement exercise for our Managed Print solution was abandoned as
there were concerns raised by the Print Room regarding the suitability of the
preferred supplier. A new procurement exercise is currently underway with the Print
Room and the Managed Print Service split into two lots and an updated specification.
The new approach will allow the maximum level of benefit to be achieved whilst
ensuring that the unique requirements of the Print Room can be accommodated.

Network Refresh

We have agreed a direction of travel for our future network and will be carrying out a
full refresh with a “wireless first” approach. Work is continuing to ensure effective
procurement of the new solution.

This solution will be a blueprint for our wider organisation, allowing colleagues across
the Corporation — including Institutions, to connect without friction to a network
regardless of which building they are working from.

We are currently moderating the selection questionnaire and will shortlist 3-5 bidders
who will be invited to tender, evaluating tenders, with an award expected by July and
work to commence in early 2026.

Providing Excellent Services

0¢T abed

Providing Excellent Services




“SharePoint migration (COL and COLP)"

SharePoint migration is complete. We are now optimising our storage and
decommissioning the file shares.

“Data Maturity
Programme"

Following on from a successful proof of concept, we received transformation funding
for a "Data Lighthouse" project, which will bring together disparate CRM systems
from across the wider organisation.

We are looking to sign off requirements and complete user workshops by next week,
and have opted to use Microsoft Dynamics, which fits in well with our wider
architecture. A new Dynamics 365 Customer Insights specialist has been recruited.

A Transformation Bid has been submitted to fund further phases of the project.

Providing Excellent Services

Providing Excellent Services

*Key

Blue: Completed
Green: On track, milestones achieved in this quarter to the planned timeline

Amber: Slippage to planned progress / milestones not achieved to planned timeline but will be achieved by end of next quarter
Red: Slippage to planned progress is significant and cannot be achieved in the next quarter. Risk of non-delivery.

Black: A decision to pause or stop workstream activities has been taken.

Provide Rag Status (*refer to key)

TET abed

Corporate Plan 2024-29 outcomes:




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 132



ceT obed

TOTAL NUMBER
OF PROJECTS

9

PROJECT BY
PRIORITY

Hhigh HLlow Medium

APPROVED
BUDGET

£19,249,157

CHAMBERLAIN'S PROJECT PORTFOLIO DASHBOARD - MARCH 2025

PROJECT BY STATUS

Not Started -

Complete
In Progress
PROJECT BY OVERALL
Not Started
RAG RATING

(blank)

Not Yet Started

2
Overall RAG
Complete _ At-Risk M On-Track
At-Risk
0 ! 2 3 4 > 6 7 8 TREND IMPROVING On-Track
Project Cate...
Cross-Departm...
PROJECTSGBY TYPE PROJECTS BY RISK Departmental
APPETITE P
On-track Tier 2...
2
. - MODERATE
Cross-Departmental Departmental Transformation or On-track Tier 2 Projects
Projects/Transformation Improvement Projects
BUDGET DELIVERY SCHEDULE
RAG STATUS TIMELINES RAG STATUS
10 Likelihood to deliver within budget 15 Likelihood to deliver within schedule
8
10

6

4 5

2

0

= >24 months = 12 months

18 months = 6 months

. Likley IUnIiker

Possible Impossible

0 -

B Likiey I Unlikely

Possible Impossible




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 134



Agenda Iltem 14

City of London Corporation Committee Report

Committee(s): Dated:

Finance Committee — For information 29 April 2025

Subiject: Public report:

Chamberlain’s Departmental Risk Management Update For Information

This proposal: Providing Excellent Services
e delivers Corporate Plan 2024-29 outcomes Flourishing Public Spaces
e provides statutory duties

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or No

capital spending?

If so, how much? £0

What is the source of Funding? n/a

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the n/a

Chamberlain’s Department?

Report of: Caroline Al-Beyerty,

Chamberlain
Report author: Leah Woodlock,

Chamberlain’s Department

Summary

This report has been prepared to inform the Finance Committee about the risks faced
by the Chamberlain’s department, with an emphasis on both Financial Corporate and
Departmental risks. Presently, there is one RED risk listed on the Corporate Risk
Register under the Chamberlain’s responsibility, as well as one RED risk on the
Chamberlain’s Departmental Risk Register. The Chamberlain’s Senior Leadership
Team, along with divisional management teams, regularly review and update the risk
register to identify potential risks and opportunities.

Recommendation

Members are asked to:
e Note the report

Page 135



Main Report

Background

1.

2.

3.

The Risk Management Framework of the City of London Corporation requires each
Chief Officer to report regularly to the Committee the key risks faced in their
department. The Finance Committee has determined that it will receive the
Chamberlain’s Risk Register at each meeting.

The Digital Information Technology Service (DITS) as a part of the Chamberlain’s
Department risks are reported to the Digital Services Committee for oversight.

The Commercial, Change and Portfolio Delivery (CCPD) as a part of the
Chamberlain’s Department risks are reported to the Projects and Procurement
Sub-Committee for oversight.

Current Position

4.

The Chamberlain’s department currently has one financial RED Corporate Risk
and one RED Departmental risk, all risks are regularly reviewed, and several
mitigating measures are in place to prevent the realisation of these risks or future
risks

The risk score for CR35 Unsustainable Medium-Term Finances — City Fund
(current score RED 16) increased from AMBER 12 following the approval of the
2025/26 City Fund Medium Term Financial Plan. Budget pressures from social
care, children services, business rates reset, and policing persist. Mitigations
include developing a savings programme aligned with the Town Clerk’s Fantastic
Five Years vision, supporting organisational excellence, focusing on efficiencies,
and transformation across services. This includes generating income, seeking
preventative approaches, reviewing strategic prioritisation and continuous
improvements.

CR38 Unsustainable Medium-Term Finances — City’s Estate (current score
AMBER 12) decreased in March from a red score of 16, following the approval of
the 2025/26 City Fund Medium Term Financial Plan. The amber score is contingent
on the successful implementation of the Investment Strategy, the effective
fundraising efforts by Charities, and income generation. Additionally, further work
on savings aligned to the Town Clerk’s Fantastic Five Years as per paragraph 5
above will be presented at the Policy and Resources away day in July 2025.

Page 136



7. CHBO002 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Finances has a risk score of RED
16. The HRA and Capital Budgets for 2025/26 were approved by the Community
and Children’s Services Committee in January. Mitigations for this risk include
continues close monitoring of capital schemes into 2025/26, reprocuring the repairs
and maintenance contract and an external valuation of the depreciation charge and
significantly reduced as a result. Understanding of how the business model is
progressing will be discussed at the Town Clerk’s star chambers held during May
and June.

Conclusion

8. Members are asked to note the actions taken by Chamberlain’s Department to
manage all risks. Actions aim to continue monitoring and reducing the risk level,
which will be reported on at future finance committees.

Appendices
= Appendix 1 — Departmental Risk Register

Background Papers
Chamberlain’s Departmental Risk Management Update Reports

Leah Woodlock

Chamberlain’s Project Manager
Chamberlain’s Department

E: Leah.Woodlock@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 137


mailto:Leah.Woodlock@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 138



Chamberlain’s Corporate Risks

|Code

|CR35 | |Tit|e Unsustainable Medium Term Finances - City Fund

Description

Causes:

Persistent high inflation, as reported and forecast by the Office for Budget Responsibility.

Aging estate crystallising high levels of expenditure over short time period, putting pressure on Reserves. Reduction in rental income from the property investment
portfolio to support Major Projects programmes. Anticipated reductions in public sector funding (local government and Police), escalating demands (both revenue
and capital), and an ambitious program for major project delivery pose a threat to sustaining the Square Mile's vibrancy and growth. The Police Transform
program fails to achieve anticipated budget mitigations outlined in the MTFP.

Event: The failure to manage financial pressures within the fiscal year and achieve a sustainable savings programme, or to boost income generation to address
the Corporation's projected medium-term financial deficit.

Effect: Inability to establish a balanced budget, which is a statutory requirement for the City Fund. The City of London Corporation's reputation could suffer due to
failure to meet financial objectives or the necessity to curtail services provided to businesses and the community.
Challenges in executing the capital program and major projects within affordable limits.

o
Qyrrent Risk Assessment, E Target Risk g

Srore & Trend = 16 ﬁ‘ Increasing Assessment & Score - (@] 8
@omparison = 3

B Impact Impact

Relihood Likely Impact Major Likelihood Unlikely Impact Major

Risk Score 16 Review Date 12-Feb-2025 Risk Score 8 Target Date 31-Mar-2026

Latest Note

The 2025/26 budget and medium term financial plan has been updated. The Final Local Government Settlement has confirmed the business rates reset, which
moves the risk rating from Amber to Red. Inflation rates to be monitored quarterly and an inflation contingency to be maintained in 2025/26 through carried
forward from 2024/25 underspends. Pressures on adult social care, children services, security and policing continue, and are addressed through increase in taxes
and business rates premium.

Other on-going pressures totalling £0.4m, plus net 2% inflation uplift approved in 2025/26 local risk budgets. The medium-term financial plan includes:

Reprofiling of cyclical works programme to cover bow-wave of outstanding works and provision for works going forward.

Funding strategy identifies where best to bring third party capital into surplus operational property opportunities, reducing demand on own Reserves.
Quarterly monitoring of capital programme against budgets.

Securing income generation opportunities.

Developing a savings programme aligned with the Town Clerk’s Fantastic Five Years, supporting organisational excellence, focusing on efficiencies and
transformation across services.




Risk Level Corporate Department Chamberlain’s
Creation Date 19-Jun-2020 Risk Owner Caroline Al-Beyerty
Approach Reduce Risk Administrator Leah Woodlock

Head of Profession 1

Financial Services

Risk assigned to Sonia Virdee

Head of Profession 2

Committee Finance Committee

Head of Profession 3

Parent Risk

CR Corporate Risk Register

Actions related to this risk:

Latest Note

Programme

permanent year-on-year
savings (including Police
Authority)

« Develop income generation
opportunities

Ensure income generation schemes are sustainable and on-going opportunities
are explored, these include but not limited to events across the Corporation,
Advertising and sponsorship, Filming inside and outside the square mile, Retail
opportunities and Fees and Charges.

Ellie Robles

Ref No: Action Description Latest Note Date Action Owner | Due Date
CR35a Impact of inflation [Monitoring the impact of Regular monitoring the office of budget responsibility’s inflation forecasts, The 28-Mar-2025 lain Jenkins 31-Mar-
inflationary pressures (including|Consumer Prices Index (CPI) rose by 2.8% in the 12 months to February 2025, 2026
pressures on energy costs) and |down from 3.0% in the 12 months to January.
construction inflation impacts
on capex programme Identify areas that are forecasting to exceed budget envelope due to inflation
« Use of inflation contingency |increases.
0
gQBSC Major Projects Remain within the financial Monthly update on major projects forecasts and issues arising. -07-Apr-2025 [David Abbott 31-Mar-
D envelopes approved for major 2029
projects. Major projects are presented monthly to the Chamberlain’s Assurance Board with
E an update to the Portfolio Board chaired by the Town Clerk/Chief Executive.
© Regular reporting to Capital Buildings Board, Finance Committee, and Policy and
Resources Committee.
Court of Common Council approved an updated (additional) funding envelope for
the Future Police Estates Programme.
CR35f Achievement of Delivering the current savings |Court of Common Council, in March 2025 reaffirmed the profiling of remaining 04-Apr-2025 Mark Paddon; 31-Mar-
current Savings programme and securing fundamental review savings. Daniel Peattie; 2026




Pressures and mitigations are being recorded at a more granular level to improve
the tracking and reporting on savings during the year, this information will be
incorporated into the budget monitoring reports from 2025/26 quarter 1 onwards to
help inform Members of key risks and progress.

Savings programmesl/initiatives will continued to be considered during the 2025/26
financial year in line with the Town Clerk’s Fantastic Five Years with the aim to
deliver by April 2026.

An update is being presented to Policy and Resources away day in July 2025 on
savings across the Corporation to inform the 2026/27 budget setting work.

CR35p Plans in place to
reduce future deficits

T T abed

Plans in place to reduce future
deficits.

The revised medium-term financial plan is only balanced over the next five years
with the use of general fund reserves and further savings and/or revenue raising
by increasing Council Tax and Business Rate Premium. City Fund moves into
deficit position from 2026/27 onwards. The Final Local Government Settlement
confirms plans to reset the business rates retention system and plans to engage
with councils about reforms to the funding system. This consultation has begun in
early 2025, with implementation of these reforms starting through the multi-year
Settlement in 2026/27.

Future deficits should not be ignored, previously the business rate growth had
been kept separate to fund the major projects and not relied on to balance the in-
year position, due to increases in inflation and reductions in property income
forecasts this is no longer possible. Radical decisions are now needed on how
best to bring down the annual operating deficit, over and above those already
identified (income generation, operational property review, investment property
review), including major changes or stoppages to existing services provision
and/or reduction in grants. This will require a renewed approach to transformation
underpin by a clear communication plan to all members, so they are aware of the
challenges ahead.

The focus of the May/June Star Chamber meetings is to increase the attention on
efficiencies, preventative approaches, aligning to strategic priorities as well as the
current income generation strategies.

04-Apr-2025

Daniel Peattie

31-Mar-
2026




Code

CR38 | |Tit|e Unsustainable Medium Term Finances - City's Estate

Description

Causes: The embedded increased impact of inflation, following the peak of 10.7% in Autumn 2022 (as reported by the Office for Budget Responsibility).

Aging estate crystallising high levels of expenditure over short time period, putting pressure on Reserves.

Reduction in rental income from the property investment portfolio following post pandemic changes in workplace attendance reducing demand for grade B office
accommodation.

Event: Inability to manage financial pressures within the fiscal year, resulting in an inability to achieve anticipated savings and generate expected income, may
necessitate additional reliance on investment drawdowns. Additionally, challenges in controlling construction inflation or the inability to readjust capital projects
within budget parameters pose further risks.

Effects: The City of London Corporation’s reputation could suffer from failure to achieve financial goals or from reduced services to businesses and the
community. Experience challenges in delivering the capital program and major projects within budgetary limits. Inability of expenditure to align with the corporate
plan, leading to inefficient resource utilisation and reduced corporate performance.

Current Risk Assessment O .
’ . Target Risk E
Score & Trend E 12 {’ Decreasing e Sl : O 8
Q%mparlson = =
QD Impact Impact
%elihood Possible Impact Major Likelihood Unlikely Impact Major
sk Score 12 Review Date 28-Mar-2025 Risk Score 8 Target Date 31-Mar-2026
=
DN

Latest Note

The 2025/26 budget and 5 and 20 year financial model has been updated. The revised position shifts the risk rating from Red to Amber.

Inflation rates to be monitored quarterly and an inflation contingency to be maintained in 2025/26 through carried forward from 2024/25 underspends. On-going
pressures totalling £2.0m, plus net 2% inflation uplift approved in 2025/26 budgets.

The five-year financial plan includes reprofiling of cyclical works programme to cover bow-wave of outstanding works, plus a further provision for works going
forward.

Earning more income from property investment portfolio. To this end the Investment Property Strategy was approved by Investment Committee in July 2024, and
the team is currently being shaped in order to be able to deliver the strategy’s objectives.

The funding strategy identifies where best to bring third-party capital, reducing demand on own Reserves.

Key mitigations include quarterly monitoring of capital programme against budgets and developing comprehensive business cases and securing and
implementation plans for income generation opportunities.




Developing a savings programme aligned with the Town Clerk’s Fantastic Five Years, supporting organisational excellence, focusing on efficiencies and

transformation across services.

Risk Level Corporate Department Chamberlain’s
Creation Date 31-Oct-2022 Risk Owner Caroline Al-Beyerty
Approach Reduce Risk Administrator Leah Woodlock

Head of Profession 1

Financial Services

Risk assigned to

Sonia Virdee

Head of Profession 2 Committee Finance Committee

Head of Profession 3 Parent Risk CR Corporate Risk Register

Actions related to this risk:

Ref No: Action Description HEIESH (els IISZE[(ZSI N Action Owner | Due Date
CR38a Impact of inflation |Monitoring the impact of Regular monitoring the office of budget responsibility’s inflation forecasts, The 28-Mar-2025 lain Jenkins 31-Mar-
U revenue inflationary pressures [Consumer Prices Index (CPI) rose by 2.8% in the 12 months to February 2025, 2026
Q (including pressures on energy [down from 3.0% in the 12 months to January.

Q costs, cost of London living

@ wage) and construction inflation

= impacts on capex programme

NAN + Monitor the use of inflation

w contingency

CR38e A reduction in key [Monitoring key income streams |This is being monitored monthly, with action being taken to within the portfolioto  [28-Mar-2025 Daniel Peattie 31-Mar-
income streams and « i.e. rental income from the maximise income generation opportunities. Ensure income generation schemes 2026

increase in bad Debt

property investment portfolio.

are sustainable and on-going opportunities are explored, these include but not
limited to; Lord Mayor Show and events across the Corporation, Advertising and
sponsorship, Filming inside and outside the square mile, Retail opportunities and

Fees and Charges.

Benchmarking exercises are currently being undertaken to provide a market

comparison.

An update is being presented to Policy and Resources away day in July 2025 on

income stream across the Corporation.




CR38f Achievement of
current Savings
Programme

Delivering the current savings
programme and securing
permanent year-on-year
savings.

Quarterly revenue monitoring undertaken to ensure departments have appropriate
plans in place to meet in-year pressures. High risk departments are undertaking
monthly revenue monitoring. Regular updates to Executive Leadership Board /
Senior Leadership built into monitoring timetable.

Pressures and mitigations are being recorded at a more granular level to improve
the tracking and reporting on savings during the year, this information will be
incorporated into the budget monitoring reports from 2025/26 quarter 1 onwards to
help inform Members of key risks and progress.

An update on the revised 5 and 20 year financial plans were presented to the Joint
RASC and Service Committee Chairman in January 2025. Which then informed
the proposals taken forward and approved at Court of Common Council in March
2025.

An update is being presented to Policy and Resources away day in July 2025 on
savings across the Corporation to inform the 2026/27 budget setting work

04-Apr-2025

Daniel Peattie

31-Mar-
2026

(:-5389 Major Projects
ancial Envelope

v T ob®

Remain within the financial
envelopes approved for major
projects.

Monthly updates and budget monitoring on major projects forecasts and issues
arising. Projects are routinely reviewed by the Chamberlain’s Assurance Board.

On 26th November, the Court of Common Council ratified a decision to end its
interest in co-locating the wholesale food markets of Smithfield and Billingsgate to
a new site at Dagenham Docks. A Bill was deposited in Parliament on 27th
November that provides for the ending of the City Corporation’s responsibilities to
operate markets at these sites. Under a new agreement with market traders,
financial support will be provided to help them relocate to new premises, ensuring
their continued success. The 5-year and longer-term plans have been updated as
part of the 25/26 budget setting process to reflect these decisions and is presented
to this committee. However, still subject to legal agreements signed by market
traders and Parliament passing the Bill.

09-Apr-2025

David Abbott

31-Mar-
2029

CR38h Third Party Capital
Funding

Bringing third party capital to
surplus operational property
opportunities.

Identified initial opportunities which have been supported by Resource Allocation
Sub Committee.

Now that decision on markets has been made, remaining proposals for each
opportunity has been worked through by the Chamberlain’s and City Surveyor’s
teams and was submitted for member consideration to the Investment Committee
in February.

09-Apr-2025

Sonia Virdee;
Robert Murphy

31-Mar-
2025




CR38i Charities Review Undertake the Charities Review|The ability for charities to fundraise and generate more income to support 09-Apr-2025 Emily Brennan;| 31-Mar-
(Natural Environment) (Natural Environment) ambitions for activities and operational property requirements. Pauline 2025
Mouskis

Finance Committee on 14 January, agreed to proceed with the implementation

phase and move to a grant funding model for 2025/26. This was confirmed by

RASC and P&R in February 2025
CR38j Plans in place to Reduce annual operating The decision by Court of Common Council on the markets in November has now |09-Apr-2025 Daniel Peattie 31-Mar-
reduce future deficits. deficit, including major changes [been modelled, however, City’s Estate continues to produce annual operating 2025

GiT obed

or stoppages to existing
services provision and/or
reduction in grants.

deficits over the 5-year financial plan. Over the planning period, the revised
cumulative deficit is forecast to be £395m in additional to the financial gain already
modelled. Balance sheet modelling indicates this is manageable in the medium
term Stopping the markets co-location programme has strengthened net assets,
supporting the sustainability of the City’s Estate fund and investment portfolio. This
will in turn allow the Corporation to progress with implementing the investment
strategy in diversifying its investment assets, which according to longer term
modelling, suggests recovery and a transition into surplus in 15 years.
Implementing these decisions shifts the risk dial from red to amber.

However, Members should note failure to implement the investment strategy will
compromise the recovery of City’'s Estate’s I&E position. Therefore, it is not
recommended to add any additional pressure on City’s Estate investment assets
to allow time for the strategy to be embedded.

Additionally, continued emphasis on efficiencies and reducing deficit funding for
charities will require support and progress to ensure the sustainability and future
viability of both Charities and City’s Estate.

Transformation programme in flight, supported at Resource Allocation Sub away
day. Progress reporting to the Efficiency and Performance Working Party to
ensure corporate focus and pace.




Code

CR33 | |Tit|e Major Capital Schemes

Description

Cause: The City Corporation has set itself the ambition to deliver a portfolio of major capital schemes in a fiscally constrained environment.
Event: There is insufficient resourcing and controls in place to effectively oversee and administer the portfolio according to strategic priorities.

Effects:

« Failure to deliver on corporate outcomes and strategic priorities.

» Schemes not delivered on time and therefore a delay to the realisation of benefits.

« Potential for increased capital costs as a result of delayed decision making, and ineffective oversight and controls across the portfolio.
* Inability of the organisation to move at the required pace to secure decisions.

» Reputational impact on the Corporation vis-a- vis key stakeholders across London, UK Government, and investors.

» Revenue impact of delayed delivery to services affected (e.g. Markets, Museum of London Grant, City of London Police).

rrent Risk Assessment, O Target Risk
%%S;;i:gind g 12 - Constant Assessment & Score % O 8
'; Impact Impact
d’kelihood Possible Impact Major Likelihood Unlikely Impact Major
Risk Score 12 Review Date 07-Apr-2025 Risk Score 8 Target Date 31-Mar-2029

Latest Note

The project governance review has recommended a move to a portfolio management model which will more effectively manage the prioritisation of projects
aligned to strategic objectives and the allocation of resources to enable successful delivery.

Monthly monitoring of cashflow forecasting continues and is reported to relevant committees and the Chamberlain’s Assurance Board.
The new project procedure is currently being drafted and proposals tested. The final draft is due to be approved by Summer 25/26.

A change in approach to the future of the markets has resulted in the cancellation of the Markets Co-location Programme. The landlord works at the Museum of
London are nearing completion and work on Salisbury Square and the Future Police Estate Programme continues to plan.

Risk Level

Corporate Department Chamberlain’s

Creation Date

14-Feb-2020 Risk Owner Caroline Al-Beyerty




Approach Reduce Risk Administrator Leah Woodlock

Head of Profession 1 Financial Services Risk assigned to Genine Whitehorne

Head of Profession 2 Commercial Committee Finance Committee

Head of Profession 3 Programme Management Parent Risk CR Corporate Risk Register

Actions related to this risk:

Ref No:

Action Description

Latest Note

Latest Note
Date

Action Owner

Due Date

CR33h New Project
Governance Approach

L¥T abed

Implement a new project
governance approach

The Town Clerk’s portfolio board commenced in November 2023.

A portfolio overview report approved by Projects and Procurement sub-committee,
with one-off funding approved by CoCo on 7 March, further work underway to
identify permanent funding source.

A drafted project procedure and guidance is currently being reviewed by the
project governance working group.

Work ongoing with project procedure, construction of gateways and scenarios.
Significant level of change for departments which suggests a phased approach.

» Phase 1 — Provision of PM Toolkit and enabling portfolio reporting to Portfolio
Board and Members — reporting to commence from Summer 2025

» Phase 2 — Roll out of new Gateways in the Project Procedure from September
2025

Plan to be presented and approved at Portfolio Board, PPsC (June 25), Finance
Committee (July 25), and CoCo (July 25).

07-Apr-2025

Matthew Miles

31-Jul-2025

CR33j Project
Management Academy

Refresh the Project
Management Academy

Exploratory discussions as part of soft market testing ongoing with prospective
supplier to ascertain appetite and costings for an outline training proposal in line
with new project procedure and framework/ PM Academy seeking for partners to
undertake Green Book training.

A vacancy in the Projects Skills and Capability Manager role is contributing
pressures. However, an apprentice is being recruited to provide administrative
support.

07-Apr-2025

Nadhim
Ahmed

30-Sep-
2025




CR33k New Project Procure and implement a new |A broad programme of requirements workshops for the new Cora Project 07-Apr-2025 Matthew Miles |31-Jul-2025
Management System project management system Management system completed in January 2025. Moreover, User Acceptance
Testing (UAT) completed in March 2025. Identified issues are being resolved as
part of system configuration.
The approach to user engagement and training is currently being implemented,
with the system expected to be in use for the first Portfolio reports at end May
2025.
CR33I Cashflow and Monitor the high-level The Investment Management Monthly Meeting has been established. 07-Apr-2025 David Abbott 31-Mar-
Forecast Monitoring cashflow/forecast monthly 2029
The Chamberlain’s Assurance Board has also been established to review the
financial dashboards and forecasts for the Major Programmes, with updates
provided to the Portfolio Board.
The cashflow and capital realisation strategy was presented to Finance and
Investment Committees in February. Quarterly monitoring/reporting will continue
going forwards,
g’\
FCR33m Secure Third- Secure Third-Party Funding A project update report has been prepared Finance Committee, City Bridge 03-Dec-2024 |Sonia Virdee; 31-Mar-
ity Funding Foundation Board and Policy & Resources Committee on a regular basis. This will Paul Wilkinson 2029
[EEN continue throughout the lifespan of the Major Programmes.
%3% Provide regular Provide regular Member A project update report has been prepared Projects and Procurement Sub 03-Feb-2025 [Sonia Virdee; 31-Mar-
ember updates updates Committee, Finance Committee, City Bridge Foundation Board and Policy & Genine 2029
Resources Committee on a regular basis. This will continue throughout the Whitehorne

lifespan of the Major Programmes.

10




Risk Level Description Departmental

|C0de

|cHB 002

| [Tite

Housing Revenue Account Financials

Description

risk.

Effect: The City Corporation’s reputation is damaged due to failure to deliver housing services.

Cause: The embedded increased impact of inflation, following peak of 10.7% in Autumn 2022. Potential issue around non-recoverability of elements of service
charge costs due to capped rents and higher repairs and maintenance costs than originally foreseen.
Event: Inability to contain financial pressures on the Housing Revenue Account, especially around repairs and maintenance costs, management costs and

depreciation charges . Additionally, challenges in controlling construction inflation or the inability to readjust capital projects within budget parameters pose further

Current Risk Assessment, .
Score & Trend E 16 Constant VAL XS g O 8
. Assessment & Score
Comparison = =
Q) Impact Impact
=tkelihood Likely Impact Major Likelihood Unlikely Impact Major
Risk Score 16 Review Date 02-Apr-2025 Risk Score 8 Target Date 31-May-2025
o

Latest Note

On 7 March Court of Common Council approved rent increases of 7.7%.

The latest financial position on the overall HRA was agreed in the latest Estimates report in January. An updated five year financial projection was presented to
members in September 2024. Latest projections show the revenue funding position remains precarious and vulnerable to revenue overspends, further delays to
new build projects or significantly rising capital costs (leading to higher loan repayments and interest charges).

Risk Level Departmental Department Chamberlain’s
Creation Date 16-Oct-2023 Risk Owner Sonia Virdee
Approach Reduce Risk Administrator Leah Woodlock
Head of Profession 1 Financial Services Risk assigned to Mark Jarvis

Head of Profession 2

Estates & Facilities

Committee

Finance Committee

11




Head of Profession 3

Parent Risk

CHB Departmental Cross Cutting Risks

Actions related to this risk:

Latest Note

Latest Note

Ref No: Action Description Date Action Owner | Due Date
CHBO002a Capital Close monitoring of capital Close monitoring of capital schemes is required during 2025/26, update to be 02-Apr-2024 Mark Jarvis 31-July-
Schemes Monitoring schemes is required during provided in regular reporting of capital forecasts due in the revised HRA 5 Year 2025

2025/26, update to be provided |Plan after Closing. Further risk of delays to new build projects will impact the 5

in regular reporting of capital Year Plan revenue projections. Continue to monitor the risk around non-recovery

forecasts next due in July. of leaseholder contributions to capital projects.

Continue to monitor the risk

around non-recovery of

leaseholder contributions to

capital projects.
CHBO002b Repairs & Increased repairs and The Sauvills report identified high repairs and maintenance costs, management 023-Apr-2024 [Mark Jarvis 31-July-
maintenance maintenance costs and energy |costs and depreciation charges. 2025

costs.

The current repairs and maintenance contract is being re-procured in 2025/26.
The calculation of the depreciation charge has been reviewed with external valuers
and significantly reduced as a result — this has helped to offset past inflationary
revenue pressures.

The 2025/26 approved Estimates show a finely balanced position that will be
updated in the new 5 Year Plan figures in July.

04T abed

12




Code CHB 003 | |Tit|e Inconsistent application of the internal control environment
Description Cause:
Inconsistent application of internal controls across the City of London Corporation, including but not limited to:
Failure of staff management to adhere to financial and procurement regulations, leading to: Poor Purchase Order Compliance, Inefficient budget management,
Delays in setting up Project Codes due to governance, Ineffective contract and supplier management, Lack of management oversight of purchasing activities,
Misinterpretation and inconsistent understanding of financial and procurement regulations, Inconsistent guidance from subject matter experts & Complex procedures
driving officers towards using workarounds
Event:
* Increase in transactional errors
 Decrease in payment performance
» Impact on cashflow management and accuracy of forecasting
 Heightened demand for customised approvals and urgent decisions
+ Diminished strategic challenge capacity
« Disrupted delivery of Business as Usual (BAU) operations
Effect:
n) « Failure to achieve value for money
o)) * Negative internal and external audit opinions
(o] « Detrimental effects on supplier partnerships and commercial appeal to the market
(0]
=
1
= ®
Current Risk Assessment, Target Risk
Score & Trend E 8 - Constant 9 g ) 4
. T Assessment & Score T
Comparison = 3
Impact Impact
Likelihood Likely Impact Serious Likelihood Unlikely Impact Serious
Risk Score 8 Review Date 26-Feb-2025 Risk Score 4 Target Date 31-Jul-2025

Latest Note

Materialising in various ways, indications are emerging of the inconsistent implementation of internal controls throughout the Corporation.

The financial leadership group, consisting of finance representatives from across the corporation and its institutions, has been appointed to mitigate the risk of
inconsistent application of the internal control environment by working with business customers.

A number of mitigations have been identified to improve compliance and overall benefits of controls. FLG have been instructed to provide a list and evidence of
further in-place actions to be added to the action list below.

13




A significant emphasis is placed on user training and understanding to ensure effective adherence to internal spending and purchasing controls.

This risk takes precedence as additional occurrences will adversely affect the ability to achieve a balanced medium-term financial plan.

Risk Level Departmental Department Chamberlain’s
Creation Date 28-Feb-2024 Risk Owner Caroline Al-Beyerty
Approach Reduce Risk Administrator Leah Woodlock
Head of Profession 1 Commercial Risk assigned to Sonia Virdee

Head of Profession 2

Financial Services

Committee Finance Committee

Head of Profession 3

Internal Audit

Parent Risk

Actions related to this risk:

Latest Note

Ref No: Action Description Latest Note D Action Owner | Due Date
Q ate
B003c Project Review gateway process and |The review of the gateway process is underway as part of action CR33h 07-Apr-2025 Matthew Miles |31-Jul-2025
vernance Process project budget code creation.
Review Considering the separation of capital accounting arrangements from project
o1 procured.
N
A draft revision is currently being socialised amongst the working group.
Some interdependencies to the Programme Sapphire (ERP) implementation exist.
CHBO003e Review of Review of procurement First draft policy is under review by a limited group. The Policy will be presented to |28-Mar-2025 [Sue Smith; 31-Jul-2025
procurement regulation regulations Projects and Procurement Sub-Committee in June for approval.
CHBO0O03h Escalation and |Escalation and enforcement of [Performance issues to be reported and dealt with by line manager, Financial 03-Dec-2024 [Sonia Virdee; |31-Jul-2025
enforcement of non- non-compliance activities Services Director and Commercial Director. Genine
compliance activities Whitehorne

Further non-compliance to be escalated to the Chamberlain.

14




Monthly reviews are taking place at Financial Leadership Group to highlight any
areas of concern.

CHBOO03i Finance
Leadership Group
Interventions

The Finance Leadership Group
are responsible for partnering

with departments and services
to improve overall compliance.

Current actions and mitigations are reviewed and discussed at the monthly
Finance Leadership Group. The performance of departments and institutions are
reviewed monthly, with finance reps sharing their best practice on reducing non-
compliance.

12-Feb-2025

Sonia Virdee

31-Jul-2025

€GT abed

15




Code

CHB 001

| [Title

Chamberlain's department transformation and knowledge transfer

Description

Cause: Transferring knowledge can be challenging due to resistance to change, poor training, or lack of proper documentation.

Event: Culture change is insufficient. Corporate memory is lost. The Chamberlain's Department is not fit for the future.

Effect: Chamberlain's Department fails to deliver its objectives.

Current Risk Assessment, E Target Risk g
Score & Trend ; L 4 Constant N — : ) 4
Comparison = =
Impact Impact
Likelihood Unlikely Impact Serious Likelihood Unlikely Impact Serious
Ripk Score 4 Review Date 09-Apr-2025 Risk Score 4 Target Date 31-Dec-2025
Q
)
(@itest Note Most of the vacancies within the commercial, change and portfolio delivery team have been successfully recruited into. The approach to the remaining vacancies
= will be to recruit and fill on the basis of upcoming priorities.
ol
NAN The Learning and Engagement Board continues to support and develop staff. A skills matrix assessment has been commissioned for Finance Staff, this is being
piloted with the Financial Shared Services team, with the plan to extend to all finance teams within Chamberlain’s department.
A strategic review of Commercial and Contract management has been completed in November 2024. The implementation was approved by PPSC in December.
The five improvement workstreams have been established with a core focus on readiness for the Procurement Act 2023.
A procedure note review is underway and pending the positive results of this review, this risk will be deactivated.
Risk Level Departmental Department Chamberlain’s
Creation Date 12-Nov-2021 Risk Owner Caroline Al-Beyerty
Approach Reduce Risk Administrator Leah Woodlock
Head of Profession 1 Financial Services Risk assigned to Chamberlain

Head of Profession 2

Committee

Finance Committee

16




Head of Profession 3

Parent Risk

CHB CHB Departmental Cross Cutting Risks

Actions related to this risk:

Latest Note

Ref No: Action Description Latest Note Date Action Owner | Due Date
CHBO0O01b Sufficient Colleagues are provided with  |A CIPFA skills matrix review is underway to independently analyse strengths and |09-Apr-2025 Phil Black 31-Dec-
means for upskilling team |the training they need to fulfil  |areas for improvement for Chamberlain’s staff. This has now been completed by 2025
members their role. FSS and Internal Audit. Results have been received for FSD, which are currently
being reviewed.
Key workstreams for the board have been identified and are currently being
progressed.
Lunchtime learning sessions are being delivered on a variety of topics in the
coming months.
Separate to the above, the Financial Services Division have carried out training
o sessions to support staffs continued professional development; these sessions
Q have been mandated to support staff with upskilling through the year end close-
(@) down process. Training sessions will be programmed into annual forward plans to
D ensure continued development.
ol In addition, succession planning is now being reviewed to support skill shortages
(@) within capital, supported by excellent interim support. Alongside the above the
FSD are also launching their Financial Improvement and Transformation strategy
(FIT). This links to the Corporate Plan and People Strategy. One of the goals is to
imbed best practice and transformation across the organisation.
CHB001g Commercial and |A draft improvement plan is A workstream has been identified within the Commercial Transformation plan 28-Mar-2025  |Nish Dubey 31-Dec-
Contract Management being formulated following the |which is focussing on training and development. This has specific deliverables and 2025
Improvement Plan recommendations from the initiatives that are planned to be rolled out over Q4 and Q1 (FY 25-26).
strategic review.
Further details will be provided
in Q4 of the progress of
identified quick wins.
CHBO0O01h Procedure Undertaking of an audit of all All process owners have been requested to provide evidence of procedure notes |28-Mar-2025 |Leah 31-May-
Notes Review critical processes and ensuring |for critical processes for review by Chamberlain’s SLT at the April meeting. Woodlock 2025

17




appropriate materials are in
place

9GT abed

18




Agenda Iltem 15

City of London Corporation Committee Report

Committee(s):
Finance Committee — For Information

Dated:
29 April 2025

Subject:
Report of Action Taken

Public report:
For Information

This proposal:
e provides business enabling functions

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or No

capital spending?

If so, how much? EN/A
What is the source of Funding? N/A

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the N/A
Chamberlain’s Department?

Report of: Town Clerk

Report author:

Ben Dunleavy

Summary

This report provides details of decisions taken under urgency and delegated

authority procedures between Committee meetings.

Recommendation
Members are asked to note the report.

Urgent Decisions Under Standing Order 41A

Extension of Central London Forward’s Digital Connectivity Programme

1. Central London Forward (CLF) is the sub-regional partnership of the 11 central
London local authorities and the City of London Corporation. The City of London
Corporation acts as the contracting body for CLF. CLF promotes inclusive and
sustainable growth in central London and manages employment and training

programmes for central London residents.

2. Central London Forward’s Digital Connectivity programme aims to support the
CLF member authorities in attracting inward investment to improve broadband and
mobile connectivity in central London. CLF currently receive £125,000 per annum
from GLA to deliver the Programme, covering the costs of the digital lead post and
residual funding to cover programme activity. The programme is due to end 31

March 2025.

Page 157



3. The GLA secured additional funding to continue delivering the digital connectivity
programme, which would require a variation agreement to be signed. This would
continue funding of £125,000 per annum for a further four years (to financial year
2028/9), with an annual break clause, available to either party.

4. The variation agreement needed to be signed by 18 March to allow funding to be
transferred by the end of FY 2024/25. As the Finance Committee would need meet
until April 2025, approval was sought under urgency procedures. Owing to a lack
of clarity among officers as to the correct governance procedures for approving
the variation, a decision (or request for delegated authority) was not ready in time
to be presented to Committees at an earlier time. Officers have committed to a
review of mechanisms for the approving the variation of agreements for CLF, and
this has also been flagged as part of the wider procurement review.

5. The Town Clerk accordingly approved the following under urgency procedures on
19 March 2025:

e Approve CLF accepting funding of £500,000 over four years from the GLA. To
enable the continuation of the Digital Connectivity Programme and the digital
connectivity lead, who is responsible for programme delivery.

e Authorise the Executive Director of Innovation and Growth to sign the variation
agreement to accept the funding of £500,000 over four years.

Background Papers
1. Extension of Central London Forward’s Digital Connectivity Programme

Ben Dunleavy
Governance and Member Services Manager

Page 158



Agenda Iltem 19

Document is Restricted

Page 159



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 20

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 165



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 21

Document is Restricted

Page 169



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 22

Document is Restricted

Page 173



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 175



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 183



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 185



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the previous meeting
	7 Action Tracker
	8 Finance Committee's Forward Plan
	9 Draft public minutes of the Projects and Procurement Sub-Committee
	10 Appointments to Committees
	Appendix 1 -PPSC
	Appendix 2 - EPWP tracked

	11 Review of Financial Regulations
	APPENDIX A
	Appendix B (scanned)

	12 Quarterly Programme Sapphire (ERP) Update Report - Q4 2024/25
	Appendix 1 - High Level St
	Appendix 2 - Comms Roadmap
	Appendix 3 - Plan on a Pag
	Appendix 4 - NP

	13 Chamberlain's Business Plan Quarter 4 2024/25 update
	Appendix 1 Quarter 4 progress report
	CHB Transformation Project Portfolio Dashboard - March 2025

	14 Chamberlain's Departmental Risk Management Update
	Appendix 1 - CHB Risk Report (Finance Committee) FINAL

	15 Decisions taken under delegated authority and urgency procedures
	19 Non-public minutes of the previous meeting
	20 Draft non-public minutes of the Projects and Procurement Sub-Committee
	21 Draft minutes of the Efficiency and Performance Working Party
	22 Efficiency and Performance Working Party's Forward Plan
	23 Major Project Dashboard - Period 11, 2024/25
	Appendix A
	Appendix B


